THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Agenda

September 9, 2025

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAIMER

REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M.:
Confirmation of the minutes of the TRI council meeting held on August 25, 2025 (1)
Confirmation of the minutes of the regular council meeting held on August 26, 2025 (2)
List of proposed resolutions 3)
DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF:
DELEGATIONS:
Amy Tilley, Waste Management Administrator — September 2025 report - resolution 4)
Dave Creasor, Roads Supervisor — September 2025 report (5)
Judy Kleinhuis, CPA, Doane Grant Thornton LLP — Audit Stategy and Results - resolution (6)
Consolidated Financial Statements 2024 (7)
Trust Funds Financial Statements 2024 (8)
TRI-R Financial Statements 2024 (9)
Economic Development Financial Statements 2024 (20)
ACCOUNTS FOR APPROVAL:
List of accounts for approval — September 2025 (11)
APPLICATIONS:
ZBA: Definitions of “Development” & “Lot Area” and Modify Wetlands Protection Zone (12)
BY-LAW (S):
54-2025 — To confirm the proceedings of Council at its August 2025 meetings (13)
REPORTS:
Planning Report — September 2025 (24)
Building Report — NBMCA Statistics (15)
Historical Society — Meeting of August 18, 2025 (16)
Planning Board — Meeting of August 27, 2025 a7)
ACED — DoED August 2025 Report (18)
TRI Council — Meeting Notes of August 25, 2025 (29)
AHHC Meeting — September 4, 2025 — resolution (20)
KCC Meeting — September 8, 2025 (21)
Other reports?
CORRESPONDENCE: #22 TO #30
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
Township of Perry — DSSAB Nomination — Area 4 (32)
Township of McMurrich/Monteith — DSSAB Nomination — Area 4 (32)
Municipality of Brooke — Alvinston — Supporting VoBF Resolution — suspend BESS (33)
Township of Champlain — Supporting Resolution — Family Health Teams (34)
Township of Strong — Supporting Resolution — Family Health Teams (35)
Township of McMurrich/Monteith — Supporting Resolution — Family Health Teams (36)
NEW BUSINESS:
DPSMA: Fall Meeting Invitation and Agenda (37)
AMO: Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design & Implementation (38)
Staff Report: Doe Lake Municipal Park Washrooms - resolution (39)

CLOSED SESSION:

The purpose of this closed meeting is under Section 239(2) (b) and (c) of the Municipal Act to discuss personal matters
about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees, a proposed or pending acquisition or

disposition of |

DATES TO

and by the municipality or local board.

REMEMBER:

September 10
September 11
September 15
September 17
September 18
September 23

, 2025 — OPP Detachment Board Meeting
, 2025 — DSSAB

, 2025 — Historical Society

, 2025 — Library Board

, 2025 — Agricultural Society Meeting

, 2025 — Regular Council Meeting

Any member of the public who wishes to attend the Council meeting virtually may contact the
Clerk by 4:00 pm on Tuesday, September 9, 2025 via telephone at 705-382-3332 or by email at
clerk@armourtownship.ca



mailto:clerk@armourtownship.ca

THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL MINUTES

August 25, 2025

The combined in-person/virtual TRl Council meeting of the Councils of the
Township of Armour, the Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls was
held on Monday, August 25, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. at the Katrine Community Centre.

Those in attendance for were:

Township of Armour Council present included Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors Jerry
Brandt, Wendy Whitwell, Dorothy Haggart-Davis and Rod Blakelock; Staff: Dave
Gray, CAO/Deputy-Clerk and Amy Tilley, Waste Management Administrator.

Village of Burk’s Falls Council present included Mayor C ris Hope, Councillors
Nancy Kyte, and Ashley Brandt; Staff: Denis Duguay, CAO-Clerk.

Township of Ryerson Council present included Mayor George Sterling,
Councillors, and Glenn Miller, Beverly Abbott; Staff: Brayden Robinson,
CAO(/Treasurer, and Joe Readman Fire Chief.

Guests: Nieves Guijarro, Sarah Cooke, Ruth Fenwick, Joe Vella, Bob Van der
Wiist, Diane Brandt, Doreen Monk, Tiffany Monk, Marie Odorizzi, Ana Cultraro,
Dino Cultraro, Barry Burton, John Hind, and Alice Hewitt.

WELCOME

The meeting was called to order by ayor Rod Ward at 7:00 p.m.
Mayor Rod Ward welcomed all of the participants.

VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAI ER:

Participants were informed that the meeting will be recorded to provide a record
of discussions and agreements held within the meeting. By staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Participants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other di tribution services.

INDIGENOUS LAND ACKNOWLEDGE ENT:

TRI Council acknowledged the traditional lands of he Anishinaabe and
recognized the historical and contemporary contributions of the local First Nations
and the peoples of Turtle Island.

CONFIR ATION OF THE__INUTES OF THE PREVIOU __ EETING:

The notes of the regular meeting held on May 26, 2025 were approved as
circulated.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:
No pecuniary interest and general nature thereof were declared.

DISCUSSION ITE S:

Informal TRI Council Sub-Committee Update

A verbal update was provided on the monthly Sub-Committee meetings. Since its
formation in April, the Sub-Committee has played an effe tive role in enhancing
communication among the TRI Council members, fostering stronger collaboration
and alignment on shared priorities. Notable progress i cludes the successful
finalization of the fire agreement, demonstrating the committee’s ability to move
key initiatives forward. In addition, a draft library agreem nt is scheduled to be
presented later in the meeting, further highlighting the committee’s ongoing efforts
to address and support intermunicipal services.

Page 1 of 4

O,



THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

TRI COUNCIL _INUTES

August 25, 2025

Draft Library Agreement

The Sub-Committee presented a new Library Agreement to TRI Council for review
and approval. TRI Council discussed the draft agreement. Questions were asked
and answered. Based on the discussion, several changes to the draft agreement
were requested from the TRI partners. The agreement was presented for
approval as amended. Once all participating Mayors and Clerks/CAOs have
signed the agreement, each individual Council will be required to pass a by-law to
enact the new agreement. Existing by-laws relating to the previous library
agreement will need to be repealed accordingly. Once all by-laws have been
passed, municipalities were asked to circulate copies to the other TRI Council
partners for their records. A resolution was passed supporting the Library
Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library and
authorized the Mayor and Clerk of each municipality to sign the said agreement.
Councils thanked staff for their efforts.

TRI-R Landfill Report: Options and Budget Implication (Blue Box)

TRI Council reviewed a report from the Waste Man gement Administrator
providing options and budget implications to the Blue Box Program effective
January 2026. Resolution #206 from the Township of Armour, dated July 8, 2025,
was forwarded to Circular Material Ontario in response to their June 27, 2025
Change Notice and stated that the Township of Armour does not accept the
proposed reductions. The TRI partners have responded with supporting
resolutions. TRI partners were in favor of the Waste Management Administrator
continuing to advocate for improvements to the program and the reconsideration
of the compensation rate.

The Waste Management Administrator contacted Reverse ogistics Group (RLG),
noting that this arrangement was not part of the agreement with CMO and
imposed operational inefficiencies. However, Emterra's contract with RLG is at a
flat rate, RLG indicated there was no financial impact to CMO and therefore had
no incentive to reconsider.

TRI Council reviewed the budget implications with the intent to provide direction
to the Waste Management Administrator with regard to ne otiations with Circular
Materials.

2025 Monthly Contract Price Formula

Contract Price= (a)+ (b) - (¢)

(a) Promotion & Education (P&E) Payment

$1.00 x 1,916 households+ 12 = $159.67 per month

(b) Residential Depot Operation Costs

Fixed amount= $4,080 per month

(c) Deduction for Non-Eligible Sources

= 4.40% (Non-Eligible Source Deduction) x (Monthly Tonnage BB material) x
($200/tonne)

2025 Operating Revenue Allocation = $47,000

2026 Monthly Contract Price Formula

Contract Price= (a)+ (b) - (¢)

(a) Promotion & Education (P&E) Payment

$0.35 x 1,916 households+ 12 = $55.88 per month

(b) Residential Depot Operation Costs

Fixed amount= $1,223 per month

(c) Deduction for Non-Eligible Sources - Regulation amended July 4, 2025

= 4.40% (Non-Eligible Source Deduction) x (Monthly T nnage BB material) x
($200/tonne)

2026 Operating Revenue Allocation= $15,000
Page 2 of 4



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

TRI COUNCIL MINUTES
August 25, 2025

It was recommended that TRI Council consider the funding and compliance,
regulatory compliance, operational considerations, reside t expectation and legal
risk when reviewing the budgeting implications.

Additional information will be provided at the October 2025 TRI Council meeting.
New Fire Hall Build Update

The Township of Ryerson provided a status update on t e progress of the new
Firehall build. It was confirmed that all three municipalities—Armour, Burk’s Falls,
and Ryerson—have now passed formal resolutions suppo ing the awarding of the
construction tender for the project. In addition, each municipality has expressed
its full support for the joint application to the Northern Ontario Heritage Fund
Corporation (NOHFC) under the Community Enhancement Program, which will
assist in funding the new facility. As part of this commitment, all three Councils
have agreed to contribute their respective shares toward he overall project cost
and have further committed to covering any potential cost overruns that may
occur. This coordinated support reflects the ongoing spirit of collaboration among
the TRI Council partners and a shared dedication to improving emergency
services infrastructure in the region.

The construction is expected to begin by October 31%t, 20 5.
NEXT EETING:

The next meeting is scheduled for October 27, 2025 an will be hosted by the
Village of Burk’s Falls.

ADJOURN _ENT:

The TRI Council meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.
RESOLUTIONS:

Moved by Beverley Abbott, seconded by Ashley Brandt; That the TRI Council of
the Township of Armour, Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls
approve the notes of the regular meeting held on May 26, 2025. Carried

Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; WHEREAS Section 20(1)
and 20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, Chapter 25, as amended,
authorizes a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more
municipalities or local bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union public library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of
Armour supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk's Falls
Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT ach municipal Council shall b ing forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement at their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible thereafter. Carried

Page 3 of 4



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNS IP OF AR OUR

TRI COUNCIL INUTES

August 25, 2025
RESOLUTIONS: cont'd.

Moved by Nancy Kyte, seconded by Ashley Brandt; WHEREAS Section 20(1) and
20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25, as amended, authorizes
a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more municipalities or local
bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union public library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Village of Burk’s
Falls supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls Armour
& Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT each municipal Council shall bring forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement t their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible therea er. Carried

Moved by Glenn Miller, seconded by Beverly Abbott; WHEREAS Section 20(1)
and 20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Cha ter 25, as amended,
authorizes a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more
municipalities or local bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union public library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of
Ryerson supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls
Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT each municipal Council shall bring forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement t their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible thereafter. Carried

Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Glenn Miller; That the TRI Council
of the Township of Armour, Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls
adjourn this regular TRl Council meeting at 8:15 p.m. un il the next regular TRI
Council meeting scheduled for October 27, 2025 to be hosted by the Village of
Burk’s Falls. Carried

Rod Ward, Mayor

Dave Gray, CAO/Deputy-Clerk

Page 4 of 4



@

THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR
INUTES

August 26, 2025

The regular meeting of the Council of the Township of Armour was held on Tuesday,
August 26, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. Those in attendance were: Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors
Jerry Brandt, Dorothy Haggart-Davis; Rod Blakelock and Wendy Whitwell; Guests:
Nieves Guijarro, Alice Hewitt; Staff: Dave Gray, CAO/Deputy Clerk.

VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAI ER:

Participants were informed that the meeting will be recorded to provide a record of
discussions and agreements held within the meeting. vy staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Participants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other distribution services.

INDIGENOUS LAND ACKNOWLEDGE ENT:

Council acknowledged the traditional lands of the Anishinaabe and recognized the
historical and contemporary contributions of the local First ations and the peoples of
Turtle Island.

CONFIR ATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING:

The minutes of the regular Council meeting held on August 12, 2025 were approved
as circulated.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF:

No pecuniary interest and general nature thereof were declared.
DELEGATIONS: None
ACCOUNTS FOR APPROVAL: None

APPLICATIONS: None
BY-LAWS:

By-law #52-2025 being a by-law to enter into a Library Agr ement with The Village of
Burk’s Falls and the Township of Ryerson and repeal by-law #21-2022 was read in its
entirety and passed by resolution.

By-law #53-2025 being a by-law to enter into a lease agr ement for 431 Berriedale
Road with Hans Junger was read in its entirety and passed by resolution.

REPORTS:

Council reviewed the draft minutes from the July 3, 2025 AHHC meeting. The next
meeting will be held on September 4, 2025. An update was provided regarding surveys
that are being distributed throughout the region. A report was given regarding a
delegation that was made at the AMO Conference.

Council reviewed the draft minutes from the August 5, 202 TRI Council Informal Sub-
Committee meeting. The next meeting will be held on Se tember 15, 2025. Council
discussed the Committee’s next steps. Questions were asked and answered.

A verbal report was given on the August 14, 202 DSSAB meeting. The DSSAB report
was circulated for Council and staff review.

A verbal report was given on the August 20, 2025 Library Board meeting. No meeting
in August.

A verbal report was given on the August 21, 2025 Agricultural Society meeting.

Council discussed the August 25, 2025 TRI Council meetin . The next meeting will be
held on October 27, 2025.

Page 1 of 4



THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

INUTES
August 26, 2025

CORRESPONDENCE:

Council reviewed a letter from the Municipality of West Nipissing requesting support in
petitioning the province to request a moratorium on aerial spraying of glyphosate in the
Nipissing Forest. Council passed a supporting resolution.

Council reviewed a letter from the MNR’s Development and Hazard Policy Branch
proposing regulations to support the implementation of the Geologic Carbon Storage
Act, 2025. Carbon storage involves injecting captured carbon dioxide into deep
geological formations for permanent storage and is a critical tool for managing
emissions.

Council reviewed a letter from the MNR’s Development and Hazard Policy Branch
proposing regulation updated to certain operational policies under the Aggregates
Resource Act.

Council reviewed the June 2025 Monthly Jobs Report and the July 2025 Labour Focus
Report from the Labour Market Group.

Council reviewed an Ontario News Release advising th t Ontario is investing $7.7
million to support Indian Residential School Survivors.

Council reviewed an Ontario News Release advising that Ontario is launching a Protect
Ontario Financing Program to support sectors impacted by U.S. tariffs.

Council reviewed an Ontario News Release advising that Ontario is investing $13
million to build and maintain Northern winter roads.

Council reviewed an Ontario News Release advising that Ontario is investing $75
million to train more students for in-demand jobs in construction.

Council reviewed a letter from Ombudsman Ontario providing a copy of the 2024-2025
annual report. The hard copy of the report is available int e Clerk’s office.

Council reviewed a media release from Energy Storage Canada and Energy Safety
Response Group providing new guidance answering common questions and myths
about BESS systems for municipalities.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Council reviewed the Staff Report from the CAO providing position descriptions and
job evaluation reports for the Manager of Municipal Law Enforcement and Municipal
Law Enforcement Officer positions. Council passed a resolution approving the
creations of the two staff roles and directed staff to implement the changes effective
September 1, 2025.

Council reviewed the resolution from the Township of Ryerson, dated August 12, 2025,
supporting the Township of Armour’s resolution #208 dat d July 8, 2025 to Circular
Materials Ontario.

Council reviewed a resolution from the Village of Burk’s Falls, dated August 19, 2025
supporting the nomination of Councillor Sean Cotton as the Area 4 representative to
DSSAB. Council passed a supporting resolution of the nomination.

Page 2 of 4



THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

INUTES
August 26, 2025

NEW BUSINESS:

Council reviewed the 2025 inspection reports on the playground structures of Doe Lake
Park and Halcyon Shores Park. The swing has been repaired and we have requested
a replacement bolt for the drum to be mailed to the Towns ip.

Council reviewed the schedule for the 2025 Fall Fair.
Council discussed the potential of seeking approval and cost estimates for the
installation of a multi-use path along the section of Highway 520 between the Village
of Burk’s municipal boundary and Commercial Drive.

RESOLUTIONS:

Resolution #258 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That the
Council of the Township of Armour approve the minutes of the regular council meeting
held on August 12, 2025 as circulated. Carried

Resolution #259 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, sec nded by Jerry Brandt; That
the Council of the Township of Armour have read and approve By-law #52-2025 being
a by-law to enter into a Library Agreement with The Village of Burk’s Falls and the
Township of Ryerson and that we authorize the Mayor a d Deputy Clerk to sign this
by-law and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto. Carrie

Resolution #260 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by orothy Haggart-Davis; That
the Council of the Township of Armour have read and approve By-law #53-2025 being
a by-law to enter into a lease agreement for 431 Berriedale Road with Hans Junger
and that we authorize the Mayor and Deputy Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the seal
of the Corporation thereto. Carried

Resolution #261 - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis; That
the Council of the Township of Armour supports the Munici ality of West Nipissing and
formally requests that the Honourable Mike Harris Jr., Minister of Natural Resources
and Forestry, reconsider the planned use of glyphosate-based herbicides in the
Nipissing Forest and suspend the aerial spraying initiative until further independent
research and updated risk assessments are completed an reviewed. Carried

Resolution #262 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Rod Blakelock; That
the Council of the Township of Armour hereby receives the Staff Report from the CAO
dated August 26, 2025 and approves the position desc iptions and job evaluation
results for the Manager of Municipal Law Enforcement and Municipal Law Enforcement
Officer positions;

And Further That Council approves the creation of the title "Manager of Municipal Law
Enforcement"”;

And Further That Staff be directed to implement these changes effective September 1,
2025. Carried

Resolution #263 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, se onded by Rod Blakelock;
Whereas the District of Parry Sound Services Board Area 4 Representative has
forfeited their position,

And Whereas there is a requirement for a new Area 4 Representative on the Board;

Now Therefore be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Armour rescinds
Motion #134 dated May 9, 2023 nominating Councillor Ryan Baptiste;

And Hereby supports the nomination of Councillor Sean Cotton from the Village of
Burk’s Falls to represent Area 4 on the District of Parry Sound Social Services Board.
Carried

Page 3 of 4



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

MINUTES
August 26, 2025

RESOLUTIONS: cont'd.

Resolution #263 - Moved by Wendy Whitwell, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis;
That the Council of the Township of Armour adjourns this regular council meeting at
8:35 p.m. until the next regular council meeting schedule for September 9, 2025, or
at the call of the Mayor or the Clerk. Carried

Rod Ward, Mayor

Dave Gray, CAO/Deputy Clerk

Page 4 of 4



LIST OF PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS FOR SEPTEMBER 9, 2025

ITEM # ON AGENDA (1)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approves the minutes of the TRI council meeting held
on August 25, 2025 as circulated.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (2)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approves the minutes of the regular council meeting
held on August 26, 2025 as circulated.

ITEM # ON AGENDA 4)

WHEREAS the Province of Ontario, through the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks (MECP), transitioned the cost of the Blue Box Programs to a full producer responsibility (100%
cost recovery) model, under Ontario Regulation 391/21 (Blue Box Regulation), made pursuant to
the Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016;

AND WHEREAS under the new framework, producers are individually and collectively responsible
for operating and fully funding Blue Box collection systems, effective July 1, 2023, with municipal
transition dates phased in through to 2026;

AND WHEREAS municipalities are no longer required to operate Blue Box collection systems after
their designated transition date, resulting in the potential for stranded municipal assets, such as
materials recovery facilities, vehicles, bins, depots, and other capital investments, which may not be
compensated under the new regulatory framework;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Armour has historically invested in waste diversion
programs and infrastructure to meet provincial mandates and local service expectations;

AND WHEREAS the successful transition to the producer responsibility model requires clarity on
asset management, fair compensation for stranded assets, and ongoing communication between
municipalities, producers, and the Province to ensure a seamless transition for residents;

AND WHEREAS municipalities continue to have an interest in ensuring that Blue Box programs
remain accessible, efficient, and effective for residents throughout and after the transition period;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour has formally declined the
extension to contract made by Circular Materials through the Change Notice dated June 27, 2025;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour hereby:

1. Requests that the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, and Producer
Responsibility Organizations (PROs), work collaboratively with municipalities to address the
financial and operational risks of stranded assets;

2. Advocates for transparent processes, fair compensation, and timely communication to
protect municipal investments and ensure service continuity for residents; and

3 Directs that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Premier of Ontario, the Minister of
the Environment, Conservation and Parks, Chief Executive Officer of Circular Materials, the
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and all Ontario municipalities for their information
and support.

Page 1of 3



ITEM # ON AGENDA (6)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approve the 2024 consolidated financial statements,
the 2024 Trust Funds financial statements, the 2024 TRI R Waste Management financial statements
and the 2024 Almaguin Community Economic Development financial statements for the Township
of Armour as presented by our auditors, Doane Grant Thornton. Furthermore, the Council authorize
the Treasurer to sign the representation letters as presented by our Auditors.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (11)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approves the September 2025 accounts, in the amount
of $746,113.45 for payment, and the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby authorized to sign
cheques for same.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (12)

That the Council of the Township of Armour accept the application for a zoning amendment,
submitted by Donald Murphy to amend the definitions of “Development” and “Lot Area” and
modifications to the “Wetlands Protection Zone” and request the municipal planner proceed with
drafting the zoning by-law amendment.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (13)

That the Council of the Township of Armour have read and approved By-law #54-2025 being a by-
law to confirm the proceedings of Council at its August 2025 meetings and that we authorize the
Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (20)

That the Council of the Township of Armour supports the extension of Health Human Resources
Recruiter funding to the Muskoka Almaguin Ontario Health Team in the amount of $1,000 per year
for a further three-year term, covering the years 2026, 2027, and 2028.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (22)

That the Council of the Township of Armour supports the Municipality of Tweed’s resolution #355
and requests that all levels of government as well as our manufacturing partners form a working
group to ensure that our waste disposal issues can be resolved quickly, efficient and effectively with
the use of incineration, more robust recycling programs and sustainable practices.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (39)

That the Staff Report from the Municipal Clerk dated September 9, 2025, regarding the maintenance
of the Doe Lake Washroom be received and that the Council of the Township of Armour directs staff
to investigate the replacement of the water pump and to issue a Request for Quotes (RFQ) for
cleaning services as the preferred approach for the 2026 operating season of the Doe Lake
Municipal Park washrooms.

OR

That the Staff Report from the Municipal Clerk dated September 9, 2025, regarding the maintenance
of the Doe Lake Washroom be received and that the Council of the Township of Armour directs staff
to close the facility and rent portable washrooms as the preferred approach to offering facilities at
the Doe Lake Municipal Park.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM # ON AGENDA

That the Council of the Township of Armour hereby move into closed session at p.m. as per
Section 239(2) (b) and (c) of the Municipal Act to discuss personal matters about an identifiable
individual, including municipal or local board employees, a proposed or pending acquisition or
disposition of land by the municipality or local board.

ITEM # ON AGENDA

That the Council of the Township of Armour hereby adjourn and move out of closed session at
p.m. and report.

ITEM # ON AGENDA

That the Council of the Township of Armour adjourns this regular council meeting at p.m.
until the next regular council meeting scheduled for September 23, 2025 or at the call of the Mayor
or the Clerk.

Page 3 of 3



7S AN

= . J WASTE MANAGEMENT REPORT - SEPTEMBER 9, 2025

RMmoT

BUDGET & FINANCIAL

e Skid Steer - electrical wiring harness and speed sensor. New issue with module for
hydraulics.
e Preparing Draft Budget with revised 10-year capital plan for Council review.
o Are there any items/recommendations from Council for 2026?
o Inresearching the “Empty Bottle Dealer”, the next step would be a representative from
The Beer Store would assess the site to ensure it meets their safety standards for
delivery and then the paperwork. Two options, purchase empties from customers at
the site, we receive the value of the returns plus a commission of 15% of the total
return value or Commercial Hauler, we do not purchase, just collect and receive the
value of the returns without commission.

ONGOING BUSINESS

e Post Transition Report with Resolution — Attached.
e Awaiting Ministry report on landfill inspection.

BAG TALLY - GATE INFORMATION 2025

BAG TALLY ARMOUR BURKS FALLS | RYERSON | TOTAL OF ALL

January 2025 1,181 | 208 71 824 37 2,321
February 2025 1,009 | 139 63 646 23 1,880
March 2025 1,223 | 258 147 759 50 2,437
April 2025 1,278 | 196 143 900 19 2,536
May 2025 1,747 | 230 120 1,041 | 46 3,184
June 2025 1,724 | 345 181 1,138 | 116 3,504
July 2025 2,433 | 616 244 1,405 | 152 4,850
August 2025 2,417 | 823 195 1,464 | 154 5,053

TOTAL 2025 15,827 1,164 8,774 25,765
2025 % OF TOTAL 61.428% 4.518% 34.054% 100%
January 2024 1,013 | 171 107 701 30 2,022
February 2024 1,032 | 117 116 617 19 1,901
March 2024 1,196 | 173 212 738 20 2,339
April 2024 1,331 | 150 145 855 27 2,508
May 2024 1,583 | 210 242 978 21 3,034
June 2024 1,616 | 271 246 1,092 | 66 3,291




‘Quﬁ?'

WASTE MANAGEMENT REPORT - SEPTEMBER 9, 2025

July 2024 2,497 | 523 288 1,296 | 117 4,721
August 2024 2,427 | 813 248 1,563 | 175 5,226
TOTAL 2024 15,123 1,604 8,315 25,042

2024 % OF TOTAL 60.391% 6.405% 33.204% 100%
January 2023 956 178 130 631 34 1,929
February 2023 960 155 95 578 10 1,798
March 2023 1,185 | 116 100 681 17 2,099

April 2023 1,395 | 150 190 922 23 2,680

May 2023 1,541 | 163 140 864 0 2,708

June 2023 1,707 | 294 100 1,082 | 20 3,203

July 2023 2,589 | 486 246 1,277 | 128 4,726
August 2023 2,218 | 795 150 1,392 | 279 4,834
TOTAL 2023 14,888 1,151 7,938 23,977

2023 % OF TOTAL 62.093% 4.800% 33.107% 100%




STAFF REPORT

Date: September 9, 2025

To: Mayor and Council

From: Amy Tilley, Waste Management Administrator

Subject: Post-Transition Negotiations 2026 - 2028
Recommendation

That Council adopt the attached resolution regarding the transition of the Blue Box program

under Ontario Regulation 391/21, and that the resolution be circulated to the Premier of

Ontario, the Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, the Chief Executive Officer

of Circular Materials, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and all Ontario
uii lities for information and support.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the implications of Ontario Regulation 391/21
under the Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016 on municipal Blue Box
operations. Identify the risks of stranded municipal assets resulting from the transition to full
producer responsibility and to seek Council's approval of a formal resolution to advocate for
fair compensation, transparency, and collaboration with the Province and Producer
Responsibility Organizations (PROs).

Background

In 2021, the Province enacted Ontario Regulation 391/21 under the Resource Recovery and
Circular Economy Act, 2016. This regulation transitions the Blue Box program from the
previous shared-cost model (50% municipal, 50% producer-funded) to a full producer
responsibility model between 2023 and 2026.

Key features of the new framework include:

o Producers assuming 100% financial and operational responsibility for Blue Box
collection and processing.

» A standardized list of materials accepted province-wide.

» Municipalities no longer responsible for Blue Box collection after their transition date.

While the intent is to improve environmental outcomes and reduce municipal costs, the
transition also creates the risk of stranded municipal assets—such as depots, materials
recovery facilities, vehicles, and Blue Box containers—that were acquired under the former
provincial framework but may now be obsolete or uncompensated.

The Township of Armour has invested significantly in waste diversion infrastructure to comply

with provincial mandates and provide effective services to residents. Circular Materials (the
PRO responsible for the Common Collection System) has issued transition-related notices,

~RESOLUT ond —



STAFF REPORT

including a contract extension change notice dated June 27, 2025, which the Township has
formally declined.

Analysis

The Province originally articulated three guiding principles for the transition:

1.

2.

3.

Improving Environmental Outcomes — consistent material lists, resource recovery,
and waste reduction.

Reducing Costs and Burden for Business — shifting costs from municipalities and
taxpayers to producers.

Supporting Economic Growth and Innovation — job creation, private-sector
investment, and market development for recovered materials.

However, several emerging challenges affect municipalities:

Loss of Local Control: Collection methods are now dictated by producers with limited
municipal input, creating operational and safety concerns.

Contracting Imbalances: Negotiations with PROs have not addressed stranded
municipal assets or recognized past municipal efficiencies.

Financial Inequity: Without a compensation mechanism, municipalities may be left with
significant sunk costs in unused infrastructure.

Given these issues, municipalities must advocate collectively for fair compensation for
stranded assets. The ability to amend forced collection methods where necessary.
Transparent communication and collaboration during the transition process.

Financial / Operational Impact

The Township faces potential financial risk from unrecoverable investments in waste
diversion infrastructure (vehicles, bins, depots, and related capital assets).

Operational adjustments will be required as the Township relinquishes direct
responsibility for Blue Box collection but continues to respond to resident concerns.
Without provincial or producer compensation, stranded assets could become a liability
on municipal balance sheets.

Next Steps

Adoption of the resolution by Council to formalize Armour’s position.

Circulation of the resolution to the Province, PROs, AMO, and Ontario municipalities.
Continued monitoring of transition developments and coordination with neighbouring
municipalities and associations.



STAFF REPORT

Resolution

WHEREAS the Province of Ontario, through the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation
and Parks (MECP), transitioned the cost of the Blue Box Programs to a full producer
responsibility (100% cost recovery) model, under Ontario Regulation 391/21 (Blue Box
Regulation), made pursuant to the Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016;

AND WHEREAS under the new framework, producers are individually and collectively
responsible for operating and fully funding Blue Box collection systems, effective July 1, 2023,
with municipal transition dates phased in through to 2026;

AND WHEREAS municipalities are no longer required to operate Blue Box collection systems
after their designated transition date, resulting in the potential for stranded municipal assets,
such as materials recovery facilities, vehicles, bins, depots, and other capital investments,
which may not be compensated under the new regulatory framework;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Armour has historically invested in waste
diversion programs and infrastructure to meet provincial mandates and local service
expectations;

AND WHEREAS the successful transition to the producer responsibility model requires clarity
on asset management, fair compensation for stranded assets, and ongoing communication
between municipalities, producers, and the Province to ensure a seamless transition for
residents;

AND WHEREAS municipalities continue to have an interest in ensuring that Blue Box
programs remain accessible, efficient, and effective for residents throughout and after the
transition period;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour has formally declined
the extension to contract made by Circular Materials through the Change Notice dated June
27, 2025;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour hereby:

1. Requests that the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, and Producer
Responsibility Organizations (PROs), work collaboratively with municipalities to address
the financial and operational risks of stranded assets;

2. Advocates for transparent processes, fair compensation, and timely communication to
protect municipal investments and ensure service continuity for residents; and

3. Directs that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Premier of Ontario, the Minister
of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, Chief Executive Officer of Circular
Materials, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and all Ontario

municipalities for their information and support.



©

DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
56 ONTARIO STREET (705) 382-3332
PO BOX 533 (705) 382-5982
BURK’S FALLS, ON Fax: (705) 382-2068
POA 1C0 Email: roads@arm _urtownship.ca
Website: www.armourtownship.ca
OFFICE OF THE ROAD SUPERVISOR
STAFF REPORT
Date: September 9, 2025
To: Council
From: Dave Creasor, Roads Supervisor

Subject: September onthly Update

Recommendation

That the Staff Report from the Roads Supervisor dated September 9, 2025, regarding
the September Update be received for information.

1. Weather Events and Response

In early July (July 6-7), a significant rainfall event severely impacted areas of the
Township, causing roadway washouts and flooding. Outstanding repairs include:

e Expansion joint on West side Pickerel and Jack Lake Road bridge at Richard
Thomas Park: This emergency repair must be completed before winter. A road
closure will be required to facilitate the removal of the existing expansion joint
and installation of a new one. Tulloch Engineering has collaborated with Watson
Bowman to design and replace the expansion joint. This work, being specialized,
is in the quoting phase. Notably, Watson Bowman is our sole supplier for this
type of work due to the specialized nature of the product.

e Bridge at South Horn: Trees are currently lodged under the bridge.

e Culvert replacements: Spot ditching has been completed with a contracted
Gradall and trucks on severely impacted areas including Pevensey Road, North
Pickerel Lake Road, Colbourne Road, Lake Shore Road, Lakeview Crescent,
and Chetwynd Road.



1. Upcoming Operations

Line painting: Scheduled on Berriedale Road and South Service Road for the
week of September 8th.

Roadside brushing: Planned for Skyline Drive and Three Mile Lake Road.

2. Ferquson Road Rehabilitation and Construction

Daily road closures are scheduled from Monday, September 8t through
Thursday, September 11* from 9:00 am to 3:00 pm. These closures, necessary
for road works, will allow property access along Ferguson Road but will restrict
through traffic. School buses will not be affected. The closures will progress from
culvert to culvert each day.

Pulverization of Ferguson Road is planned for Monday, September 29"

Gravel hauling and placement are scheduled from Monday, October 6t through
Friday, October 24",

3. North Pickerel Lake Bridge Construction

The prefab bridge has been installed in eight sections.
The pouring of wing walls is scheduled for the week of September 8th.

The updated proposed schedule we received from the contractor is
demobilization of Friday October 10, 2025. Staff will be updating public notice for
road closure extension to accommodate the schedule update.

4. Cogeco Fibre Optic Internet Project

A contractor for Cogeco has begun installing underground fibre optic cables on
Cherry Hill Road from Deer Lake Road and on Chetwynd Road from the Kearney
end.

This installation involves plowing conduit along the edges of gravel roads at a
depth of 450mm (18”) to 600mm (24”), whereas on paved roads, directional
drilling at a depth of 450mm (18”) to 600mm (24”) will be practiced. With a depth
of (24”) 600mm below culverts where feasible.

Culvert locations will be marked before installation, and the contractor is liable for
the replacement of any damaged culverts during the process.

Each conduit will carry 14 fibre optic bundles.



5. Equipment Update

e The 2004 Rubber Tire Excavator is scheduled for replacement as part of our
asset management plan. Currently, it is out of service due to persistent
transmission issues, and a rental excavator is being utilized to maintain
operations. Considering the recurring problems with this machine, a proposal for

its replacement will be presented to the Council for consideration in the coming
months.

Respectfully submitted,
Dave Creasor AS.c.t.,, CRS
Roads Manager

Township of Armour



oan
ra T ornton

he u
ownshipo A

or the yearended D ¢

Re rtto Council
Audit strategy and results

September 9, 2025

udy Klei huis, CPA, CA
Principa
T 705 756 1

Judy.Kein uis 'doane.gt.c

1,202

of the



Contents

Executive summary

Audit risks and results

Adjustments and uncorrected misstatements
Other reportable matters

Technical updates - highlights

N O 0w

Appendices

Appendix A - Overview and approach
Appendix B - Audit plan and risk assessment
Appendix C = Auditing developments

Appendix D — Accounting developments
Appendix E — Cybersecurity

Appendix F — Draft independent auditor’s report

Appendix G - Draft management representation letter

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour | For the year ended December 31, 2024



Executive summary

Pup eofrepo and scope

The purpose of this report is to engage in an open dial ue with you regarding our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of The Municipal Corporation of the
Township of Armour (the "Municipality") for the year ended December 31, 2024.
This communication will assist Council in understanding our overall audit strategy
and results of audit procedures and includes comments on misstatements,
significant accounting policies, sensitive estimates and other matters.

The information in this document is intended solely for the information and use of
Council and management. It is not intended to be distributed or used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

We have obtained our engagement letter dated March 4, 2025, which outlines our
responsibilities and the responsibilities of management.

We were engaged to provide the following deliverables:

ep nthe ecem: r 1 2024 consolidated inancia
st eme

Report on the - ecember 31 20 4 IR € mmittee fin cia
statements

epo on e ‘e er31 02 Al aguinC: munity
Econom’c Develo tfihancial sta enaents

Reporto eDecem r31 202 TrustFun financial
stat-m nts

om unication auditst tegy. - re ults

St o a di

We have substantially completed our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Municipality and the results of that audit are included in this report.

We will finalize our report upon resolution of the following items that were
outstanding as at September 9, 2025:

* Receipt of signed management representation letter (a draft has been attached
in Appendix G)

o Approval of the consolidated financial statements by Council

« Procedures regarding subsequent events

Our responsibility is to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are also required to communicate matters that impact our standard auditor's
report, including key audit matters or modifications to the reports.

A copy of our draft auditor’s opinion is included in Appendix F.

Report to Council - Audtt strategy and results
The C ion of the Tt hip of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024




Approach

Our audit approach requires that we establish an overall strategy that focuses on
risk areas. We identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The greater the
risk of material misstatement associated with an area of the consolidated financial
statements, including disclosures, the greater the audit emphasis placed on itin
terms of audit verification and analysis. Where the nature of a risk of material
misstatement is such that it requires special audit consideration, it is classified as a
significant risk.

Our approach is discussed further in Appendices A and B.

The

of the

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results

ip of Armour | For the year ended December 31, 2024

2



Audi isks and results

We have executed our audit in accordance with our approach summarized in Appendices A and B. We highlight our significant findings in respect of economic factors,

significant transactions, risks, accounting practices and other areas of focus.

S'gnifican ris s

Area of focus Why there is a risk

Fraud ris from revenue
recognition

There is a presumed risk of fraud in revenue.

The risk primarily relates to revenue recognized under revenue from
grants.

There is a risk that surplus grant revenue received will not be repard by
recognizing fictitious or ineligible expenditures.

There 1s also a risk that revenue from conditional grants will
berecognized prior to stipulations under the grant agreement being met

Fraud risk from management
override

This is a presumed fraud risk.

The nisk primarily relates to the fact that management can use joumal
entries to override internal controls

Our response and findings

Traced a sample of transactions to verfy that the grant expenditure was eligible
and recognized in the correct period

Reviewed grant ag its to ensure grant stipulations were being met

No exceptions noted

Procedures performed to test joumal entries and accounting estimates
No exceptions noted

Fraud risk from lac of
segregation of duties

A lack of segregation of duties increases the risk of emors and fraud
going undetected.

The nsk primarily relates to unauthorized changes to pay rates by those
who have access to the payroll Masterfile

For employees who have access to the payroll Masterfile agree their pay rate
from the payroll Masterfile to the approved pay rates (per Council Resolution
and/or by-law).

No exceptions noted

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results

of the p of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024

3



A count’ g ractices

Area of focus

P 3400 Reve ue

Matter

Section PS 3400 provides a framework for recognizing revenue by
distinguishing between revenue that arises from trans  tions that include
performance obligations from transactions that do not have performance
obligations

As per the new Section revenues, including gains are defined as
increases in economic resources, either by way of increases of assets or
decreases of liabilities resuiting from operations transactions and events
of the accounting penod

®ur response and findings

On January 1 2024 the Municipality adopted PS 3400 prospectively

The Municipality has identified performance obligations associated with
building pemmits, including inspections and approvals Revenue from
buildingp itsisr gn ed enthese performance obligations are
satisfied either at a point in time upon issuing the permit or over time
through ongoing inspections and approvals

At December 31, 2024, the Municipality recorded deferred building
permit revenue of $117 604 of which $76 604 relates to building fees
collected prior to January 1 2024

An understatement of deferred revenue of $11,759 relating to building
permits has been identified as a result of our audit procedures (as has
been reported on the schedule of unadjusted misstatements on page
5)

Accounting estimates

Significant accounting estimates include estimated useful lives of tangible
capital assets and asset retirement obligations

Tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of tangible capital
assets are determined by Council from historical information and
results and were approved through by-law #15-2016 Amortization
expense in 2024 appears reason le based on estimated useful lives
per by-law #15-2016

An asset retirement obligation relating to landfill closure and post-
closure care requirements has been identified in accordance with
industry standards Estimated expenditures related to the closure and
subsequent maintenance of this site is recognized in the financial
statements at the date the legal obligation arose This estimate
includes management’s assumptions on inflation rate and discount
rate. Based on our audit procedures we have concluded that
management's estimated ARO relating to landfill closure and post-
closure care requirement appears reasonable.

Report to Counail - Audrt strategy and results

The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024



Adjustments and uncorrected

m sstatemen s

djustment

We have no adjusted misstatements to report.

U correctedmi tte et

Our audit identified the unadjusted non-trivial misstatements noted below.

Description Liabij'ties
To record understatement of deferred revenue on building permits ~ $ 1 58
Total uncorrected misstatements $ $11 59

ccu u ed

up s Ann' | urplus
$ (11759
$ (1.5)

We have discussed the unadjusted misstatement with management and requested that the identified amount be adjusted. The amount has not been adjusted as it is an

estimate and is not considered material to the financial statements as a whole.

ummary of disclo re a ers

Our audit did not identify any unadjusted non-trivial misstatements of disclosure matters.

Report to Council - Audrt strategy and results
The Ci of the Te hip of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024




Othe repo able matters

Inernalco t |

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
to the extent necessary to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing and
extent of our work. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control.

If we become aware of a deficiency in your intemal control over financial reporting,
the auditing standards require us to communicate to Council those deficiencies we
consider significant. However, a financial statement audit is not designed to provide
assurance on intemal control.

Based on the results of our audit, we did not identify any reportable observations.

ybersecur'ty

Cybersecurity is the practice of protecting computers, data and other electronic
systems from malicious attacks. As organizations become increasingly dependent
on digital technology, the opportunities for cyber-criminals continue to grow. The
explosion of data generated by digital technology, combined with a new degree of
connectedness among organizations, means there is ripe opportunity for the
technologically savvy and criminally minded to take advantage.

A breach in cybersecurity could create a reputational risk to you, as well as
resulting in financial liabilities. As part of our risk assessment and planning
procedures, we inquire of management regarding whether any cybersecurity

breaches have been detected and, if we become aware of a breach or specific
cybersecurity risk, we consider the impact to the audit; however, a financial
statement audit is not designed to provide assurance on cybersecurity and should
not be relied upon to identify cybersecurity risks or breaches.

In Appendix E, we discuss the general nature of cybersecurity threats and how
organizations can go about improving cybersecurity.

Independe e

We have a rigorous process where we continually monitor and maintain our
independence. The process of maintaining our independence includes, but is not
limited to:

» Identification of threats to our independence and putting into place safeguards to
mitigate those threats. For example, we evaluate the independence threat of any
non-audit services provided to the Municipality

o Confirming the independence of our engagement team members

We have determined that the following information should be brought to your
attention:

+ New engagement quality management standards were released for fiscal
periods starting on or after December 15, 2022. Due to familiarity threat of the
engagement principal on the audit file, we introduced an engagement quality
reviewer for the 2024 year.

Report to Counall - Audit strategy and results

The Ci of the Te ip of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024 6




Technical upda es — high ‘ghts

Accoun n

Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board that may affect the Municipality in future years include:

o Section PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation
o Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

Further details of the changes to accounting standards, including management's preliminary comments on their applicability to the Municipality, are included in Appendix D. If
you have any questions about these changes, we invite you to raise them during our next meeting. We will be pleased to address your concems.

As an

Assurance standards issued by the AASB that may change the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the Municipality and our communication with Council
include:

Potential revisions to CAS 500 Audit Evidence

Potential revisions to CAS 570 Going Concem

Potential revisions to CAS 240 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

Proposed Canadian Standard on Sustainability Assurance (CSSA) 5000, General Requirements for Sustainability Assurance Engagements

Further details of the changes to assurance standards, including management's preliminary comments on their applicability to the Municipality, are included in Appendix C. If
you have any questions about these changes, we invite you to raise them during our next meeting. We will be pleased to address your concems.

Report to Council - Audit strategy and results
The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour | For the year ended December 31 2024 7



Appendix A — Overview and approach

Our audit is planned with the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
so that we are able to express an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. The following outlines key concepts that are applicable to the audit, including the responsibilities of parties involved, our general audit approach and

other considerations.

Role of Council

Help set the tone for the organization by emphasizing honesty, ethical behaviour and fraud prevention

Oversee management, including ensuring that management establishes and maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance regarding
reliability of financial reporting

Aprprove the nomination and compensation of extemal auditors
Directly oversee the work of the extermal auditors including reviewing and discussing the audit plan

Role of management

Prepare financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards

Design, implement and maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting processes, including controls to prevent and detect fraud
Exercise sound judgment in selecting and applying accounting policies

Prevent, detect and correct errors, including those caused by fraud

Provide representations to extemal auditors

Assess quantitative and qualitative impact of misstatements discovered during the audit on fair presentation of the financial statements

Role of Doane Grant Thornton
LLP

Provide an audit opinion that the financial statements are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
Conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS)

Maintain independence and objectivity

Be a resource to management and to those charged with govemance

Communicate matters of interest to those charged with govemnance

Establish an effective two-way communication with those charged with goverance, to report matters of interest to them and obtain their comments on
audit risk matters




Au it approa h

Our understanding of the Municipality and its operations drives our audit approach, which is risk based and specifically tailored to The Municipal Corporation of the Township of
Armour.

T eiwve yp asesofouraudi proach

ss?ss ng E;' ::at 9 c t a oncl d'ng

. an o in
lek rs ai s P g

Phase @ur approach

1. Planning e We obtain our understanding of your operations internal controls and information systems
e We plan the audit timetable together

2. Assessing risk e We use our knowledge gained from the planning phase to assess financial reporting risks
e We customize our audit approach to focus our efforts on key areas

3. Evaluating internal controls e We evaluate the design of controls you have implemented over financial reporting risks
e We dentify areas where our audit could be more effective or efficient by taking an approach that includes testing the controls
e We provide you with information about the areas where you could potentially improve your controls

4. Testing accounts and o We perform tests of balances and transactions

ansactions e We use technology and tools including data interrogation tools to perform this process in a way that enhances effectiveness and efficiency

5. Concluding and reporting e We conclude on the sufficiency and appropriateness of our testing
e We finalize our report and provide you with our observations and recommendations




Our tailored audit approach results in procedures designed to respond to an identified risk. The greater the risk of material misstatement associated with the account, class of
transactions or balance, the greater the audit emphasis placed on it in terms of audit verification and analysis.

Throughout the execution of our audit approach, we maintained our professional skepticism, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could exist
notwithstanding our past experiences with the entity and our beliefs about management's honesty and integrity.

Mt ility

The purpose of our audit is to provide an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards as at December 31, 2024. Therefore, materiality is a critical auditing concept and as such we apply it in all stages of our engagement.

The concept of materiality recognizes that an auditor cannot verify every balance, transaction or judgment made in the financial reporting process. During audit planning, we
made a preliminary assessment of materiality for the purpose of developing our audit strategy, including the determination of the extent of our audit procedures. During the
completion stage, we consider not only the quantitative assessment of materiality, but also qualitative factors, in assessing the impact on the consolidated financial statements,
our audit opinion and whether the matters should be brought to your attention.

Our materiality for the current audit was $140,000 for the consolidated financial statements, $10,000 for the Tri-R Committee and $10,000 for ACED.

F aud risk fa tor considerations

We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement
caused by error or by fraud. Our responsibility includes:

e The identification and assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements due to fraud through procedures including discussions
amongst the audit team and specific inquiries of management

o Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence to respond to the fraud risks noted

« Responding appropriately to any fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected and this is particularly true in relation to fraud.
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance and management.

We are required to communicate with you on fraud-related matters, including:

¢ Obtaining an understanding of how you exercise oversight of management's processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and the intemal control
that management has established to mitigate these risks

¢ Inquiring as to whether you have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

The following provides a summary of some of the fraud related procedures that are performed during the audit:

» Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements



« Reviewing accounting estimates for biases
o Evaluating the business rationale (or the lack thereof) for significant transactions that are or appear to be outside the normal course of operations

Quality mana  ent

We have a robust system of quality management that forms a core part of our client service and is designed to ensure the firm is meeting its quality objectives by designing
responses to address identified quality risks. We combine numerous specific responses including the application of our internationally developed audit methodology, advanced
audit technology, rigorous review procedures, mandatory professional development requirements, and the use of specialists to consistently deliver high quality audit services to
our clients. We also monitor the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of each element of our system of quality management to ensure that we are appropriately
addressing the quality risks and to identify deficiencies and required remedial actions in the system of quality management. In addition to our internal processes, we are subject

to inspection and oversight by standard setting and regulatory bodies. We are proud of our firm’s approach to quality management and would be pleased to discuss any aspect
with you at your convenience.

Data analysis software

We apply our audit methodology using advanced software tools. Doane Grant Thornton continues to invest in developing industry-leading advanced audit data analytics tools.

IDEA

IDEA Data Analysis Software is a powerful analysis tool that allows audit teams to read, display, analyze, manipulate, sample and extract data from almost any electronic
source. The tool has the advantages of enabling the audit team to perform data analytics on very large data sets in a very short space of time, while providing the checks,
balances and audit trail necessary to ensure that the data is not corrupted and that the work can be easily reviewed. SmartAnalyzer, an add-on to IDEA, further improves the

efficiency and effectiveness of the audit by providing automated routines for certain common analytical tasks, such as identifying unusual and potentially fraudulent journal
entries.



Appendix B — Audi plan and risk
assessmen

We have executed our audit in accordance with our plan outiined below. We continually reassess the need for changes to our planned audit approach throughout the audit.

Ri kass ss ent

Our risk assessment process identified certain significant risks, which are included under “Audit risks and results” in our report. In addition, we identified certain other areas
where we focused our attention as follows:

Risk area Why it is a risk area Audit procedures and findings

Ta Reve ue The revenue and receivables from taxes levied may not be valid due to Test accounts receivable using statistical sampling

taxpayer collections being misapplied by those recording the receipt Review of tax revenue recorded in relation to 2024 tax by-law

No exceptions noted

Operating Ex enses There Is a nsk that payables related to core activities are understated or not  Review supporting documentation and management estimates with
recorded in the correct period. respect to the completeness and accuracy of significant year end
accruals

Perform subsequent payments testing
No exceptions noted
Tangible capital assets There is a risk that capital asset tivity is not vahd Test significant additions for existence and to ensure adherence to
procurement policies
No exceptions noted




roup audit

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, we planned to perform work on the financial information of the components as follows:

Component [subsidiary or division] Audit response and engagement team involvement
Burk’s Falls, Armour and Ryerson Doane Grant Thomton LLP Perf d a financial stat it audit on the standalone financial statements of the Tri-R
TRIR  mmittee Committee using a lower materiality level

Sufficient audtt procedures were performed on the Tri-R Committee to 1ssue a separate opinion on
the component s financial statements

Al inC ity E i Doane Grant Thomton LLP Performed a financial statement audit on the standalone financial statements of ACED using a
Development lower materiality level

Sufficient audit procedures were performed on ACED to issue a separate opinion on the
component's financial statements

rmour, Ryerson and Bur ’s Falls Doane Grant Thomton LLP Performed a financial statement audit on the standalone financial statements of the Arena using a
emorial Arena and Karl Crozier lower materiality level

Community Centre Sufficient audit procedures were performed on the Arena to issue a separate opinion on the
component's financial statements

Burk’s Falls, Armour and Ryerson Doane Grant Thomton LLP Performed a financial statement audit on the standalone financial statements of the Library using a
Union Public Library lower materiality level

Sufficient audit procedures were performed on the Library to issue a separate opinion on the
component's financial statements

Burk’s Falls and District Fire KPMG LLP Reviewed the draft audited financial statements prepared by the Township of Ryerson and
Department performed targeted enquiries of t ir auditors

We coordinated our audit efforts between engagements and discussed relevant audit matters such as materiality, risk assessment, areas of audit focus, timing and required
information for our audit of the financial statements.



Append'x C — Audi ing developments

Canadian Auditing Standards ( Jand er a ian Standards issued by the AASB

Effectiv da

Assessment of applicability

Potential revisions to CAS 500 Audit Evidence

The current audit evidence standard was issued many years ago Since then developments in technology have affected
how entities operate and process information and how audits are performed In December 2020 the IAASB initiated a
project to revise the current standard to respond to changes in the business environment. The Exposure Draft proposes
several key changes

To respond to changes in the information auditors use, including the nature and source of the information a set of
attributes has been developed to enhance the auditor’s principle-based judgments related to audit evidence in a wide
variety of circumstances Enhancements and clarifications have also been made regarding the auditor’s role when using
information prepared by management's expert

To modernise the standard and support a pnnciples-based approach that recognises the evolution in technology new
application material has been added, including explanations of how automated tools may affect auditor bias and
examples that recognise the use of technology by the entity or the auditor

To foster professional skepticism when making judgments about information to be used as audit evidence and sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, language has been added to emphasise the importance of maintaining professional skepticism
at various stages, such as when attempting to ensure that audtt procedures are being designed and performed in an
unbiased manner

The comment period for the
Exposure Draft ended on March
15 2023. Itis expected that the
effective date for the revised
standard will be for periods
beginning in 2025 but the exact
effective date will depend on
when the standard I1s approved

No impact on 2024 audit

Potential revisions to CAS 570 Going Concern

Auditors are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the appropriateness of management s use of the
going concem basis of accounting and conclude on whether a material uncertainty exists in relation to going concem
Financial statement users have raised questions about how much auditors should be able to detect from their audit
procedures in this area and what is communicated to users about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concem This
led the IAASB to initiate a project to revise the standard. In April 2023 the IAASB issued its Exposure Draft and the AASB
has issued a corresponding Exposure Draft The Exposure Draft proposes several key changes which include

Defining material uncertainty related to going concern

Enhancing the risk identification and assessment requirements so they are consistent with those set out in CAS 315
(Revised) Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement

Enhancing the auditor's evaluation of management s going concem assessment including requirements to support the
auditor’s application of professional skepticism

Adding a requirement for the auditor to request management to extend its going concem assessment of the entity to
cover at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements if management has not already done so

Enhancing the auditor's consideration of information related to management's going co  em assessment that becomes
available to the auditor after the date of the auditor's report but before the date the financial statements are 1ssued

The comment period for the
Exposure Draft ended on July 31
2023. It is expected that the
effective date for the revised
standard will be for periods
beginning in 2026 but the exact
effective date will depend on
when the standard i1s approved

No impact on 2024 audit




Canadian uditin S dards (CASs) and other Canadian dards issued by the AASB E ective date Assessment of applicability
Adding requirements to enhance communications about going concem in the auditor's report

Potential revisions to CAS 240 The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial

Statements The comment period for the No impact on 2024 audit
High quality audits contribute to the efficiency of capital markets and financial stability In recent years corporate failures Exposure Draft ended on May 6

and scandals have brought the topic of fraud to the forefront and led to questions from stakeholders about the role and ﬁi;ifgzxpg??g;h:‘tg‘;

responsibilities of the auditor relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements This led the IAASB to initiate a project to
revise the standard. In February 2024, the IAASB issued its Exposure Draft and the AASB has issued a corresponding
Exposure Draft. The Exposure Draft proposes several key changes, which include

Clarifying the roles and responsibilities of the auditor with respect to fraud
Establishing more robust requirements if fraud or suspected fraud is identified
Reinforcing the importance of exercising professional skepticism in fraud-related audit procedures

Strengthening communications through the audit with management and those charged with governance about matters
related to fraud

Adding transparency on fraud-related responsibilities and procedures in the auditor's report

standard will be for periods
beginning in 2026 but the exact
effective date will depend on
when the standard is approved

Proposed Canadian Standard ~ Sustainability Assurance (CSSA) 5000, General Requii ts for S inability
Assurance Engagements

In September 2022 the IAASB approved a project proposal to develop a new overarching standard for sustainability
assurance engagements In January 2023 the AASB approved a project proposal to concurrently adopt this international
standard with any potential additional Canadian amendments as a first of its kind Canadian Standard on Sustainability
Assurance (CSSA).

CSSA 5000 will not be a financial statement audit standard, but rather will serve as a comprehensive, standalone standard
suitable for sustainability assurance engagements. It will apply to sustainability information reported across any
appropriate sustainability topic prepared according to any suitable framework including the recently released IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standards S1 and S2 The proposed standard is profession agnostic supporting its use by both
professional accountant and non-accountant assurance practitioners who meet the relevant ethical and quality
management requirements and will apply to both limited and reasonable assurance engagements

The comment period for the
Exposure ended on No impact on 2024 audit

November 6 2023 It is expected
that the effective date will be for
periods beginning in 2026 but
the exact effective date will
depend on when the standard 1s
approved.

Cana ian Expo reDraftsis ed by the AASB

E ective date Assessment of applicability



Appendix D - PSAS

Account ng developments

Public Sector Accountin Standards u 1,20 5]

Section PS 1202 Fil ial Stat t Presentation
New Section PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation replaces Section PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation
The main features of the new Section include:

« Changes to the statement of financial position to present financial assets non-financial assets total assets financial
liabilities non-financial liabilities total liabilities and net assets/net liabilities

« Separate statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities (formerly known as accumulated surplus) by required
categories

« The addition of a statement of net financial assets or net financial liabilities that presents a revised net financial assets or
net financial liabilities (formerly known as “net debt”) calculation

« The option to present the change in net financial assets or net financial liabilties on the statement of net financial assets
or net financial liabilities

« Ability to present an amended budget when there is an election or the majority of the governing body of a govemment
organization is newly elected or appointed

« The requirement to provide a subtotal prior to financing activities in the statement of cash flow

« Guidance on assessing the going concern assumption

As a result of the issuance of the new Section various Sections and Guidelines of the Handbook have been amended to
include references to the Section. The impacted Sections and Guidelines include

« PS 1300 Government Reporting Entity « PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites
« PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations
« PS 2120 Accounting Changes :
g « PS 3300 Contingent Liabihties
« PS 2500 Basic Pnnciples of Consolidation PS 3310 Loan Guarantees
« PS 2510 Additional Areas of Consolidation ° PS 3400 Revenue a
« PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation ° u
« PS 3410 Government Transfers
« PS 3041 Portfolio Investments .
« PS 3060 Interest in Partnerships + PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions
. PS 3070/ in G ‘R « PS 3450 Financial Instruments
by « PS 4200 Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-
Enterprises Profit Organizations
« PS 3100 Restricted Assets and Revenues 19
viagcie > « PSG-2 Leased Tangible Capital Assets
« PS 3160 Public Private Partnerships PSG-4 Funds and Reserves
« PS 3230 Long-Term Debt :

- PS 3250 Retirement Benefits « PSG-5 Sale-Leaseback Transactions

Effective date

Fiscal years beginning on or after
Apnl 1 2026

Earlier adoption Is permitted only
If the Conceptual Framework is
also adopted at the same time

Prior period amounts would need
to be restated to conform to the
presentation requirements for
comparative financial information
in Section PS 1202

nag t assessment of
applicability

No impact on 2024
consolidated financial
statements




blic Sector Accoun 'ng$S ndards [ pda  March 31, 2025] ffective da

« PS 3255 Post-Employment Benefits Compensated
Absences and Termination Benefits

anagement assessment of
applicability

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector Flsqal years beginning on or after
PSAB's Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector replaces Sections PS 1000 Financral April 1, 2026.
Statement Concepts and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives Earlier adoption is permitted

The new Conceptual Framework includes

« Characteristics of public sector entities

« Objectives of financial reporting

« Primary users of financial reporting and their expectations

« Role of financial statements

« Foundations and objectives of financial statements

« Qualitative characteristics of information in financial statements

« Qualitative characteristics of information in financial statements and related considerations
« Definitions of elements

« Criteria of general recognition and derecognition; and

« Concepts of general measurement and presentation

As a result of the issuance of the Conceptual Framework various Sections and Guidelines of the Handbook have been
amended to include references to the new Conceptual Framework, add/clarify key definitions that are consistent with the
Conceptual Framework and/or remove references to qualitative characteristics that are no longer qualitative
characteristics in the new Conceptual Framework. These Sections include:

« Introduction to the Public Sector Accounting Handbook « PS 2200 Related Party Transactions
(formerly the Introduction to the Public Sector Accounting  « PS 3150 Tangible Capital Assets

Standards) « PS 3200 Liabilities
« PS 1150 Generally accepted Accounting Pnnciples « PS 3210 Assets
« PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation « PS 3400 Revenue
« PS 1300 Government Reporting Entity « PS 3430 Restructunng Transactions
« PS 2100 Disclosure of Accounting Policies « PS 3450 Financial Instruments, and
« PS 2120 Accounting Changes « PS 4230 Capital Assets Held by Not-for-Profit
« PS 2130 Measurement Uncertainty Organizations

The Conceptual Framework will be applied prospectively

No impact on 2024
consolidated financial
statements




Append'x E — Cybersecur'ty

Cybersecurity is the practice of protecting computers, data, networks and other electronic systems from malicious attacks. Below, we summarize the cybersecurity threat and
how we can help you manage that threat.

Cybersec ty -

HwD G nt n help

As organizations become increasingly dependent on digital technology, storing valuable
information in multiple places the opportunities for cyber criminals continue to grow. Cyber-
attacks today are more focused skilful and ambitious and geographical borders are
meaningless Regulators and stakeholders, including customers are increasing the pressure on
organizations to manage these risks. In order to properly protect themselves organizations
must understand what weaknesses attackers could exploit how to respond to security incidents
and how areas such as access to confidential data should be managed

Management [needs to/should continue to] respond to these nsks by

Assessing the people, processes and technology associated with their cybersecurity
program including management of the program, data security cybersecurity awareness and
training and assessment of extemnal risks

Improving the cybersecurity function by remediating identified vulnerabilities developing new
strategies enhancing existing facilities and establishing policies, controls and processes
Developing a cybersecurity breach or attack response plan which involves providing training

for the people who will execute the response determining the procedures that will be
followed and securing external resources to support the process as needed

Raymond Chabot Grant Thomton a Grant Thornton member firm based in Quebec has a
specialist cybersecurity division VARS Corporation (VARS) that is at the forefront of the
security industry

VARS can help with

Providing an integrated fully man ed solution for securing your organization’s digital
environment With VARS you will benefit from the most advanced cybersecurity solutions in
the world including solutions such as Terranova Secure Exchanges, Perception Point
Cynet and Cyolo VARS offers a customizable solution that Is designed to meet all your
cybersecurity needs, from advanced email security to dark Web analysis.

24/7 workstation and server monitoring

Regardless of the size of your organization VARS provides 24/7 access to a team of
cybersecurity experts at no additional cost and offers comprehensive real-time protection of
your environments using the best detection tools (XDR) This solution includes the support
of a specialized incident response teams that can intervene at any time, 365 days of the
year.

Virtual Chief Information Security Officers (CISOs)

VARS's virtual CISOs can empower and protect your organization without you having to
recruit a specialist or hire a full-time employee. They can help you to set priorities for
investments and implement a tail ed protection plan that fully meets your needs and
situation.

The services and experiences described above are illustrative in nature and are intended to
demonstrate our experience and capabilities in these areas However, due to independence
restrictions that apply to the [entity and its affiliates], we may be unable to provide certain
services as our ability to do so varies depending on individual facts and circumstances If you
would like to discuss cybersecurity risks in more detail or leam more we would be happy to
arrange a meeting. Additional information about VARS is available on the VARS website here
Wwww.varscorporation.com



Appendix F — Draft
independent aud'tor’s report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the Township of Armour

O ini n
We have audied e li 1 ialstate e ts fT e Co oration of the Township of Armour (‘the  unicipality”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statements of

operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Corporation of the Township of Armour as at December 31, 2024, and its results of operations, its changes in its net financial
assets, and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis orO i

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Municipality in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

espo ibi‘tie f anagementand Those C arged ith Governancef r onsol'dated Financial tements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Municipality’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's e ponsibiities forthe uditof e C nsoid ted Financial tate ts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Municipality's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountant



Appendix G — Draft
management epresen ation
letter

September 9, 2025

Do n Grant Thornton LLP
222 Mclintyre Street West
Suite 400

North Bay, ON P1B 2Y8

Dear Madam:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the
Township of Armour ("the Township") and the Township’s Trust Funds as of December 31, 2023, and for the year then ended, for
the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements and Trust Funds financial statements
(“financial statements”) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of The
Corporation of the Township of Ammour and Trust Funds in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards and for the design and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect
fraud and error. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have
determined such risk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that your examination was planned and conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) so as to enable you to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We understand that while your work includes an examination of the accounting system, internal controls and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, it is not designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose,
fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is considered material,
regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or misstatement in the financial statements would influence
the decision of a reasonable person relying on the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 9, 2025, the following representations made to you during
your audit.

Financial statements

1. The financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Township and
Trust Funds as at December 31, 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, as agreed to in the terms of the audit engagement.



Completeness of information

2.

We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the meetings of Council and
committees of Council, as agreed in the terms of the audit engagement. Summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared have been provided to you. All significant Council and committee actions are included in
the summaries.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the Township from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the financial
statements.

There were no restatements made to correct a material misstatement in the prior period financial statements that affect the
comparative information.

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the requirements of regulatory or governmental
authorities, including their financial reporting requirements.

We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the effects of which should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements or as the basis of recording a contingent loss.

We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting of which
we are aware.

We have identified to you all known related parties and related party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers
of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no
consideration.

Fraud and error

10.

1.

12.

13.

We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Township or Trust Funds involving management; employees
who have significant roles in internal control; or others, where the fraud could have a non-trivial effect on the financial
statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Township’s and Trust Funds’ financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect
fraud.

We believe that there are no uncorrected financial statements misstatements in the Trust Funds financial statements.



15.

We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatement summarized below is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole:

Description ssets i bilt \ccu' ua Surpl s
To record understatement of deferred revenue $ $14,7 $ $ 1 759)
on building permits

Total uncorrected misstatements $ $1.79 $ $ - (1 59

Recognition, measurement and disclosure

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and data used by us in making accounting estimates and related
disclosures, including those used in arriving at the fair values of financial instruments, are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement and disclosure that are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

We believe that the significant judgments made in recording asset retirement obligations have taken into account relevant
information of which management is aware. The assumptions appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry
out specific courses of action on behalf of the Township.

We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those used in arriving at the
fair values of financial instruments as measured and disclosed in the financial statements, are reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and Iiabilities, both
financial and non-financial reflected in the financial statements.

Al related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the financial statements.
The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements, including
all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could

be material to the financial statements.

All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, have been disclosed to you
and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to
you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

There are no “off-balance sheet” financial instruments that exist.
The Township and Trust Funds did not purchase any derivative financial instruments during the year.

With respect to environmental matters:

a) atyear end, there were no liabilities or contingencies that have not already been disclosed to you;

b) liabilities or contingencies have been recognized, measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the financial statements;
and



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

C) commitments have been measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the financial statements.

The Township and Trust Funds have satisfactory title to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on the Township’s or Trust Fund's assets.

We have disclosed to you, and the Township and Trust Funds have complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or
other requirements of all outstanding debt.

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) transactions recorded by the Township and Trust
Funds are in accordance with the federal and provincial regulations. The GST and HST liability/receivable amounts recorded
by the Township and Trust Funds are considered complete.

Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of Section 3255 Post Employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits of the
Canadian public sector accounting standards issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board.

There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date up to the date hereof that would require recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. Further, there have been no events subsequent to the date of the comparative financial
statements that would require adjustment of those financial statements and related notes.

Other

32.

We have considered whether or not events have occurred or conditions exist which may cast significant doubt on the
Township’s and Trust Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern and have concluded that no such events or conditions are
evident.

Yours very truly,

Alison McGregor, Treasurer



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2024




THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Page

1-2



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the embers of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour

pinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Municipal Corporation of the ownship of
Amour (‘the Township”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change

in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Municipal Corporai  of the Township of Armour as at December
31, 2024, and its results of operations, its changes in 't ne financial assets, and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian publiésector accounting standards.

B ‘s forOpi ion

We conducted our audit in accordan with Ca ian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards ar  rthe described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements secti 6 sour report. We are independent of the Township in
accordance with the ethical %;ﬁirement t at are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that t e audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our o inion.

sponsibiliti s of ana entand Tho e r ith ov rnance for the
n olidated Fina cial S fements

Management is responsibl or the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Township’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Township or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Township’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor’ espo sibilities for the Au it of the Consolidated Financial tem

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statement ,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant t audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Township's internal control

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounti olici s used the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made an ment.

 Conclude on the appropriateness anage t's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence he a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast signifi t the Township's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude t teri certainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the ated sclos s in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inade , opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to th eo auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Township to eto tin s agoing concern.

e Evaluate the rall pres tation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the osur , and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transac nd events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
review of audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash (Note 5) 4,053,403 $ 3,541,882
Investments (Note 6) 28,952 22,544
Taxes receivable (Note 7) 446,238 680,027
Accounts receivable 476,391 697,375
Inventories held for resale 54,008 3,335
5,058,992 4,945,163
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 650,817 561,802
Deferred reven e-gener | (N ) 26,075 316,088
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds (Note 9) 323,800 308,672
Long-term debt (Note 10) 521,373 566,701
Tangible capital lease (Note 11) 9,599 -
Employee benefits payable (Note 12) 2,574 3,548
Asset retirement obli ations Note 14 319 850 281 506
2 354 088 2038 317
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 2 704 904 2 906 846
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets - net (Note 16) 18,805,818 18,160,169
Inventories of supplies 223,747 310,069
Pre aid ex enses 4 998 7 530
19 034 563 18 477 768
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS No 7 21 739 467 21 384 614

Contingencies (Note 3)
Contractual Obligations (Note 15)

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:

Mayor

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 20)

REVENUE
Property taxes 3,321,553 $ 3,347,782 $ 3,241,016
User charges 207,966 232,955 111,967
Government transfers 1,976,553 1,366,545 1,389,964
Restructuring net revenue (expense) (Note 19) - (1,679) 1,037
Other 550,328 425,503 549,036
TOTAL REVENUE 6,056,400 5,371,106 5,293,020

EXPENSES
General government 8 78 839,865 802,365
Protection to persons and property 1 1 1,180,391 982,530
Transportation services , 51, 1,351,138 1,464,445
Environmental services 291,58 271,096 286,538
Health services 2,500 187,763 184,704
Social and family services 21,000 319,862 304,690
Recreation and cultural services 771,178 747,908 498,179
Plannin and develo ment 42 780 118 230 136 747
TOTAL EXPENSES 00 136 5016 253 4 660 198
ANNUAL SURPLUS (Note 17) 556,264 354,853 632,822
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS BEGINNIN EA 21 384 614 21 384 614 20 751 792
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS EN Y 21 940 878 21 739 467 21 384 614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 20)
Annual surplus $ 556,264 $ 354,853 $ 632,822
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (3,646,354) (1,555,319) (858,702)
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO - (25,891) (9,999)
Shared services tangible capital assets transfer - net - 2,584 1,587
Amortization of tangible capital assets 918,923 918,923 867,321
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 9,030 28,207
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 4,784 5,024 584
Change in supplies inventories - 86,322 (216,936)
Change in prepaid expenses - 2,532 3,828
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (2,16 83) (201,942) 448,712
Net financial assets be innin of ear 846 2 906 846 2458 134
Net financial assets end of ear 740 2 704 904 2 906 846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Operating transactions
Annual surplus $ 354,853 $ 632,822
Non-cash charges to operations:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 918,923 867,321
Accretion expense on ARO liability 11,635 9,596
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO (25,891) (9,999)
Change in ARO liability excluding accretion and settlements 26,709 26,742
Shared services tangible capital assets transfer - ne 2,584 1,587
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 9,030 28,207
Change in employee benefits payable (974) 437
1,296,869 1,556,713
Changes in non-cash items:
Taxes receivable 233,789 (349,833)
Accounts receivable 220,984 (544,166)
Inventories held for resale (50,673) 191
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 89,015 (136,754)
Deferred revenue-general 209,987 72,154
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds 15,128 118,740
Inventories of supplies 86,322 (216,936)
Pre aid ex enses 2532 3828
807 084 1052 776
Cash rovided b o eratin transactions 2 103 953 503 937
Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,543,747) (858,702)
Proceeds from dis osal of tan ible ca i sset 5024 584
Cash a lied to ca ital transactions 1538 723 858 118
Investing transactions
Chan e in investments 6 408 465
Cash a lied to investin transactions 6 408 465
Financing transactions
Debt principal repayments (45,328) (44,073)
Tangible capital lease repayments (1,973) -
Cash applied to financing transactions (47,301) (44,073)
Net change in cash 511,521 (398,719)
Cash, beginning of year 3,541,882 3,940,601
Cash, end of year $ 4,053,403 $ 3,541,882
Cash flow supplementary information:
Cash paid for interest $ 15,862 $ 16,774
Non-cash capital and financing transactions:
Capital lease $ 11,572 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The consolidated financial statements of the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour (the
"Municipality") are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting policies is
provided in Note 1. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated
fi ancial statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopt y t e Muni lity are as follows:

(a) Reporting Entity

These consolidated statem reflec e assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
accumulated surplus balance g entity. The reporting entity is comprised
of all committees of Council a ds, joint boards and municipal enterprises for
which Council is polit’ cco ble as follows:
(i) Consolidated and o solidated entities

The following local isco lidated:

Ce
The follo joint b rds and committees are proportionally consolidated:

Fire

Waste gement

Arenaa Community Centre

Library

Economic Development

Inter-organizational transactions and balances between these organizations are
eliminated.

(i) Non-consolidated entities
The following joint boards are not consolidated:
North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit
Parry Sound District Social Services Administration Board
District of Parry Sound (East) Home for the Aged

(iii) Accounting for school board transactions
The taxation, other revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the

operations of the school boards are not reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

(iv) Trust funds
Trust funds administered by the Municipality are not included in these consolidated
financial statements, but are reported separately on the trust funds financial
statements.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Accounting

(1)

(i)

(i)

Accrual basis of accounting
Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue from

transactions with performance obligations is recognized when (or as) the performance
obligation is satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payer.
Performance obligations are defined as enforceable promises to provide specific goods
or services to a specific payer. Revenue from transactions with no performance
obligations is recognized when the Municipality has the authority to claim or retain the
revenue and identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. Expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or
services and the creation of a legal obligationt ay.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and balanc eld ' ancial institutions.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not availa charge existing liabilities but are held for use
in the provision of municipal servic They have useful lives extending beyond the
current year and are not int orsa ° the ordinary course of operations.

(a) Tan ible ca ital as

Tangible capital are corded at cost, which includes all amounts that are
directly attrib et hea isition, construction, development or betterment of
the asset, as a retirement obligations related to the asset. Tangible
capital as e ed as donations are recorded at their fair value at the date of
receipt, value is also recorded as revenue, The cost, less residual

value the ta le pital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estima useful es as follows:

Land impro nts - 20 years

Leasehold Improvements - 20 years

Buildings - 10 to 50 years

Machinery, equipment and furniture - 5 to 20 years
Vehicles - 8 to 15 years

Roads - 8 to 75 years

Bridges - 60 years

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the
year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.

Estimated closure and post-closure expenses for active landfill sites as well as the
land occupied by the sites and related land improvements are amortized annually on
the basis of capacity used during the year as a percentage of the estimated total
capacity of the landfill site.

Interest related to the acquisition of capital assets is not capitalized, but is expensed
in the year incurred.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Inventories of supplies
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement

cost.

Reserves and reserve funds

Certain amounts, as approved by Council, are set aside in reserves and reserve funds
for future operating and capital purposes. Balances related to these funds are included
in the accumulated surplus of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Government transfers
Government transfers are recognized in the fi ancial statements as revenue when the
transfer is authorized and any eligibility cr* 1a are met, except to the extent that

transfer stipulations give rise to an obliig that meets the definition of a liability.
Transfers are recognized as deferred re u en transfer stipulations give rise to a
liability. Transfer revenue is recogni in the olidated Statement of Operations as

the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Deferred revenue

Revenue restricted by legisl regu ° n or agreement and not available for general
municipal purposes is report er revenue on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The re ported on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations in the ye ich s used for the specified purpose.

Taxation and rela rev

Tax rates are esta = d ann Ily by Council, incorporating amounts to be raised for
local servic a nts the Municipality is required to collect on behalf of the
Province ntari ° re ct of education taxes. Property tax billings are prepared by
the Muni lity bas on assessment rolls, supplementary assessment rolls and other
assessment ‘'ust nts issued by the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
("MPAC"). Ta ° revenue is initially recorded at the time assessment information is

received from AC and is subsequently adjusted based on management's best
estimate of the amount of tax revenue resulting from assessment adjustments that
have not yet been received from MPAC. The Municipality is entitled to collect interest
and penalties on overdue taxes. This revenue is recorded in the period the interest and
penalties are levied.

Pensions and employee benefits

The Municipality accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee
Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined
contribution plan. Obligations for sick leave under employee benefits payable are
accrued as the employees render the services necessary to earn the benefits.



10

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

(ix)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial i ments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial
instruments measured at fair value are expensed as incurred. Unrealized gains and
losses on financial assets are rec gnized in the Consolidated Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses. Once realized, remeasurement gains and losses are
transferred to the Consolidated Statement of Operations. A Consolidated Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses has not been included as there are no matters to
report therein.

Financial instruments classified as amortized st are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost usin e effective interest rate method, less any

impairment losses on financial assets. ffective interest rate method allocates
interest income or interest expense o the evant period, based on the effective
interest rate. Transaction costs rel to finan instruments in the amortized cost

category are added to the carryving ue the inst ment.

Financial assets measured at amorti cost are tested for impairment when there are

indicators of impairment. P lyr nized impairment losses are reversed to the
extent of the improvement, v set is not carried at an amount, at the date
of the reversal, greater ant ou  hat would have been the carrying amount had
no impairment loss eco zed previously. The amounts of any write-downs or

reversals are reco edi he solidated Statement of Operations.

Financial liab" "~ ~ art of a financial liability) are removed from the Consolidated
Statement 1 “al ition when, and only when, they are discharged, cancelled or
expire.
The Munici 's ancial instruments are measured according to the following
methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method

Cash Amortized cost

Investments Amortized cost

Accounts receivable Amortized cost

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Long-term debt Amortized cost



11

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

(%)

{xi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Asset retirement obligations

A liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized when, at the financial
reporting date, all of the following criteria are met:

- there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a capital asset;

- the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;

- it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and

- a reasonable estimate of the amou t can be made.

The liability is recorded at an amount that is the best estimate of the expenditure
required to retire a capital asset at the financial statement date. The liability is
subsequently reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted for the passage of
time and for any revisions to the timing, amount required to settle the obligation or the
discount rate. When an asset retireme  obligation is initially recognized, a
corresponding asset retirement cost is adde the carrying value of the related capital
asset when it is still in productive use. T t is amortized over the useful life of the
capital asset. If the related capital a is ecognized or no longer in productive
use, the asset retirement costs are e sed.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial state s in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requi nage t to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts a iabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the e of ina 1al statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expens gt period. These estimates and assumptions are based
on management's tori exp ‘ence, best knowledge of current events and actions
that the Municipa ake in the future. Significant accounting estimates
include valua =~ all ces for taxes and accounts receivable, estimated useful lives of
tangible ¢ ts, ployee benefits payable, estimated costs and timing of asset

retireme bligatio an supplementary taxes. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

There is a me ment uncertainty surrounding the estimation of liabilities for asset
retirement oblig tions of $319,850. These estimates are subject to uncertainty
because of several factors including, but not limited to estimated settlement dates,
estimated costs and change in the discount rate. These estimates are reviewed
annually and, as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the period in
which they become known.



12
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue.
New Section PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not
apply to revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers, tax revenue
or restricted revenues. The Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that
include performance obligations (i.e., exchange transactions) and transactions that do not have
performance obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The Municipality has adopted this new
standard prospectively. The adoption of this new standard had no impact on the opening balances.

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - P rchased
Intangibles. The main features of PSG-8 include a definition of purchased intangibles (which does not
include those received through government transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions),
examples of items that are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on
intangibles and reference to the asset definition, general reco ‘tion criteria and the GAAP hierarchy for
accounting for purchased intangibles. The Municipality ha dopted this new guideline prospectively.
The adoption of this new guideline had no impact e Municipality's consolidated financial
statements.

On January 1, 2024, the Municipality adopted P 1c S tor Ac nting Standard PS 3160 - Public
Private Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 esta e andards on how to account for partnerships
between public and private sector entities where i tructure is procured by a public sector entity
using a private sector partner that is obliga esig uild, acquire or better infrastructure; finance
the infrastructure past the point where the i a e ready for use and operate and/or maintain
the infrastructure. Infrastructure typi ly in ite s such as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also i ite that are intangible in nature. The Municipality has
adopted this new standard pros ivel The option of this new standard had no impact on the
Municipality's consolidated financi  ta

3. CONTRIBUTIONS TO UN SOLID D INT BOARDS

Further to Note 1(a)(ii), th lowi contributions were made by the Municipality to these boards:

2024 2023
District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board $ 180,247 $ 170,332
North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit 44,267 42,977
District of Parry Sound (East) Home for the Aged 139,615 134,358

$ 364,129 $ 347,667

The Municipality is contingently liable for its share, if any, of the accumulated deficits as at the end of
the year for these boards. The Municipality's share of the accumulated surpluses (or deficits) of these
boards has not been determined at this time.

The Municipality is also contingently liable for its share, if any, of the long-term liabilities issued by
other municipalities for these boards. The Municipality's share of these long-term liabilities has not been
determined at this time.



13

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

4.

TRANSACTIONS ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
(a) During the year, $727,808 of taxation was collected on behalf of school boards (2023 - $713,471).

(b) The Municipality administers care and maintenance trust funds totaling $9,826 (2023 - $9,826)
which are funded by the sale of cemetery interment rights and markers. These funds are invested
and earnings derived therefrom are used to perform maintenance at the Municipality's cemetery.
The trust funds are not included in these consolidated financial statements, as they are being held
in trust for the benefit of others.

CASH

Cash is comprised of:

2024 2023
Unrestricted cash $ 3,729,603 $ 3,233,210
Restricted cash 323 800 308 672
4 053 403 3 541 882
Federal and Provincial legislation restricts estri cash related to obligatory reserve funds,
reported in Note 9, may be used.
INVEST TS
Investments are comprised g teed 1 vestment certificates, bearing interest at 4.9% and
maturing May 15, 2025.
AXES RECEIVABLE
Taxes receivable are comprised the following:
2024 2023
Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-current year $ 306,514 $ 455,101
Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-previous year 81,178 145,648
Taxes and amounts added for collection purposes-prior years 24,624 25,957
Penalties and interest 35,922 55,321
Valuation allowance (2,000) (2,000)

$ 446,238 $ 680,027




14
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

8. DEFERRED REVENUE-GENERAL
Details of the deferred revenue reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as
follows:
2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year:
FedNor Northern Ontario Development Program-Implement $ 1,696 $ 34,812
Brand Strategy
Northern Ontario Regional Development Support (NORDS) 301,700 197,738
Ontario Cannabis Legalization Implementation Fund 8,807 10,993
Other deferred revenue 3,885 391
316,088 243,934
Deferred in the year:
Building permits 117,604 -
Northern Ontario Regional Development Support (N 79,160 88,674
Other funding 3,110 3,885
Interest earned 18 009 15 287
217,883 107,846
Reco nized in revenue durin the ear 7 896 35 692
Balance end of ear 526 075 316 088
Building permits $ 117,604 $
FedNor Northern Ontario Develo ntP ram plement
Brand Strategy - 1,696
Northern Ontario Regional D t Support (NORDS) 398,869 301,700
Ontario Cannabis Legaliz m tion Fund 6,492 8,807
Other deferred revenue 3110 3885

Balance end of ear 526 075 316 088



15

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

9.

DEFERRED REVENUE-OBLIGATORY RESERVE FUNDS

The Municipality receives payments in lieu of parkland under the Planning Act, building permit revenue
under the Building Code Act, Federal Community-Building funding (previously gas tax) under an
agreement with the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund
funding under an agreement with the Ministry of Infrastructure. Legislation restricts how these funds
may be used, and under certain circumstances, how these funds may be refunded.

In the case of payments in lieu of parkland, revenue recognition occurs when the Municipality has
approved eligible expenditures for park and other public recreation purposes. Building permit revenue
is recognized when applicable building expenditures are incurred. Community-Building and Ontario
Community Infrastructure Fund revenue recognition occurs when the Municipality has approved the
expenditures for eligible operating expenditures and capital works.

Details of the deferred revenue-obligatory reserve unds rep ed on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year:
Recreational land (the Planning Act) $ 7,109 $ 1,529
Building Code Act 35,731 56,579
Community-Building 58,230 67,704
Ontario Communit Infrastructure Fund 207 602 64 120
308,672 189,932
Received during the year:
Recreational land (the Planni ct 20,688 5,171
Community-Building 93,140 93,590
Ontario Community Inf r nd 153,173 180,204
Interest earned 12 318 12 076
279,319 291,041
Reco nized in revenue duri the r 264 191 172 301
Balance, end of year $ 323,800 $ 308,672
Recreational land (the Planning Act) $ 28,585 $ 7,109
Building Code Act - 35,731
Community-Building 26,599 58,230
Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund 268,616 207,602

Balance end of ear 323 800 308 672



16
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

(a) The balance of long-term debt reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is made
up of the following:

2024 2023
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation amortizing
debenture, due November 2036, repayable in semi-annual
payments of $22,911 including interest calculated at 2.77%. As
security, the Municipality has pledged future Provincial funding $ 465,099 $ 497,365
Proportionate share of Fire Department Ontario Infrastructure and
Lands Corporation amortizing debenture, due July 2028,
repayable in semi-annual payments of $15,703 including inte t
calculated at 2.97%. Secured by future Provincial funding 56,274 69,336
521 373 566 701

(b) Future estimated principal and interest payme on  g-term debt are as follows:

Principal Interest

2025 $ 46,619 $ 14,227

2026 47,947 12,900

2027 49,312 11,534

2028 50,716 10,131

2029 37,024 8,797

2030 onwards 289 755 30 995

521 373 88 584

(c) Total charges for the year for long-term debt which are reported in the financial statements are as
follows:

2024 2023

Principal payments $ 45,328 $ 44,073

Interest 15,192 16,456

$ 60,520 $ 60,529




17

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

11.

12,

TANGIBLE CAPITAL LEASE

In 2024, the Municipality entered into a lease agreement for a photocopier for a 60-month term ending
January 2029. This liability is accounted for on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at the
present value of future minimum lease payments, using a discount rate of 3.51%. Future minimum
lease payments are as follows:

2024 2023
2025 $ 2,527 $ -
2026 2,527 -
2027 2,527 -
2028 2,527 -
2029 210 -
Total minimum lease payments 10,318 -
Less amount re resentin interest 719 -
Present value of future minimum ca ital lease ments 9 599 -
Interest of $344 (2023 - NIL) relating to capital lea ations has been reported on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.
MPLOYEE BENEF ABLE
Under the sick leave benefits plan, si leave can accumulate to a prescribed maximum and
qualifying employees may beco enti d to cash payment when they leave the Municipality's
employment. The sick leave b it timates the use of accumulated sick leave prior to
retirement, as wellasanylu - u ments upon retirement, and assumes that both the appropriate
discount rate and future s w levels will increase by 2% per annum. The liability for these

accumulated days amou dto $2, 4 23 - $3,548) at the end of the year.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2024

18

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks arising from financial instruments and risk management

The Municipality is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The Municipality's overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
the potential adverse effects on the Municipality's financial performance.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Municipality if a debtor fails to honour its contractual
obligations. The Municipality is exposed to this risk as a result of its cash, investments and accounts
receivable. The carrying amounts of these financial assets on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position represent the maximum credit risk of the Municipality as at the reporting date.

The Municipality holds its cash and investments with a provincially regulated credit union who is insured
by the inancial ervices Regulatory Authority o ntario ("F "). FSRA insurance coverage is up to

$250,000 in aggregate.

Accounts receivable are primarily due from other |

Credit risk is mitigated by the financial solvency of t
ratepayer population and the potential for the M

taxes receivable. The amounts outstanding at ye n

overnme
ipali

vernment and municipal ratepayers.

the highly diversified nature of the

to tran er unpaid ratepayer receivables to
ere as follows:

2024
re Past Due Indeterminate TOTAL
Due Date

Federal ,023 $ - - $ 11,023
Provincial 8,664 - 67,844
Other municipalities 131,309 - 7,761 139,070
Ratepayers - planning-related - - 465 465
Other 68,943 - 189,046 257,989
Valuation allowance - - - -

Net receivables 249 939 197 272 476 391
2023

Current Past Due Indeterminate TOTAL
Due Date

Federal $ 30,162 $ - $ - $ 30,162
Provincial 385,813 - - 385,813
Other municipalities 79,641 - 9,215 88,856
Ratepayers - planning-related - - 182 182
Other 3,316 - 189,046 192,362
Valuation allowance - - - -

Net receivables $ 498,932 $ - $ 198,443 $ 697,375

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in exposure to credit risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.



19

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Municipality will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Municipality is exposed to this risk with respect to its accounts payable and accrued

liabilities and long-term debt. The Municipality maintains sufficient cash balances to meet its
obligations, and does not believe it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

The table below sets out the payable dates of the Municipality's accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
This includes planning-related accounts which have an indeterminate payable date as they are settled
when the related planning application has been finalized. The long-term debt repayment schedule is
disclosed in Note 10.

2024
Within 6 6 months to to 5 years Indeterminate TOTAL
months 1 year payable date
Accounts a able and accrued liabilities 412 032 820 - 105 965 650 817
2023
Withi 6m sto 1tob5years Indeterminate TOTAL
mon ly payable date
Accounts a able and accrued liabilities 72 1 8180 - 181 130 561 802
There have been no significant ges th  revious year in exposure to liquidity risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to
Market risk
Market risk is the risk t he fair  ue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. ket f ors include three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk

and equity risk. The Munica 't not exposed to significant currency or equity risk as it does not
transact materially in foreign ¢ ency or hold equity financial instruments. It is primarily exposed to
interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Municipality is exposed to interest rate risk
on its interest-bearing investments and long-term debt. Fixed-rate instruments subject the
Municipality to a fair value risk.

There have been no significant changes from the prior year in exposure to market risk or the policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.



20

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

14.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

When initially recording this obligation, the estimated present value of future cash flows for retirement
costs for assets in use are capitalized to the carrying amount of the associated assets, and amortized
over the useful life of the related asset. Subsequent revisions to the estimated cost are also capitalized
and amortized as part of the asset. Accretion of the discounted liability due to the passage of time is
recorded as an in-year expense.

The Municipality has recorded the following asset retirement obligations:

a)

b)

c)

A liability of $29,967 (2023 - $28,704) relating to designated substances in the Burk's Falls and
District Fire Department fire hall, which represents the Municipality's share of the estimated removal
and disposal costs as estimated at January 1, 2022, adjusted for accretion at a long-term borrowing
rate of 4.4%.

A liability of $8,520 (2023 - $8,161) relating to designated substances in the Armour, Ryerson and
Burk's Falls arena, which represents the Municipality's s re of the total discounted future cash
ftows for removal and disposal using an estimated long- borrowing rate of 4.4% (2023 - 4.4%)
and inflation rate of 2.6% (2023 - 2.6%).

A liability of $281,363 (2023 - $244,641) relati ot andfill closure and post-closure care

requirements for the landfill site jointly operate the To ip of Armour, the Village of Burk's
Falls and the Township of Ryerson through T R Co ittee, which has been defined in
accordance with industry standards and incl " | cover and landscaping of the landfill site,
management of groundwater and leachates, ongoing environmental monitoring and site
inspection.

The site is comprised of the origin  inacti te ea with a capacity of 58,000 cubic metres, and

an additional 27,700 capacity a , ro in March 2017, that is currently active. The liability
for both the inactive and acti area epre ts the total discounted future cash flows for closure

and post-closure care using s’ g-term borrowing rate of 3.92% (2023 - 4.14%) and
inflation rate of 2.6% 23 2.6%). The estimated remaining capacity of the site is
approximately 12,695 3, ) cubic metres, estimated to be filled in 12 years (2023 - 11

years). Post-closur reises at to be required for a period of 25 years.

The Municipality has re es  $353,982 (2023 - $325,943) related to the landfili site that could
be used to fund this liabili

The continuity of the asset retirement obligation reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position is shown below:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year $ 281,506 $ 245,168
Increase in liability reflecting changes in the estimated
cash flows, inflation and discount rate 29,487 30,330
Increase in liability due to accretion (the passage of time) 11,635 9,596
Decrease in liability due to change in Municipality's
proportionate share (2,778) (3,588)

Balance, end of year $ 319,850 $ 281,506




21
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

15. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The Municipality has contracted Tulloch Engineering Inc. for design and construction administration
services related to the replacement of North Pickerel Lake Road bridge at a cost of $185,000. To the
end of 2024, $104,992 of work under this contract had been performed. The balance of the work is
expected to be completed in 2025.

«
Q
v
Q



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2024

22

16. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
The tangible capital assets of the Municipality by major asset class are outlined below.
2024
Land Buildings and Machinery Vehicles Roads Assets Under TOTAL
and Land Leasehold and and Construction
Improvements __Improvements Equipment Bridges
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,399,434 $ 1,944,511 $ 923,693 $ 2,144,480 $ 24,859,947 $ 317,845 $ 31,589,910
Additions and betterments 201,828 140,214 48,772 413,285 699,795 51,425 1,555,319
Revaluation of tangible
capital assets - ARO 25,891 - - - - - 25,891
‘Shared services assets
redistribution (3,176) (222) (3,059) - - - (64 )
Disposals and writedowns (19,995) (17,869) (22,371) (103 ) (933,134) (915) (1,098,104)
Transfer between classes - 220,940 - - (220,940) -
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,603,982 2,287,574 947,035 2,453,9 24,626,608 147,415 32,066,559
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 297,232 861,961 436,6 ,039,654 10,794,206 13,429,741
Annual amortization 37,913 52,749 9,417 131,915 636,929 918,923
Shared services accumulated
amortization redistribution (2,144) (55) , - - - (3,873)
Amortization disposals (19,995) (9 (,71) (103,820) (928,339) - (1,084,050)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 313,006 5,130 47 60 1,067,749 10,502,796 - 13,260,741
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET ¢ 1,290,976 $ 1,3 $ 44975 ¢ 1,386,196 $ 14,123,812 $ 147,415 $ 18,805,818
2023
tand and Machinery Vehicles Roads Assets Under TOTAL
and Land ehold and and Construction
Improvements _ Improvements Equipment Bridges
cosT
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,340,230 $ 1,818,004 $ 868,333 $ 2,108,522 $ 25,002,645 $ 90,272 $ 31,228,006
Additions and betterments 51,622 154,941 72,273 35,958 316,335 227,573 858,702
Revaluation of tangible
capital assets - ARO 9,999 - - - - - 9,999
Shared services assets
redistribution (2,417) (332) (3,156) - - - (5,905)
Disposals and writedowns - (28,102) (13,757) - (459,033) - (500,892)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 1,399,434 1,944,511 923,693 2,144,480 24,859,947 317,845 31,589,910
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 268,151 832,632 393,165 920,981 10,623,910 - 13,038,839
Annual amortization 31,693 46,673 55,385 118,673 614,897 - 867,321
Shared services acqumylatgd
amortization redistribution (2,612) (74) (1,632) - = - (4,318)
Amortization disposals - (17,270) (10,230) - (444,601) - (472,101)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 297,232 861,961 436,688 1,039,654 10,794,206 - 13,429,741
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET ¢ 1,102,202 $ 1,082,550 $ 487,005 $ 1,104,826 $ 14,065,741 $ 317,845 $ 18,160,169




THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

23

16.

17.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Included in tangible capital assets are leased tangible capital assets with a cost of $11,572 (2023 - NIL)
and accumulated amortization of $1,157 (2023 - NIL).

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

The 2024 continuity of accumulated surplus reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position is as follows:

Balance Annual Balance
Beginning Surplus End of Year
of Year Deficit
RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS
Working capital $ 508 3,629 $ 396,137
COVID-19 funding 8 1,988
Benefits 15, (797) 14,494
Capital 886,13 (37,977) 1,848,161
Election 24,007 3,920 27,927
Fire 257,148 82,671 339,819
Fire Department 1,470 1,470
Roads and bridges 40,000 40,000
Waste disposal 325,943 28,039 353,982
Recycling 42,358 - 42,358
Hazardous waste 2,644 - 2,644
Hospital 156,881 132,822 289,703
Parks and recreation 141,402 25,259 166,661
Arena 113,213 7,595 120,808
Library 1,000 - 1,000
Library Board 29,686 2,389 32,075
Plannin and develo t 85 468 10 000 95 468
3,517,145 257,550 3,774,695
OTHER

Consolidated tangible capital assets 18,160,169 645,649 18,805,818

General operating surplus -
Municipality 544,253 (228,436) 315,817
Cemetery 6,039 842 6,881
Library 3,033 2,657 5,690
ACED 5,730 282 6,012
Unfinanced capital - (322,050) (322,050)

Unfunded amounts -

Long-term debt (566,701) 45,328 (521,373)
Tangible capital leases - (9,599) (9,599)
Employee benefits payable (3,548) 974 (2,574)
Asset retirement obligations (281,506) (38,344) (319,850)

$ 21,384,614 $

354,853 $ 21,739,467




24

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

18.

SEGMENT DISCLOSURES AND EXPENSES BY OBJECT

The Municipality and its Boards and Committees provide a wide range of services to its citizens. The
schedule of segment disclosure provides a breakdown of the annual surplus (deficit) reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations by major reporting segment. The segments correspond to the
major functional categories used in the Municipality's Financial Information Return, which include the
following activities:

General Government

This segment includes Council, Clerk's Department, and Treasury. This area supports the operating
departments in implementing priorities of Council and provides strategic leadership on issues relating to
governance, strategic planning and service delivery.

Protection to Persons and Property
T is segment includes fire, police, building inspection, and law enforcement. Police services are
provided by the Ontario Provincial Police under contract.

Transportation Services
Transportation services include roadway systems an nter con

Environmental Services
This segment includes solid waste management.

Health Services
This segment includes cemeteries, am ance es well as payments to the district health unit.

Social and Family Services

This segment consists primarily a de to the district social services administration board
and home for the aged for r on of social services such as childcare, social housing, general
assistance and assistance e r

Recreation and Culture
This segment includes par re tion programs, recreation facilities, library services and cultural
services such as museums.

Planning and Development
This segment includes activities related to planning, zoning and economic development.

Unaliocated Amounts

Items are recorded as unallocated amounts when there is no reasonable basis for allocating them to a
segment. Major items included in this category are property taxation and related penalty and interest
charges, and unconditional grants such as the Municipality's annual Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund
grant.

In the preparation of segmented financial information, some allocation of expenses is made. This
generally includes charges of administration costs and rent to specific segments.



25
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

18.  SEGMENT DISCLOSURES AND EXPENSES BY OBJECT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
General Protection to Health Social and Recreation Planning Unallocated Consolida d
Government Persons and Services Services Services Family an and Amounts
Property Services Cultural Services Development
REVENUE
Property taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ 3,347,782 $ 3,347,782
User charges 16,935 3,450 188 37,572 - - 166,124 8,686 - 232,955
Government transfers -
Canada - = 127,003 - - 12,246 25,308 - 164,557
Ontario - 13,750 101,457 32 - - 43,419 8,057 729,800 929,421
Other municipalities 22,654 243,085 4,978 3 - - 977 - - 272,567
Gain (loss) on disposal of
tangible capital assets - 4,109 (4,795) - - - (8,344) - - (9,030)
Restructuring net expense - - - - - - - (1,679) - (1,679)
Other 6 369 60 329 2078 98 13 664 - 50 890 1 065 271 452 434 533
TOTAL REVENUE 45 958 324 723 249 611 13 664 - 265 312 41437 4349034 5371106
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 578,630 555,187 484 3 5,476 - - 319,350 50,838 - 2,123,834
Long-term debt charges (interest) 344 1,786 - - - - - - 15,536
Materials 110,474 129,2 1347 38,813 - B 206,840 12,517 - 566,237
Contracted services 119,332 43 471 59,043 136,048 - 122,383 54,601 - 951,296
Rents and financial expenses 2,335 ,062 1 8 7,437 - - 5,353 - - 34,825
External transfers 16,649 - - 51,715 319,862 5,741 - - 393,967
Interfunctional adjustments (963) 0 (1,134) 1,126 - - 261 - - -
Amortization 13,064 51, 747,057 19,188 - - 87,621 274 - 918,923
Accretion of ARO liabili - 126 - 10013 - - 359 - - 11 635
TOTAL EXPENSES 839,865 1,180,391 1,351,138 271,096 187,763 319,862 747,908 118,230 - 5,016,253

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFIC 793,907 855,668) $(1,101,527 189,729 174,099 319,862 482,596 76,793 4,349,034 354,853



26
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURES AND EXPENSES BY OBJECT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
General Protection to Health Social and Recreation ] Unall C
Government Persons and Services Services Services Family and and Amounts
Property Services Cultural Services Development
REVENUE
Property taxes $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 3,241,016 $ 3,241,016
User charges 5,688 3,424 2,670 30,884 - 57,511 11,790 - 111,967
Government transfers -
Canada - - 105,657 - 1,526 17,420 - 124,603
Ontario - 10,326 45,796 3 2 - - 311,212 34,845 739,800 1,176,551
Other municipalities 8,063 72,312 3,300 647 - - 1,297 3,191 - 88,810
Loss on disposal of tangible
capital assets (2,269) - (14,432) (€] - - (10,556) - - (28,207)
Restructuring net revenue - - - - - - 1,037 - 1,037
Other 6182 204 058 12 859 7 799 - 49 226 - 291 419 577 243
TOTAL REVENUE 17 664 290 120 1 50 8 7 799 - 410 216 68 283 4272235 5293020
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 541,702 424,278 49 61,643 - - 165,124 37,109 - 1,821,316
Long-term debt charges (interest) - 2,171 ,285 - - - - - - 16,456
Materials 102,614 8 905 31,837 - - 147,697 6,109 - 587,495
Contracted services 130,641 , 57 1 4 67,198 128,504 - 93,773 93,285 - 963,272
Rents and financial expenses 2,405 551 2, 36 3,514 - - 3,770 - - 13,876
External transfers 14,976 - - - 56,200 304,690 5,000 - - 380,866
Interfunctional adjustments (974) 1, (2,552) (1,478) - - 4,000 - - -
Amortization 11,001 34,43 728,597 14,572 - - 78,471 244 - 867,321
Accretion of ARO liability - - - 9,252 - - 344 - - 9,596
TOTAL EXPENSES 802,365 982,530 1,464,445 286,538 184,704 304,690 498,179 136,747 - 4,660,198

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $ (784,701) $ (692,410) $(1,308,595) $ (215,685) $ (176,905) $ (304,690) $ (87,963) $_(68,464) $ 4,272,235 $ 632,822




THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

27

19. RESTRUCTURING NET REVENUE

In 2019 the Municipality entered into a joint services agreement for Almaguin Community Economic

Development ("ACED"). The agreement included the following independent organizations:
The Corporation of the Township of Perry;
The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour;
The Corporation of the Township of Ryerson;
The Corporation of the Village of Sundridge;
The Almaguin Highlands Chamber of Commerce;
The Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan;
The Corporation of the Municipality of the Village of Burk's Falls;
The Corporation of the Township of Strong;
The Corporation of the Village of South River;
The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan;
The Corporation of the Township of Joly.

The Corporation of the Township of Ryerson withdrew the agreement effective December 31,
2023, and the Municipality of Magnetawan and the M ipa of Powassan withdrew in 2022. The
Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteit ecame ntributing member in 2024. The

assets, liabilities and surplus at the time of memb ipc ngesa retained by ACED.

The Municipality recorded net expense of $1,67 023 - revenue $1,037) as a result of this
restructuring. The value of the tangible s re ed is recorded as a shared services asset

redistribution in Note 16.

20. BUDGET FIGURES

The budget adopted for the curr ar prepared on a modified accrual basis, and has been
restated to conform with t n and reporting standards applicable to the actual results. For
unbudgeted items (amor tion an le capital assets and asset retirement obligation accretion),
the actual amounts for 4 were d to adjust the reported budgeted amounts. A reconciliation of

the adopted and reported b etsi resented below.

Budget
ADOPTED BUDGET:
Decrease in general municipal operating surplus $ (150,000)
Decrease in reserves and reserve funds (664,863)
Decrease in joint board general operating surplus (3,014)
ADJUSTMENTS:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 3,646,354
Amortization of tangible capital assets (918,923)
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets (4,784)
Accretion of asset retirement obligation (11,635)
Net increase in long-term debt (1,336,871)
ANNUAL SURPLUS $ 556,264




28

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

21.

22.

PENSION AGREEMENTS

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (OMERS),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of certain members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the
length of service and rates of pay. Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of
OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the Plan) by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the
estimated present value of all pension benefits that members have earned to date. The most recent
act arial valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31, 2024. The results of this valuation
disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $142,489 million with respect to benefits accrued for service with
actuarial assets at that date of $139,576 million indicating an actuarial deficit of $2,913 million.
Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any Plan surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of
Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the Municipality does not recognize
any share of the Plan surplus or deficit.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2024 was $143,986 3 -$121,586) for current service and is
included as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of tions.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain prior year figures presented for comparativ oses have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted for the current year.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
TRUST FUNDS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024




THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
CONTENTS

Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Statement of Financial Position 3
Statements of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 4
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to the Financial Statements 7-10



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the embers of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The | unicipal Corporation of the Township of Armour

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour Trust
Funds (“the Trust Funds”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024,
and the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net financial assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements  resent fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Municipal Corporation of the Township o our Trust Funds as at December 31, 2024,
and its results of operations, its changes in its net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector a %ounting standards.

Basis for Opin‘o

We conducted our audit in accordan w{iéh Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those stan ards are urther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements sectio . of our report. We are independent of the Trust Funds in accordance
with the ethical require ts that are;relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our other ethica responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we  ve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities a ge nt ndThose Charged with Go ernance for the Fina cial
Sta ments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust Fund’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust Funds
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust Fund’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor's o sibilities for the udit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a materia! misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust Fund's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting  Ici sed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures madeb  anagem

e« Conclude on the appropriateness of man ent's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidenceo =~ d, her a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast signific n the Trust Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that eri  ncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the rel d s in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify o n. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our audi re . ever, future events or conditions may cause the Trust Funds to

cease to continue going oncern.

o Evaluate the overall pr ation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,373 $ 10,452
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 547 626
Net Financial Assets and Accumulated Surplus $ 9,826 $ 9,826

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Annual Surplus $ - $ -
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 9,826 9,826
Accumulated Surplus, end of year $ 9826 $ 9,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Annual surplus and increase in net financial assets $ - $ -
Net financial assets, beginning of year 9,826 9,826
Net financial assets, end of year $ 9,826 $ 9,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Operating transactions
Annual surplus $ - $ -
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (79) 295
Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions (79) 295
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (79) 295
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,452 10,157
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 10,373 $ 10,452

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The financial statements of the trust funds of the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour (the
"Township") are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting policies is
provided in Note 1. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safe uarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopt y the nship are as follows:

(i) Reporting Entity

The financial statements re e ets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
Township's trust funds. The 's assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are
reported separately in wn ip's consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Basis of accountin
Sources of rev penses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenue isre nized t e year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as t ar incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or
services and the cr n of a legal obligation to pay.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include balances held at financial institutions and short-term
deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

(iv)  Investments
Investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest.

(v) Revenue Recognition
Capital receipts are recognized when received.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at co t and
subsequently carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial
instruments measured at fair value are expensed as incurred. Unrealized gains and
losses on financial assets are recognized in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and
Losses. Once realized, remeasurement gains and losses are transferred to the
Statement of Operations. A Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses is not
presented as there are no matt rs to r port th r in.

Financial instruments classified as amortized cost are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost usi  the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses on financial assets. he effective interest rate method allocates
interest income or interest expense er e relevant period, based on the effective
interest rate. Transaction costs r ed to ncial instruments in the amortized cost
category are added to the carryin al of the instrument.

Financial assets measured at iz cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Pre ‘o cognized impairment losses are reversed to the
extent of the improve r ded the asset is not carried at an amount, at the date
of the reversal, great h e ount that would have been the carrying amount had
no impairment loss b ec ized previously. The amounts of any write-downs or
reversals are re he Statement of Operations.

Financial liabiliti or rt of a financial liability) are removed from the Statement of
Financial Position , and only when, they are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Township's financial instruments are measured according to the following methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method
Cash and cash equivalents Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue.
New Section PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not
apply to revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers or restricted
revenues. The Section distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that include
performance obligations (i.e., exchange transactions) and transactions that do not have performance
obligations (i.e., non-exchange transactions). The Township has adopted this new standard
prospectively. The adoption of this new standard had no impact on these financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - Purchased Intangibles.
The main features of PSG-8 include a definition of purchased intangibl s (which do s not include those
received through government transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions), examples of items that
are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on intangibles and
reference to the asset definition, general recognition crite ° and the GAAP hierarchy for accounting for
purchased intangibles. The Township has adopted thi ew guideline prospectively. The adoption of
this new guideline had no impact on these financialst m s.

On January 1, 2024, the Township adopted Publi e Accounting Standard PS 3160 - Public Private
Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 establishes st ards on how to account for partnerships between

public and private sector entities where inf ct is procured by a public sector entity using a
private sector partner that is obligated to d "d, acquire or better infrastructure; finance the
infrastructure past the point where the st  ure is ready for use and operate and/or maintain the
infrastructure. Infrastructure typic in de items such as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also inclu = m  at are intangible in nature. The Township has adopted
this new standard prospectively a tion of this new standard had no impact on these financial

statements.



10
THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR TRUST FUNDS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Risks arising from financial instruments and risk management

The Township is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. There have been no
changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures and methods used to
measure the risk.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Township if a debtor fails to honour its contractual
obligations. The Township is exposed to this risk as a result of its cash and cash equivalents. The
carrying amounts of these financial assets on the Statement of Financial Position represent the
maximum credit risk of the Township as at the reporting date. The Township do s not b li v it is
subject to significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Township will not b le to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Township is exposed to this risk h pect to its accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. The Township maintains sufficient ca  balanc to meet its obligations, and does not
believe it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fu r lows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. Market fact clu three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk

and equity risk. The Townshipdoes tb ve isexposed to significant market risk.

4. CARE AND MAINTENANCE FU

The care and maintenance fun nistered by the Township is funded by the sale of cemetery
interment rights and markers. The e funds are invested and earnings derived therefrom can be used
to perform maintenance at the Township's cemetery. The operations and investments of the fund are
undertaken by the Township in accordance with the regulations of the Funeral, Burial and Cremation
Services Act, 2002.



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024




BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report

Statement of Financial Position

Statements of Operations and Accumulated Deficit
Statement of Change in Net Debt

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page

1-2



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Contributing Municipalities of
the Burk's Falls, Armour and Ryerson TRI R Committee

O inion
We have audited the financial statements of the Burk's Falls, Amour and Ryerson TRI R Committee
(“the Committee”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the

statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net debt and cash ows or the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Burk’s Falls, Ammour and Ryerson TRI R Committee as at December 31, 2024, and its
results of operations, its changes in its net debt, and’i s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standggds.

Basis f r Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standafd re further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements secti n ofo r e%ort. We are independent of the Committee in accordance
with the ethical requirements. hat are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our oth r ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have o tained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

esponsibili ‘es of Manag mentand Those Char edw’ G ernance for the Financi |
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Committee’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Committee or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Committee’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor R sponsibilities for the Audito e F'nancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  isstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Committee’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting  Ici sed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures madeb  anagem

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of man ent's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidenceo =~ d, her a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast signific t n the Committee's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that eri  ncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the rel d s in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify o] . Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of ouraud” sre . wever, future events or conditions may cause the Committee to
cease to continue going oncern.

e Evaluate the overall pr ation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Accounts receivable $ 21,623 $ 22,825
Inventories held for resale 3,780 4,480
25,403 27,305
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 29,409 32,431
Deferred revenue 1,336 -
Asset retirement obligations (Note 4) 584,233 502,213
614,978 534,644
NET DEBT (589,575) (507,339)
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets - net (Note 5) 361,290 344,474
Inventories of su lies 5 342 5126
366 632 349 600
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT Note 6 222 943 157 739

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 7)
REVENUE
Municipal contributions
Township of Armour 143,908 $ 100,201 117,843
Township of Ryerson 98,431 68,922 80,604
Village of Burk's Falls 53,082 38,937 43,468
Other government transfers 63,000 68,392 70,970
User charges 145,000 187,168 176,335
Other 15,710 20,732 9,751
TOTAL REVE UE 59 3 484,352 498,9 1
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 4,231 281,313 331,833
Materials and supplies 9,700 80,578 65,349
Contracted services 00 109,586 125,462
Rents and financial expenses 9, O 17,443 9,214
Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,844 39,844 29,914
Accretion of asset retirement obli ations 20 792 20 792 18 992
TOTAL EXPENSES 579 767 549 556 580 764
ANNUAL DEFICIT (Note 6) (60,636) (65,204) (81,793)
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT BEGINNI 157 739 157 739 75 946
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT ENDOFY 218 375 222 943 157 739

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 7)

Annual deficit $ (60,636) $ (65,204) $ (81,793)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - (2,900) (12,000)
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO - (53,760) (20,527)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,844 39,844 29,914
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 1,950
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets - - 1,200
Change in supplies inventories - (216) 969
Increase in net debt (20,792) (82,236) (80,287)
Net debt, beginning of year (507,339) (507,339) (427,052)
Net debt end of ear 52 131 589 575 507 339

X~
QQ‘

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023

Operating transactions
Annual deficit
Non-cash charges to operations:

(65,204) $ (81,793)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,844 29,914
Accretion expense on ARO liability 20,792 18,992
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO (53,760) (20,527)
Change in ARO liability excluding accretion
and settlements 61,228 62,264
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,950
2,900 10,800
Changesi o0 - s i
Accounts receivable 1,202 (13,839)
Inventories held for resale 700 490
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,022) 12,380
Deferred revenue 1,336 -
Inventories of su lies 216 969
Cash rovided b o eratin transactions 2900 10 800
Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,900) (12,000)
Proceeds from dis osal of tan ible ca ita ts - 1200
Cash a lied to ca ital transactions 2900 10 800

Net chan eincashandcashe uiv n

Cash and cash e uivalents be inni n ndof ear

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

The Burk's Falls, Armour and Ryerson TRI R Committee (the "organization") is a joint committee of the
Corporation of the Municipality of the Village of Burk's Falls, the Municipal Corporation of the Township of
Armour, and the Corporation of the Township of Ryerson, who contribute towards the net expenditures of the
organization in the following proportions: Burk's Falls - 18.71%; Armour - 48.16%; Ryerson - 33.13% (2023
Burk's Falls - 17.97%; Armour - 48.71%; Ryerson - 33.32%).

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The financial statements of the organization are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the
Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant
accounting policies is provided in Note 1. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use
of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded = compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available o timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies adopted by the g on are as follows:

Basis of Accounting

(i) Accrual basis of account’
Revenue and expense re re on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized
in the year in which ‘'s e ed and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable esult of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal

obligation to pay.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances held at financial institutions and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

(iii) Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities but are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(a) Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset, as well as
any asset retirement obligations related to the asset. Borrowing costs related to the
acquisition of tangible capital assets are expensed in the year incurred. The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Land improvements - 20 years
Buildings - 40 years
Machinery and equipment - 10 to 20 years

One half of the a nual amo izaio is r i y o acquisition and in the year of
disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.

Estimated closure and post-closure expenses fo  tive landfill sites as well as the land occupied
by the sites and related land improvements a m ‘zed annually on the basis of capacity used
during the year as a percentage of the esti ed tota  pacity of the landfill site.

Tangible capital assets received as atio are recorded at their fair value at the date of
receipt.

(b) Inventories of supplies
Inventories held for consum ded at the lower of cost and replacement cost.

Government transfers

Government transfers reco nized in the financial statements as revenue when the transfer
is authorized and any eli ilI" criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations
give rise to an obligation t meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as
deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is
recognized in the Statement of Operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Deferred revenue

The organization defers recognition of revenue when related performance obligations are not
executed by the Statement of Financial Position date. Revenue is recorded when the
performance obligation is executed.

Pensions
The organization accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement
System (OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution plan.



BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial instruments measured at
fair value are expensed as incurred. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets are
recognized in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. Once realized,
remeasurement gains and losses are transferred to the Statement of Operations. A statement
of remeasurement Grains and Losses is not included as there are no matters to report therein.

Financial instruments classified as amortized cost are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses on financial assets. The effective interest rate method allocates interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period, based on the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are added to
the carrying value of the instrument.

Financial assets measured at amortized c a tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Previously reco zed im ment losses are reversed to the extent
of the improvement, provided the asset i t rried at an amount, at the date of the reversal,
greater than the amount that would ave en the carrying amount had no impairment loss
been recognized previously. The a 0 y write-downs or reversals are recognized in
the Statement of Operations.

Financial liabilities (or parto fi " iability) are removed from the Statement of Financial
Position when, andonly w are ischarged, cancelled or expire.

The organization's fina linst ments are measured according to the following methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method

Accounts receivable Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Asset retirement obligations
A liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized when, at the financial reporting date,

all of the following criteria are met:

- there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a capital asset;
- the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;

- it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and

- a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recorded at an amount that is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
retire a capital asset at the financial statement date. The liability is subsequently reviewed at
each financial reporting date and adjusted for the passage of time and for any revisions to the
timing, amount required to settle the obligation or the discount rate. When an asset retirement
obligation is initially recognized, a corresponding asset retirement cost is added to the carrying
value of the related capital asset when it is still in productive use. This cost is amortized over
the useful life of the capital asset. If the related capital asset is unrecognized or no longer in
productive use, the asset retirement costs are expensed.



10

BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ix) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.
These estimates and assumptions are based on management's historical experience, best
knowledge of current events and actions that the organization may undertake in the future.
Significant accounting estimates include estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets and
estimated costs and timing of asset retirement obligations. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

There is a measurement uncertainty surrounding the estimation of liabilities for asset retirement
obligations of $584,233. T esee i u j t o u certainty because of several factors
including, but not limited to estimated settlement dates, estimated costs and change in the
discount rate. These estimates are reviewed annually and, as adjustments become necessary,
they are recorded in the period in which they beco  known.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY - ADOPTION OF ACC TING STANDARDS
On January 1, 2024, the organization adopted Pu ector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue.

New Section PS 3400 establishes standards w ccount for and report on revenue. It does not
apply to revenues for which specific standa s y exist, such as government transfers. The
Section distinguishes between reven ha rises from transactions that include performance
obligations (i.e., exchange transacti ) d t nsactions that do not have performance obligations
(i.e., non-exchange transactions). T ion has adopted this new standard prospectively. The
adoption of this new standard h ’ t on the opening balances.

On January 1, 2024, the or izati adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - Purchased
Intangibles. The main features o -8 include a definition of purchased intangibles (which does not
include those received through overnment transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions),
examples of items that are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on
intangibles and reference to the asset definition, general recognition criteria and the GAAP hierarchy for
accounting for purchased intangibles. The organization has adopted this new guideline prospectively.
The adoption of this new guideline had no impact on the organization's financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, the organization adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3160 - Public
Private Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 establishes standards on how to account for partnerships
between public and private sector entities where infrastructure is procured by a public sector entity
using a private sector partner that is obligated to design, build, acquire or better infrastructure; finance
the infrastructure past the point where the infrastructure is ready for use and operate and/or maintain
the infrastructure. Infrastructure typically includes items such as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also include items that are intangible in nature. The organization has
adopted this new standard prospectively. The adoption of this new standard had no impact on the
organization's financial statements.



11
BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

i arising from financial i ments and risk man ent
The organization is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. There have been no

changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures and methods used to
measure the risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the organization if a debtor fails to honour its co tractual
obligations. The organization is exposed to this risk as a result of its accounts receivable, which are
due from contributing municipalities and have an indeterminate repayment date. The carrying
amounts of the accounts receivable on the Statement of Financial Position represents the maximum

credit risk of the organization as at the reporting date. The organization does not believe it is subject
to significant credit risk.

Liquidi isk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the organization will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The organization is exposed to this risk wi  espect to its accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, which are composed solely of amounts due employees in regard to wages and benefits
earned but not yet paid at the financial statement e. ese amounts are all expected to be paid
within the next 12 months. The carrying amoun of the unts payable and accrued liabilities on
the Statement of Financial Position represents th um liquidity risk of the organization as at the
reporting date. The organization's accounts ayab nd accrued liabilities are settled by a contributing

municipality, who maintains sufficient cash b t eet its obligations. The organization does not
believe it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

et risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair al fu e cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. Mar r ° clude three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity risk. The organiz nisn e posed to significant currency, interest rate or equity risk as

it does not transact materially i rei currency, does not have interest-bearing financial instruments
and does not hold equity financial 1 uments.



12
BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

4. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The organization has recorded an asset retirement obligation with respect to its landfill closure and
post-closure care requirements, which have been defined in accordance with industry standards and
include final cover and landscaping of the landfill site, management of groundwater and leachates, and
ongoing environmental monitoring and site inspection.

When initially recording this obligation, the estimated present value of future cash flows for closure and
post-closure costs for active landfill sites are capitalized to the carrying amount of the associated
assets, and amortized over the operating life of the site, in proportion to its utilized capacity. Revisions
to the estimated cost are also capitalized and amortized as part of the asset. When a site becomes
inactive, the related assets are derecognized. For both active and inactive sites, accretion of the
discounted liability due to the passage of time is recorded as an in-year expense.

The organization's landfill site is comprised of the original, inactive, site a ea with a apaci o 58,000
cubic metres, and an additional 27,700 capacity area, approved in March 2017, that is currently active.
The liability for both the inactive and active areas represents the total discounted future cash flows for
closure and post-closure care using an estimated long-te  borrowing rate of 3.92% (2023 - 4.14%)
and inflation rate of 2.6% (2023 - 2.6%). The imated remaining capacity of the site is
approximately 12,695 (2023 - 13,509) cubic metr es ated to be filled in 12 years (2023 - 11
years). Post-closure care is estimated to be requir forap ° d of 25 years.

The continuity of the asset retirement obligati n for site is shown below:

2024 2023
Balance, beginning of year $ 502,213 ¢ 420,957
Increase in liability reflecting ch i e estimated
cash flows, inflationand di unt e 61,228 62,264
Increase in liabilit duetoaccr "n t assa e of time 20 792 18 992

Balance, end of year $ 584,233 $ 502,213




13
BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

5. TANGIBLE C L ASSETS

The tangible capital assets of the organization by major asset class are outlined below. Landfill
closure-related transactions and balances are reported as land and land improvements.

2024
Land and Land Buildings Machinery and TOTAL
Improvements Equipment
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 490,592 39,249 $ 416,204 $ 946,045
Additions and betterments - - 2,900 2,900
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO 53,760 - - 53,760
Disposals and writedowns (41,51 ) - - (41, 18)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 502,834 39,249 419,104 961,187
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year ,21 9,539 231,814 601,571
Annual amortization 1 41 982 22,221 39,844
Amortization disposals 518) (41,518)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR ,341 10,521 254,035 599,897
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET $ 167,493 28,728 $ 165,069 361,290
2023
Land and Land Buildings Machinery and TOTAL
Improvements Equipment
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 470,065 39,249 $ 408,704 $ 918,018
Additions and betterments - - 12,000 12,000
Revaluation of tangible capital assets - ARO 20,527 - - 20,527
Disposals and writedowns - - (4,500) (4,500)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 490,592 39,249 416,204 946,045
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 352,945 8,558 211,504 573,007
Annual amortization 7,273 981 21,660 29,914
Amortization disposals - - (1,350) (1,350)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 360,218 9,539 231,814 601,571
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET $ 130,374 $ 29,710 $ 184,390 $ 344,474




14
BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

6. ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

The 2024 continuity of accumulated deficit reported on the Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

Balance Annual Balance
Beginning Surplus End of Year
of Year (Deficit)
Tangible capital assets $ 344,474 $ 16,816 $ 361,290
Unfunded asset retirement obligations (502,213) (82,020) (584,233)

$ (157,739) $ (65,204) $ (222,943)

7. BUDGET FIGURES

The budget adopted for the current year was prepared on a modified accrual basis, and has been
restated to conform with the accounting and reporting standards applicable to the actual results. For
unbudgeted items (amortization of tangible capital asset and asset retirement obligation accretion),
the actual amounts for 2024 were used to adjust the r  rted budgeted amounts. A reconciliation of
the adopted and reported budgets is presented below

Budget
ADOPTED BUDGET:
Change in general operating surplus $ -
ADJUSTMENTS:
Amortization of tangible capital et (39,844)
Accretion of asset retirement obli ns 20 792

ANNUAL DEFICIT $ (60,636)




BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

15

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions below are in the normal course of operations and are measured at their
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related

parties.

The following table summarizes the organization's related party transactions with its contributing

municipalities during the year:

2024 2023
Municipal contributions
Township of Armour $ 100,201 $ 117,843
ownship o yerson 68,922 80,604
Village of Burk's Falls 38,937 43,468
User fees
Township of Armour 53,031 55,443
Township of Ryerson 33,039 31,683
Village of Burk's Falls 60 55
Expenses
Township of Armour
Payment in lieu of taxes 3,668 3,639
Office rent 2,000 2,000
Winter maintenance 1,741 1,701
At the end of the year, amounts r  contributing municipalities are as follows:
Townshi of Armour 21 623 22 825

The amounts due from contributing
are non-interest bearing, with no specific terms of repayment.

unicipalities are reported in accounts receivable.

These amounts



16
BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

9. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE AND EXPENSES BY OBJECT

The schedule of segment disclosure and expenses by object provides a breakdown of the annual surplus reported on
the Statement of Operations between waste disposal and recycling activities. Items are recorded as unallocated
amounts when there is no reasonable basis for allocating them between the two segments. Major items included in
this category are employee wages, insurance, winter maintenance, utilities, office rent, audit expense, payments in
lieu of taxes and the municipal contributions received to fund these items. Since municipal contributions are
calculated on a modified accrual basis, unallocated items are fully funded in the year, while some segment-specific

items such as amortization and asset retirement obligation accretion are not.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Waste Disposal Recycling Unallocated Total
Amounts
REVENUE
Municipal contribution required -
Township of Armour $ (44,570) $ (4,317) $ 149,088 $ 100,201
Township of Ryerson (30,657) (2,970) 102,549 68,922
Village of Burk's Falls (17,321) (1,678) 57,936 38,937
Other Government transfers -
Ontario - 68,392 - 68,392
User charges 187,168 - - 187,168
Other - 20 732 - 20 732
TOTAL REVENUE 9 0 80 159 309 573 484 352
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits - - 281,313 281,313
Materials 39, 28,335 13,140 80,578
Contracted services 4 51,824 13,120 109,586
Rents and financial expenses , 3 - 2,000 17,443
Amortization of tangible capital assets 32,854 6,990 - 39,844
Accretion of asset retirement obli ation 0792 - - 20 792
TOTAL EXPENSES 152 834 87 149 309 573 549 556
ANNUAL SURPLUS DEFICIT 58 214 6 990 - 65 204
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBE 23
Waste Disposal Recycling Unallocated Total
Amounts
REVENUE
Municipal contribution required -
Township of Armour $ (59,170) 5,966 $ 171,047 $ 117,843
Township of Ryerson (40,471) 4,081 116,994 80,604
Village of Burk's Falls (21,825) 2,200 63,093 43,468
Other Government transfers -
Ontario - 70,970 - 70,970
User charges 176,335 - - 176,335
Loss on disposal of capital assets - (1,950) - (1,950)
Other - 11,701 - 11,701
TOTAL REVENUE 54,869 92,968 351,134 498,971
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits - - 331,833 331,833
Materials 19,471 34,725 11,153 65,349
Contracted services 69,922 49,392 6,148 125,462
Rents and financial expenses 7,214 - 2,000 9,214
Amortization of tangible capital assets 23,412 6,502 - 29,914
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 18,992 - - 18,992
TOTAL EXPENSES 139,011 90,619 351,134 580,764
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $ (84,1431 $ 2,349 $ - $ (81,793)




17

BURK'S FALLS, ARMOUR AND RYERSON TRI R COMMITTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

10.

PENSION AGREEMENTS

The organization makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (OMERS),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of certain members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the
length of service and rates of pay. Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of
OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the Plan) by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the
estimated present value of all pension benefits that members have earned to date. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31, 2024. The results of this valuation
disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $142,489 million with respect to benefits accrued for service with
actuarial assets at that date of $139,576 million indicating an actuarial deficit of $2,913 million.
Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any Plan surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of
Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the organization does not recognize
any share of the Plan surplus or deficit.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2024 was $15,961 (2023 - $21,631) for current service and is
included as an expense on the Statement of Operations.



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024




ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CONTENTS
Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Statement of Financial Position 3
Statements of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 4
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assvets 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to the Financial Statements 7 -14



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Contributing Municipalities of
the Almaguin Community Economic Development

Oiio

We have audited the financial statements of the Almaguin Community Economic Development (“the
Organization”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, ch rige in net financial assets and cash flows for

the year then ended, and notes to the financial s tements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial stat  ents present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as at Dece ber 31, 2024, and its results of operations, its changes in its
net financial assets, and its cash flows for'the year-then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

B is for Opinion

We conducted our audit ir% a rdance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under tho  standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statemen s secti n of our report. We are independent of the Organization in accordance
with the ethical requirements at are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

on ibilities of Management and Those Charge with Go ernan e for the Fin nc’al
te en

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial reporting
process.



Audito s Responsi ilities for the Audit of the cial Sta ements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement , whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's intemal contro

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting  Ici sed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures madeb  anagem

» Conclude on the appropriateness of man ent's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidenceo ° d, her a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significa n the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that eri  ncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the rel d s in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify o n. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of ouraud” s . wever, future events or conditions may cause the Organization

to cease to continu ago concem.

e Evaluate the overall pr ation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

North Bay, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Accounts receivable (Note 7) $ 61,715 $ 51,103
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,103 16,530
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 39,612 34,573
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets - net (Note 4) 22,127 23,778
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 5) $ 61,739 $ 58,351

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD &

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 6)
REVENUE
Grants
FedNor $ 154,702 $ 150,997 $ 117,731
OMAFRA 30,000 23,182 45,077
NOHFC 13,500 17,105 17,896
Member contributions (Note 7) 204,816 204,816 151,730
Other 5,000 6,489 -
TOTAL REVENUE 408,018 402,589 332,434
EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 305,315 310,407 250,806
Implement Almaguin Brand Strategy project ,000 54,475 93,360
Other materials and supplies 203 27,881 29,081
Other contracted services 0 4,787 4,447
Amortization 1 1651 1651
TOTAL EXPENSES 409 669 399 201 379 345
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (Note 5) 1,651) 3,388 (46,911)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS BEGINNING O E 58 351 58 351 105 262
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS END OF Y 56 700 61 739 58 351

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Budget Actual Actual
2024 2024 2023
(see Note 6)
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (1,651) $ 3,388 (46,911)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,651 1,651 1,651
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets - 5,039 (45,260)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 34,573 34,573 79,833
Net financial assets, end of year $ 34,573 $ 39,612 34,573

«
Q

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Actual Actual
2024 2023
Operating transactions
Annual surplus (deficit) 3,388 $ (46,911)
Non-cash charges to operations:
Amortization 1,651 1,651
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts receivable (10,612) 41,242
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,573 4,018
Cash provided by operating transactions g =
Net change in cash and cash equivalents = =
Cash and cash eguivalents‘ beginning and end of year - $ -

<<&

X~
Q@

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

Almaguin Community Economic Development ("ACED") was initially formed in October 2019 under a joint
service agreement between:

The Corporation of the Township of Perry (Perry);

The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour (Armour);

The Corporation of the Township of Ryerson (Ryerson);

The Corporation of the Village of Sundridge (Sundridge);

The Almaguin Highlands Chamber of Commerce (the Chamber of Commerce);

The Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan (Magnetawan);

The Corporation of the Municipality of the Village of Burk's Falls (Burk's Falls);

The Corporation of the Township of Strong (Strong);

The Corporation of the Village of South River (South River);

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan (Powassan);

The Corporation of the Township of Joly (Joly).

Magnetawan withdrew rom the agreement e ective June 9, 2022, Powassan withdrew effective January 1,
2023 and Ryerson withdrew effective January 1, 2024. The Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith
(McMurrich/Monteith) became a contributing member on July 1, 2024.

The formal cost sharing agreement was in effect until Decem , 2023, when the CIINO grant for regional

economic development expired. Commencing in 20 , m Dber parties contribute based on an
assessment/population/household-based contribution for

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The financial statements of ACED are the resp ‘lit  f management and have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accountin  ri r local governments established by the Public Sector
Accounting Board of the Chartered Profes ‘on cco ants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting
policies is provided in Note 1. The pre ‘nancial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates

based on management's judgment, rticul y hen transactions affecting the current accounting period
cannot be finalized with certainty until e iods.

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies adopted by ACED are as follows:

Basis of Accounting

(i) Accr sis of accountin
Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue from
transactions with performance obligations is recognized when (or as) the performance
obligation is satisfied by providing the promised goods or services to the payer. Performance
obligations are defined as enforceable promises to provide specific goods or services to a
specific payer. Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations is recognized when
ACED has the authority to claim or retain the revenue and identifies a past transaction or event
that gives rise to an asset. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances held at financial institutions and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities but are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(a) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset, as well as
any asset retirement obligations related to the asset. Borrowing osts elated to e
acquisition of tangible capital assets are expensed in the year incurred. The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Land improvements - 20 years

One half of the annual amaortization is r in the year of acquisition and in the year of
disposal. Assets under construction e no ortized until the asset is available for productive
use.

Tangible capital assets receiv do tions are recorded at their fair value at the date of
receipt.

Government transfers

Government transfers reco ized in the financial statements as revenue when the transfer is
authorized and any eligib c eria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give
rise to an obligation that m the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred
revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the
Statement of Operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Pensions and employee benefits
ACED accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement System
(OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution plan.



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified as either fair value, amortized cost or cost.

Financial instruments classified as fair value are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
carried at fair value. Financing fees and transaction costs on financial instruments measured at
fair value are expensed as incurred. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets are
recognized in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. Once realized,
remeasurement gains and losses are transferred to the Statement of Operations. A Statement
of Remeasurement Gains and Losses is not included as there are no matters to report therein.

Financial instruments classified as amortized cost are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
imp irm nt loss s on financi | assets. The effective interest rate method allocates interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period, based on the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are added to
the carrying value of the instrument.

Financial assets measured at amortized ¢ a tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Previously reco zed im ment losses are reversed to the extent

of the improvement, provided the asset i t rried at an amount, at the date of the reversal,
greater than the amount that would ave en the carrying amount had no impairment loss
been recognized previously. The a o y write-downs or reversals are recognized in

the Statement of Operations.

Financial liabilities (or part o fi " iability) are removed from the Statement of Financial
Position when, and only w are ischarged, cancelled or expire.

ACED's financial instru  nts ar m asured according to the following methods:

Financial instrument Measurement method
Accounts receivable Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting

standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.
These estimates and assumptions are based on management's historical experience, best
knowledge of current events and actions that ACED may undertake in the future. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.



10
ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

2. CHANGE CCOUNTING POLICY - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2024, ACED adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3400 - Revenue. New
Section PS 3400 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue. It does not apply
to revenues for which specific standards already exist, such as government transfers. The Section
distinguishes between revenue that arises from transactions that include performance obligations (i.e.,
exchange transactions) and transactions that do not have performance obligations (i.e., non-exchange
transactions). ACED has adopted this new standard prospectively. The adoption of this new standard
had no impact on ACED's financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, ACED adopted new Public Sector Guideline PSG-8 - Purchased Intangibles. The
main features of PSG-8 include a definition of purchased intangibles (which does not include those
received through government transfer, contribution or inter-entity transactions), examples of items that
are not purchased intangibles, reference to other guidance in the Handbook on intangibles and
reference to the asset definition, general recognition criteria and th GAAP hi rarchy for ccounting for
purchased intangibles. ACED has adopted this new guideline prospectively. The adoption of this new
guideline had no impact on ACED's financial statements.

On January 1, 2024, ACED adopted Public Sector unting Standard PS 3160 - Public Private
Partnerships. New Section PS 3160 establishes stan ds how to account for partnerships between
public and private sector entities where infrastru re is p ured by a public sector entity using a
private sector partner that is obligated to desig b , acquire or better infrastructure; finance the
infrastructure past the point where the infras ructu s ready for use and operate and/or maintain the

infrastructure. Infrastructure typically incl ’ uch as tangible capital assets (i.e., complex
network systems), but may also include ite e intangible in nature. ACED has adopted this
new standard prospectively. The ad o is new standard had no impact on ACED's financial

statements.



11
ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Ri arising from financial in ents and risk ement
ACED is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. There have been no changes from
the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to ACED if a debtor fails to honour its contractual obligations.
ACED is exposed to this risk as a result of its accounts receivable, which are due from a contributing
municipality (with no specific terms of repayment) and from the Provincial government (expected to be
collected within six months). The carrying amounts of the accounts receivable on the Statement of
Financial Position represents the maximum credit risk of ACED as at the reporting date. ACED does not
believe it is subject to significant credit risk.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that ACED will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.
ACED is exposed to this risk with respect to its accounts payable and accrued liabilities, which are
composed solely of amounts due to employees in regard  wages and benefits earned but not yet paid
at the financial statement date. All amounts owing ar ected to be paid within the next 12 months.
The carrying amounts of the accounts payable an  ccr liabilities on the Statement of Financial
Position represents the maximum liquidity risk o CED as the reporting date. ACED's accounts
payable and accrued liabilities are settled by a ¢ ri  ing municipality, who maintains sufficient cash
balances to meet its obligations. ACED does otb ve it is subject to significant liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair val ut cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of market factors. Market fa rs - three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity risk. ACED is not expo e ignt cant currency, interest rate or equity risk as it does not
transact materially in foreign c s not have interest-bearing financial instruments and does

not hold equity financial instr nts.

4. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Details of the tangible capital assets owned by ACED are provided below.

2024 2023
Land Land
Improvements Improvements
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 33,025 $ 33,025
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 33,025 33,025
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 9,247 7,596
Amortization 1,651 1,651
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 10,898 9,247

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-NET $ 22,127 $ 23,778




12
ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

5. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

The 2024 continuity of accumulated surplus reported on the Statement of Financial Position is as

follows:

Balance Annual Balance
Beginning Deficit End of Year

of Year
Tangible capital assets $ 23,778 $ (1,651) $ 22,127
General operating surplus 34,573 5,039 39,612
$ 58,351 $ 3,388 $ 61,739

6. BUDGET FIGURES

The budget adopted for the current year was prepared n a modified accrual basis, and has been
restated to conform with the accounting and reporting ndards applicable to the actual results. The
budget for amortization, which is excluded from the op budget, has been set equal to the actual
2024 amount. A reconciliation of the adopted and orted gets is presented below.

Budget
ADOPTED BUDGET:
Change in general operating sur $ -
ADJUSTMENTS:
Amortization of tangible capital ass s (1,651)

ANNUAL DEFICIT $ (1,651)




13
ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions below are in the normal course of operations and are measured at their
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related

parties.
The following table summarizes ACED's related party transactions with its contributing members during
the year:
Annual Annual
Contribution Contribution
2024 2023
Member contributions
Perry $ 46,254 $ 28,825
Armour 33,969 22,450
Strong 31,321 21,145
Ryerson - 16,265
South River 20,268 15,391
Sundridge 20,075 15,310
Burk's Falls 19,980 15,307
McMurrich/Monteith 13,937 -
Chamber of Commerce 10,000 10,000
Jol 9012 7 037
204 816 151 730
At the end of the year, amounts ontributing members are as follows:
2024 2023
Armour $ 51,060 $ 50,538

The amounts due are non-interest bearing, with no specific terms of repayment.

8. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

Since ACED's operations are not considered diverse and operations are managed as one department, no
segment disclosure has been provided.



14

ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2024

9.

10.

EXPENSES BY OBJECT

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the Statement of Operations by the object of
the expense.

2024 2023
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 310,407 $ 250,806
Materials and supplies 61,953 36,426
Contracted services 25,190 90,462
Amortization 1,651 1,651
$ 399,201 $ 379,345

PENSION AGREEMENTS

ACED makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Em ee Retirement Fund (OMERS), which is a

multi-employer plan, on behalf of certain members of i ff. The plan is a defined benefit plan which
specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be cei by the employees based on the length of
service and rates of pay. Each year an independ a tua etermines the funding status of OMERS
Primary Pension Plan (the Plan) by comparing t arial value of invested assets to the estimated
present value of all pension benefits that m ber ave earned to date. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the Plan was conducted at Dece 4. The results of this valuation disclosed total
actuarial liabilities of $142,489 million wi re enefits accrued for service with actuarial assets
at that date of $139,576 million indic n uarial deficit of $2,913 million. Because OMERS is a
multi-employer plan, any Plan sur se icits are a joint responsibility of Ontario municipal
organizations and their employee resu , ACED does not recognize any share of the Plan surplus
or deficit.

The amount contributed to OME fo 024 was $21,999 (2023 - $17,381) for current service and is
included as an expense on the Stat ent of Operations.



Date Printed
2025-09-04 1:19 PM

Township of Armour

List of Accounts for Approval
Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078

Bank Code - AP - Armour A/P

Page 1

COMPUTER CHEQUE

Payment # Date Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
19263 2025-08-26 All Ways Plumbing Inc.

2007 G - WF storage building plumbing 5,254.50 5,254.50
19264 2025-08-26 Almaguin Anglers Association

2025 Donation G - Fishing Derby Donation 500.00 500.00
19265 2025-08-26 Coliins Valu-mart

Aug 6/25 Tri R - Water 13.50

Aug 11/25 G - Water 14.97

Aug 12/25 G - Sugar cubes 3.99

Aug. 12/25 G - Council Meeting 82.92

Aug 15/25 Tri R - Water/drinks/milk 29.07 144.45
19266 2025-08-26 Crooked Creek Ranch

933 KCC - Horse Camp #5 745.80 745.80
19267 2025-08-26 Fred Dean

Aug 15/24 G - CW - Lame Duck Council 25425 254.25
19268 2025-08-26 Henderson Tree Care

25020 G - DL boat launch tree 1,808.00 1,808.00
19269 2025-08-26 Jamie Bosworth

Dep. Refund KCC - Cleaning Deposit 65.00 65.00
19270 2025-08-26 Jennifer Joiner

Aug 19/25 KCC - Day Camp Swimming Less¢ 1,620.00 1,620.00
19271 2025-08-26 North Bay & District Chamber of Comn

6846 G - EDC - RCIP annual contributio 2,500.00 2,500.00
19272 2025-08-26 Minister of Finance

380608250911006 G - June OPP 36,075.00 36,075.00
19273 2025-08-26 The Royal Canadian Legion

Sept 26/23-01 G - 2026 Military Ad 650.00 650.00

Total Computer Cheque: 49,617.00
EFT

Payment # Date Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
5939 2025-08-26 Amazon.com.ca Inc.

CAS5BJRQIIXGI TRI R - Carabiner D rings x 2 31.40

CA528X2F6ACCUI KCC - Renters cleaning closet - m 61.01

CA528XDJPACCUI KCC - Renters cleaning supplies 42.26

CAS5EDKO09AT7CI KCC - Renters cleaning storage ce 37.28

CA530SLH2562I KCC - Renters cleaning toilet brusl 36.48

CA52BH8AGHAI KCC - Renters cleaning supplies - 21.36

CA5H80OHS8LAOSI KCC - Renters cleaning supplies - 14.67

CA51CURGRCNI G - Keyboard/mouse 79.09

CA52V0OGMOZzQl KCC - Daycamp t-shirts 8pk x 2 67.18

CA529WCE9ACCUI G - Cabinet for laminator 209.04

CA52vZGMOZzQl KCC - Daycamp t-shirst 8pk x 3 101.82

CA52VSGMOzQl KCC - Daycamp t-shirst 8pk x 2 65.98 767.57
5940 2025-08-26 Annette Gilpin

Aug 8/25 KCC - Refund Deposit 225.00 225.00
5941 2025-08-26 Brampton Painting Co. Ltd.

2494 G - Office painting 7,260.25 7,260.25



Township of Armour

Date Printed List of Accounts for Approval
2025-09-04 1:19 PM Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078 Page 2
EFT

Payment # Date Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
5942 2025-08-26 Burk's Falls Home Hardware,

93755 Tri R - Insecticide 2pk 28.24 2824
5943 2025-08-26 ClayMar Electric

4546 G - WF relocate hot water tank 189.84 189.84
5944 2025-08-26 Client First Canada

2746 G - Website Hosting 610.20 610.20
5945 2025-08-26 ConstructConnect Canada Inc.

INV01695299 Rds - Duncor complete ad 2025-0: 339.00 339.00
5946 2025-08-26 Courtney Metcalf

Jul/Aug 2025 G - 641.9KM - 7/9-8/7 382.01 382.01
5947 2025-08-26 Dave Hall Excavating

PC 19 2025 G - Office septic system 31,623.21 31,623.21
5948 2025-08-26 Duncor Enterprises Inc

2025135 Rds - Micro Surface Treatment 198,154.76 198,154.76
5949 2025-08-26 Environmental 360 Solutions

245583 G - Dobbs Beach 244 43

245589 G - Doe Lake park 28452

245588 KCC - Rental 244 .43

245587 G - Thompson Rapids 24443

245586 G - Halcyon Beach 24443

245585 G - Watt Farm 284.52

245584 G - Jack Lake 244 .43 1,791.19
59850 2025-08-26 Glen Martin Limited

421717 KCC - Cleaning supplies 243.74 243.74
5951 2025-08-26 Hayes' Service Centre

14397 G - Bylaw RVR tires 1,075.76 1,075.76
5952 2025-08-26 Home Building Centre

4302983 G - HF vendors market screws 8.46

4303028 G - HF twine/wasp spray 2597

2265226 Rds - 1/2Ib carbon line 18.07 52.50
5953 2025-08-26 Innov8 Office Solutions

408917 G - Canon Copies 8/9-9/8 282.84 282.84
5954 2025-08-26 Melissa Marshall

Aug 13/25 KCC - MM Cell 50% Rec Program: 32.05

Aug 19/25 KCC - Repairs/daycamp/Fashion fi 175.20 207.25
5955 2025-08-26 Near North Industrial Solution

102009 Rds - 3’ cam lock gasket x 4 10.40 10.40
5956 2025-08-26 Olympic Printing

2025-17 TRI R - Receipt Books 694.95 694.95
5957 2025-08-26 Professional Loss Control Inc

INV06534 G - Hazard Mitigation Analysis 2,491.65 2,491.65
5958 2025-08-26 Print Muskoka

10201 G - Envelopes x 5000 825.24 825.24
5959 2025-08-26 Purolator Inc

590197335 Historical Society shipment 15.55 15.55
5960 2025-08-26 Recyc-Mattress Inc

3014885 : Tri R - Mattress Recycling 3,423.90 3,423.90
5961 2025-08-26 Rod Ward

Aug 17-18/25 G - RW AMO Conference 8/17-8/1 686.79 686.79
5962 2025-08-26 Three Mile Truck and Trailer

2967 Rds - Coolant leak repair 1,167.28 1,167.28



Township of Armour

Date Printed List of Accounts for Approval

2025-09-04 1:19 PM Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078 Page 3
EFT

Payment # Date Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
5963 2025-08-26 Tulloch Engineering Inc.

2030024 G - 8/15 Peer Reviews - BES Facil 7,585.84 7,585.84
5964 2025-08-26 Russell Christie LLP In Trust

Land Transfer T G - Land Transfer Tax-Tax Sale 1,502.78 1,502.78

Total EFT: 261,637.74
OTHER

Payment # Date Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
1 2025-08-26 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13725 - AM G - Visa Expenses 1,225.92 1,225.92
1 2025-09-09 Bell Mobility

Aug 27/25 Cell Phones 488.94 488.94
2 2025-08-26 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13/25 - CM KCC - Visa Expenses 283.34 283.34
2 2025-09-09 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug 27/25 KCC - 7/5-8/2 1,150.30 1,150.30
3 2025-08-26 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13/25 - CW KCC - Visa Expenses 43.80 43.80
3 2025-09-09 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug. 27/25 G - 12 3 Mile 7/5-8/2 352.47 352.47
4 2025-08-28 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13/25 - DM KCC - Visa Expenses 138.88 138.88
4 2025-09-09 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug 27, 2025 G - Park 7/5-8/2 53.27 53.27
5 2025-08-26 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13/25 - Dav G - Visa Expenses 587.40 587.40
5 2025-09-09 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug 29/25 G - WF 7/8-8/7 93.81 93.81
6 2025-08-26 Collabria Visa (KCU)

Aug 13/25 - Dou G - Visa Expenses 46.69 46.69
6 2025-09-09 Lakeland Energy

115-008723 KCC - Internet 175.09 175.09
7 2025-08-26 Enbridge Uniongas

Aug 14/25 Tri R - 6/11-8/11 32.91 32.91
7 2025-09-09 Lakeland Energy

115-009764 G - Office Internet 124.24 124.24
8 2025-08-26 Francotyp-Postalia Canada Inc.

Aug 12/2025 G - Postage 2,825.00 2,825.00
8 2025-09-09 Minister Of Finance

August 2025 G - August EHT 3,015.48 3,015.48
9 2025-08-26 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug 14/25 G - Office 6/19-7/22 806.00 806.00
9 2025-09-09 Newt Fibernetics Corporation

754151 KCC - Phones 98.81 98.81
10 2025-08-26 Hydro One Networks Inc.

Aug 18/25 Rds - 6/19-7/23 569.20 569.20
10 2025-09-09 Newt Fibernetics Corporation

755185 G - Office Phones 152.31 152.31
11 2025-08-26 Canada Revenue Agency



Township of Armour

Date Printed List of Accounts for Approval

2025-09-04 1:19 PM Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078 Page 4
OTHER
Payment # Date Vendor Name
Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
Aug 1-15/25-001 G - CRA 001 18,210.18 18,210.18
Aug16-31/25-001 G - CRA 001 17,837.99 17,837.99
12 2025-08-26 Canada Revenue Agency
Aug 1-15/25-002 G - CRA 002 3,561.02 3,561.02
Aug16-31/25-002 G - CRA 002 2,796.65 2,796.65
13 2025-08-26 Telus Health Canada Ltd
2408477 G - Telus Health 65.26 65.26
13 2025-09-09 The Benefits Trust
September 2025 Group Benefits 13,999.83 13,999.83
14 2025-09-09 Hydro One Networks Inc.
Aug. 29/25 TriR - 7/8-8/7 105.81 105.81
Total Other: 68,840.60
PROPOSED PAYMENTS
Payment # Vendor Name
Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
PP - AFC Inc
7665 Rds - Grader repairs 1,399.64 1,399.64
PP - Abell Pest Control Inc
45254240 G - WF Annual Service 694.23
AT7290271 KCC - Pest Centrol 68.32 762.55
PP - Amazon.com.ca Inc.
CA53ATBNHIAI TRI R - Hi Vis pants 89.52
CAS5I0417Z8I TRI R - Hi Vis jacket 36.80
CA515J17Z38! TRI R - Hi Vis jacket x 2 75.52 201.84
PP - Battlefield Equipment -Ontario
64081623 Tri R - Skidsteer Rental 3,830.19 3,830.1¢
PP - Bracebridge Chamber of Commerce
18158 G - EDC Tariff event 60.59 60.59
PP - Collins Valu-mart
Aug 25/25 G - Tri Council snacks 41.23
Aug 26/25 G - Council Meeting 56.11 97.34
PP - Corporate Express
70812291 G - Paper 74.50
709024767 G - Bldg permit paper 124.50 199.00
PP - Crooked Creek Ranch
930 KCC - Horse Camp #4 745.80 745.80
PP - Dollywood Foundation of Canada
0925522 KCC - Literacy Program 138.35 138.35
PP - Eastholme Home For Aged
Sept 2025 G - 3rd Quarter 35,753.75 35,753.75
PP - Fowler Construction Co. Ltd.
88087 Rds - Gravel - flood road repairs 84,155.34 84,155.34
PP - Glen Martin Limited
421831 KCC - Cleaning supplies 99.29
4218311 KCC - Cleaning supplies 157.94 257.23
PP - Gradall of Muskoka Inc.
128 Rds - Flood road repair/ditching 25,916.55 25,616.55
PP - Hamilton & Sons Property
2253 G - Groundskeeper Sept/WF field | 6,539.88 6,539.88



Township of Armour

Date Printed List of Accounts for Approval
2025-09-04 1:19 PM Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078 Page 5
PROPOSED PAYMENTS

Payment # Vendor Name

Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
PP - Hayes® Service Centre

14460 Rds - Tire install x 2 289.28 289.28
PP - Klink Enterprises

825 G - August cleaning/open & close 2,802.40 2,802.40
PP - Linde Canada Inc

51080812 Rds - Cyl Lease 1 yr 507.60 507.60
PP - Local Authority Services

MGBP000021255 Rds - Kal Tire - studded link chains 220.96 220.96
PP - Megan Yemm

Sept 2/25 G - 7/29-8/28 - MY Mileage 317.36 317.36
PP - Metroland Media Group

7757572 G - Tax Sale ad 89.27 89.27
PP - Moore Propane Limited

1444539 Tri R - Cyl Rent 27.12 27.12
PP - North Bay Parry Sound District

September 2025 G - September Levy 3,873.42 3,873.42
PP - OMERS

August 2025 G - August OMERS 2468744 24,687.44
PP - Purolator Inc

535168693 G/Rds -Tax Sale/Tender/AM Shipn 213.50

510191269 G - Tax Sale chq 6.10 219.60
PP - Rec-Check Inspections Inc.

24011 G - Playground inspections 1,333.40 1,333.40
PP - Robert J Miller

INV025-040 G - August Retainer 1,884.00 1,884.00
PP - Russell Christie

Aug 26/25 G - Site Plan Baker 579.57

Aug. 26/25 G - Site Plan Johnstone 578.89

Aug 27/25 G - #1-60901 Tax Arrears 584.71 1,743.17
PP - Ryan Gohlich

Aug 26/25 KCC - Deposit refund 65.00 65.00
PP - Shell Burks Falls

August 2025 G/Rds - Bylaw/CBO/Rds Fuel 777.55 777.55
PP - TJB Construction

1112 Rds - Jul 21-25 road repair/ditchin 7,672.70 7,672.70
PP - The Engraving Shoppe

103981 G - Heritage Festival trophy plates 57.63 5§7.63
PP - Town of Kearney

TOK-25-005 G - Lunch clerk/treas meeting 8/21 30.00 30.00
PP - Town of Parry Sound

September 2025 G - September Land Ambulance 11,925.36 11,925.36
PP - Tulloch Engineering Inc.

2030293 Rds - N Pickerel L.ake Bridge 19,663.02

2030331 G - Peggs Mountian Rd studies 12,543.00 32,206.02
PP - W.0. Stinson & Son Ltd.

109001898 Rds - 1700.1L Clear Diesel 2,275.56

109001899 Rds - 1663.5L Dyed Diesel 2,057.39

109001900 Tri R - 1550.8L Dyed Diesel 1,918.01 6,250.96
PP - Waste Connection of Canada Inc

7113-0000356951 Tri R - August Comingled 692.23 692.23

PP - Xerox Canada Ltd



Date Printed

Township of Armour
List of Accounts for Approval

2025-09-04 1:19 PM Batch: 2025-00072 to 2025-00078 Page 6
PROPOSED PAYMENTS
Payment # Vendor Name
Invoice # Reference Invoice Amount Payment Amount
F64609409 G - 7/28-8/26 copies 403.15 403.15
Total Proposed Payments: 258,133.67
Total AP: 638,229.01

Certified Correct This September 4, 2025

Treasurer

NET August Rugoll: ¥107 884 44

Total : $746, 13- 45

Mayor



(18

RECEIVED
TO NSHIP OF ARMOUR
AUG 2 7 2025 Application for a Zoning By-la Amendment
TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR Under Section 34 of the Planning Act
1. General Information
Registered Owner | ~ ,z]‘)‘/ ¥ Telephone No.
—~+— 2V ALD M v
116 98 1930
Address Postal Code

16 Nucry Can”

0 130

Applicant / Agent

Telephone No.

> v 716 /4 o
Address Postal Code
16 2wy (v FoA 130
Agent or Solicitor Telephone No.

N/A

Address Postal Code

Mortgagee Telephone No.
A /[A

Address ’ Postal Code

All correspondence should be sent to:
2. Location of Property

M Owner

D Applicant D Agent/Solicitor

Lot Concession
Registered Plan No. Lot(s) Reference Plan No. Part(s)
[

Municipal Address Parcel No.
3. Particulars of Property (in metric and imperial units
Frontage Depth Area

| [
4. Related Land Division
a. How long has the subject property been in the owner's possession?
b. Is the 66 ft. shore road allowance owned by the applicant (if applicable)? D Yes D No

0

If consent to sever is required, has a severance application been made?

D No D Yes File No.

Note: If a decision on the severance has been made, please enclose a copy of the decision with this application.

Does the proposed amendment involve a subdivision or condominium application?

Ministry of Municipal Affairs No.

Ij No D Yes

LE SE 55‘5 ﬁ‘m‘}\]{—fb /]'D}jpum Page 10f 3

S LOTH



TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
Application for a Zoning By-law Amendment
Under Section 34 of the Planning Act

12.  Types of Servicing
This property will be serviced by (please check appropriate boxes):

i. Water Supply D Private Well I___] Other (specify)

ii. Sewage Disposal D Private Septic D Other (specify)

ii. Storm Drainage System D Ditches or Swales D Pipes/Culverts
iv. Road Access and/or Frontage D Name of Road

A Local Public Road

Water Access Only

A Provincial Highway

Private Road or Right-of-Way
Other (specify)

v. Lake Frontage Name of Lake

HN/ NN

13.  Affidavit or Sworn Declaration

I, b()/'/m‘b MUQW?V of the Aﬂmwﬂ ,/ZLUA)SH/‘P
nthe _ DISTRILT ol 'PﬂLRT SDU/D'A

(District, Region or County)

make oath and say (or solemnly declare) that the information contained in this application is
true and that the information contained in the documents that accompany this application is
true, and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true, and knowing
that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath, and by virtue of the “Canadian
Evidence Act’.

Sworn (or declared before me)
at the

(Municipality)

in the
(District, Region or County)

this day of , 20

Applicant’s Signature Commissioner of Oaths

Page 3 of 3



TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR
Application for a Zoning By-law Amendment
Under Section 34 of the Planning Act

5. Existing Use of Property
D Permanent Residential D Seasonal Cottage D Industrial D Commercial

D Farmiland D Vacant D Other

6. List any Existing Buildings or Structures on the Property

Buildings or Structures All Yard Setbacks Building Ground Building| Year Erected
Dimensions | Floor Area | Height | (if known)

Front | Rear | Side | Side

Previous Use of Property (Before Present Use)

HERIEEE

Residential D Industrial D Commercial D Farmland
Vacant D Other
8. Proposed Use of Property, and why the Amendment is Required
D Residential D Industrial D Commercial D Farmiand
D Vacant D Other
Need for Amendment "\"L_G S = Z Va - [;ﬁ

9. List of Proposed Buildings or Structures (Zoning Application Only)

' Buildings or Structures All Yard Setbacks Building Dimensions Ground Building
Floor Area Height

Front | Rear | Side | Side

10. Armo_r Township Official Plan Designation
Existing

Proposed

11.  Armour Township Zoning

Existing

Proposed

Page2of 3



To: Armour Council August 26, 2025

Re: Addendum to Application to Amend Armour Township Zoning By-law No. 27-95, As
Amended

This addendum is attached to the above-referenced Application to Amend the Armour Township
Zoning By-law to provide details where the application form is lacking sections to provide details
of the proposed amendments.

The purpose of the proposed amendments is to bring the Definitions of “Development” and
“Lot Area” plus the “Zone Requirements” for the “Wetlands Protection Zone” into full
consistency with the Provincial Planning Statement (2025).

1. Existing Zoning Regulation
Definitions 2.53  "Development" means the construction or erection of buildings or
structures on, or the excavation of land.
Proposed Modification in bold Italics
Definitions 2.53  "Development" means the construction or erection of buildings or
structures on, or the excavation of land or the creation of a new lot, or a change of land
use. (note - directly from PPS 2024 definitions)

2. Existing Zoning Regulation

Definitions 2.111  "Lot Area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot,
but shall not include any area below the high-water mark. (See also Section 2.90)
Proposed Modification in Bold Italics

Definitions 2.111  "Lot Area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot,
but shall not include any area below the high-water mark or any land within the Wetlands
Protection Zone. (See also Section 2.90)

3. Existing Zoning Regulation
WETLANDS PROTECTION ZONE

8.2 "Zone Requirements"

(a) No buildings shall be permitted in the Wetlands Protection Zone except for existing
single detached dwellings or cottages where additions, alterations or the reconstruction of
the same buildings on the same building footprints shall be permitted provided that
buildings comply with the provisions of the relevant Seasonal Residential SR, Lakeshore
Residential LR, Rural Ru and Flood Plain FP Zones.

Proposed Madification in Bold Italics

WETLANDS PROTECTION ZONE

8.2 "Zone Requirements"



(a) No buildings or new development shall be permitted in the Wetlands Protection Zone
except for existing single detached dwellings or cottages where additions, alterations or the
reconstruction of the same buildings on the same building footprints on the same lot shall
be permitted provided that buildings comply with the provisions of the relevant Seasonal
Residential SR, Lakeshore Residential LR, Rural Ru and Flood Plain FP Zones.



ROBERT J. MILLER Land Use Planning Services

15 Brock Street RR#3 NIAGARA-ON-THE-LAKE ONTARIO LOS 1J0  905.468.0582 cell/txt 289.213.4421

Robert J. Miller
Professional Land Use Planner
Email plansifter@gmail.com

September 3, 2025 VIA EMAIL clerk@armourtownship.ca
Township of Armour RECt.

c/o Mrs. Charlene Watt, Municipal Clerk

56 Ontario Street SEP 0 4 2025

Burk’s Falls, ON POA 1C0O TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Dear Mrs. Watt, Mayor Rod Ward and Members of Council:

RE: Proposed Amendments to Armour Zoning By-law “Definition of Development”
and “Definition Lot Area”, plus “Wetlands Protection Zone Requirements”

This planning report is in response to your request for a review of the above applications to
make additions to three Sections of the Armour Township Zoning By-law which apply to
significant wetlands on Deer Lake, “to bring them into full consistency with the Provincial
Planning Statement (PPS 2025)".

Proposed

There are no deletions proposed to the Armour Zoning By-law. Simply proposed additions
which are shown in bold Italics in three Sections of the Zoning By-law as follows:

Definitions 2.53  "Development" means the construction or erection of buildings or structures
on, or the excavation of land or the creation of a new lot, or a change of land use. (directly
from PPS 2024 definition)

Definitions 2.111  "Lot Area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot, but
shall not include any area below the high water mark or within the Wetlands Protection
Zone. (See also Section 2.90)

WETLANDS PROTECTION ZONE

8.2 "Zone Requirements"

(a) No buildings or new development shall be permitted in the Wetlands Protection Zone
except for existing single detached dwellings or cottages where additions, alterations or the
reconstruction of the same buildings on the same building footprints on the same lot shall be
permitted provided that buildings comply with the provisions of the relevant Seasonal
Residential SR, Lakeshore Residential LR, Rural Ru and Flood Plain FP Zones.

Regarding matters of Provincial interest, Section 2 Planning Act

e Noissues
e The first of 20 listed “matters of Provincial interest” is “a) the protection of ecological



Mrs. Charlene Watt
Armour Township
September 3, 2025
Page 2

systems, including natural areas, features and functions;”

Regarding all applicable tests, Zoning By-laws, Section 34(1) Planning Act

No issues. Attention to “significant” as follows.

34(1)3.2(i) “Zoning by-laws may be passed by the councils of local municipalities: 3.2
For prohibiting any use of land and the erecting, locating or using of any class or classes
of buildings or structures within any defined area or areas, (i) that is a significant wildlife
habitat, wetland, woodland, ravine, valley or area of natural and scientific interest.”

Consistency with Provincial Planning Statement, 2024 (PPS)

e Noissues

e Section 4.1(4a) “Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in significant
wetlands in Ecoregion S5E” (Parry Sound District).

e MNR wetland regulations in Ontario changed significantly in 2024 with the introduction of
Ontario Regulation 41/24, which established a standardized 30-meter regulated buffer
around all significant wetlands, a unifying change from the previous 120-meter buffer
for certain Provincially significant wetlands. There are two designated significant MNR
wetlands on Deer Lake — the mouth of Tank Lake Creek and the north shore of Lot 24,
Concession 1.

Consistency with Growth Plan For Northern Ontario

e No issues

Conformity with applicable policies of the Armour Township Official Plan

e No issues.

The best way to illuminate the work done by Armour on significant wetlands mapping in the
Official Plan is to quote from my progress report to Council in 2005.

“To Armour Council December 8, 2005

On December 14th, 2005 a Core Team meeting is scheduled in the Armour Council
Chambers by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing under their One Window services
system. This meeting will initiate the phase of the project where a series of new Official Plan
policies will be drafted.

It is prudent to meet the core ministry representatives before drafting new policies. For
example, | am anticipating a major package of policy information from the Ministry of



Mrs. Charlene Watt
Armour Township
September 3, 2025
Page 3

Natural Resources at the meeting next week. | would encourage Council to question the
Ministry representatives on any current planning and land use issues in Armour Township.

To date, the following work has been done:

. Detailed land use survey with GPS spatial references

. Assist Anna Goldberg with GIS base mapping

. Prepared geo-corrected arc base map exhibit

. Two discussion sessions with Council

. September 2005 Public Open House session in Katrine

. Special Planning Program website created

. Reviewed written responses from the public

. Review roads information, mapping and Township office data

. Lakes analysis, development pressures, biological capacities, recreational

capacities, surface areas and relationship with MOE records

. Reviewed sensitive data from Ministry of Northern Development & Mines including
closed mine shaft mapping

. Reviewed soils capability mapping for agriculture and potential bio-energy production
locations

. Exploring MOE wind turbine regulations and other municipalities’ by-laws governing
wind energy

. Reviewed MTO policy requirements for new Official Plans

. MNR/DUC (Ducks Unlimited Co.) partnership Significant Wetlands mapping CD

for Armour Township - generated following the Wetland Planning Workshop in
October 2005 attended by Wendy Whitwell and myself



Mrs. Charlene Watt
Amour Township
September 3, 2025
Page 4

. Reviewed Burk’s Falls ground water aquifer study and mapping

. Obtained license for Armour Township internet access to the Land Information
Ontario Warehouse including a data subscription system to the Ontario Land
Information Directory (OLID) and password access to the Natural Resource Values
Information System (NRVIS) data base

. Obtained complete MNR GIS plots of Fish Habitat Classification Mapping for
Armour Township

. Reviewed new Official Plan programs underway for Town of Huntsville, Township of
Seguin, Township of Magnetawan and MMAH modifications for final approval of
Official Plans for Ryerson Township, Town of Kearney and Township of McMurrich-
Monteith

. Analysing population data, projected declines, school board vacancy issues and
projected wave of retirees

I am looking forward to meeting with you and Council on December 13th in advance of the
MMAH Core Team meeting on December 14th.

Conformity with provisions of the Armour Township Zoning By-law

e No issues.

Progress letter and the digital “smart map” conversion of the Armour Zoning By-law mapping
including MNR significant wetlands mapping in 2008.

Report to Council, April 4, 2008

Many of the Flood Plain FP Zoned areas in Armour are actually swamps and bogs. These have
been replaced in the updated OP and on the new Zoning map schedules with official MNR
Significant Wetlands mapping - directly imported MNR map files. Zoning provisions need to

be added to the Zoning By-law as directed by MNR in the OP resource information package
provided in 2005 to Reeve Richard Thomas and Council.

Compliance with Armour Requirements for Complete Application

e No issues

This application to update certain sections of the Armour Zoning By-law should be accepted and



Mrs. Charlene Watt
Armour Township
September 3, 2025
Page 5

publicized as part of the ongoing provincial planning process for significant wetlands, thereby
representing good planning.

Yours very truly

Robert J. Miller



®

THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

BY-LAW #54-2025

Being a by-law to confirm the proceedings
of Council at its meeting.

WHEREAS Section 5 of the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, Chapter M.25, as amended,
requires a municipal Council to exercise its powers b by-law, except where
otherwise required,;

AND WHEREAS Council or a Committee of Council often authorizes action to be
taken which does not lend itself to an individual by-law;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Armour deems it desirable to
confirm the proceedings of Council at its meetings hereinafter set out.

Be it enacted as a By-law of The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour
hereby enacts as follows:

1. Ratification and Confirmation

That the action of this Council at its meetings set out below with respect to
each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken by this Council at
its meetings (except where the prior approval of The Ontario Land Tribunal
(OLT) is required) is hereby adopted, ratified a d confirmed as if such
proceedings and actions were expressly adopted and confirmed by By-law;

Regular Council Meetings
» August 12, 2025
» August 26, 2025
TRI Council Meeting
» August 25, 2025

2. Execution of all Documents

That the Mayor of the Council and the proper off'cers of the Township of
Armour are hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where required and except
where otherwise provided, the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and
directed to execute all necessary documents and to affix the corporate seal
of the Township of Armour to such documents.

3. Administrative Corrections

The Clerk of the Township of Armour is hereby authorized to make any
minor modifications or corrections of an administra ive, numeric, grammatic,
semantic or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule(s) as may
be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law.

4. That this by-law shall come into force and effect on the date of passing.

Read in its entirety, approved,
signed and the seal of the Rod Ward, Mayor
Corporation affixed thereto and
finally passed in open Council
this 9t day of September, 2025.

Charlene Watt, Clerk



Planning Department Report

Consents
Roll # Address Date File # Status Note
3-19700 Con 13 Part Lot 11 11/25/2022 Legal, CBO, By-law, Engineers Involved Site Alteration / Rezoning issue / FP update
Second Round of Peer Reviews Pending -
SOLARBANK 219 Peggs ountain Road 09/02/2025 See website for status Solar Battery Storage Facility - Fire Dept concerns
2-19900 2100 Chetwynd Road 05/07/2024 Awaiting Application Create 1 new residential lot + retained
3-19700 589 Berriedale Road 06/27/2025 B-047/24 & B-048/24  All conditions satisfied - need R Plan Create 2 new lots + retained - amended app 01/2025
3-21300 1476 N Pickerel Lake Road 05/16/2025 B-006/25 Suitable Entrance Condition Satisfied Create 1 new residential lot + retained
2-28300 348 Woods Road 11/19/2024 Awaiting Application Create 3 new lots + Retained
3-23800 183 Pevensey Road 02/25/2025 Pre-consultation Meeting Sever to create 1 new lot, 1 lot addition and retained
3-17500 Con 13, Part Lot 3 01/13/2025 Awaiting Application Create 4 new lots + retained - concerns with suitable entrances
2-17600 13 Garage Road 06/12/2025 B-015/25 & B-016/25 Notice of Decision Sever to create 1 new lot, 1 rural industrial lot and retained
2-29420 123E Nicolia Drive 07/23/2025 Awaiting Notice of Decision Create 2 new lots + retained
2-29200/223700 Con9 Lot 20/ Con 10 Lot 20 04/28/2025 Inquiry Sever 2 merged lots to create 2 lots with road frontage
2-10200 Con7 & 8, Part Lots 17 & 18 05/01/2025 B-027/25 & B-028/25 Awaiting Notice of Decision Create 2 new lots + retained
1-09105 809A Cherry Hill Road 06/09/2025 Inquiry Lot addition
3-11010 273 Berriedale Road 07/31/2025 Awaiting Application Create 3 new lots + Retained
2-23700 820 Garage Road 09/03/2025 Pre-consultation Meeting Create 3 new lots + Retained
Subdivisions
Roll # Address Date File # Status Note
1-08900 Cherry Hill Rd / Deer Lake 08/07/2025 Notice of Decision 15 lot subdivision with common element road
Shore Roads / Road Allowances
Roll # Address Date File # Status Note
3-19700 589 Berriedale Road 11/01/2022 Letter to Applicant Road Allowance between Lot 10 & 11, Con 13
1-31500 78 Skyline Drive 11/15/2024 Pre-consultation Purchase part of shore road allowance
1-34000 98 Doe Lake Peninsula 09/02/2025 PIN # created, awating legal documents Trf shore road - 1988 Admin Error
1-08610 879 Three Mile Lake Road 05/29/2024 Awaiting Survey Purchase shore road across the road
Charlene Watt Page 1 0f 2

September 2025



Planning Department Report

Site Plans

Roll # Address Date File # Status Note

3-23905 809 Berriedale Road 06/14/2023 File Closed - LOC File Remains Open New rural industrial business

3-07625 Con 11 Part Lot 32 08/08/2024 By-law Officer - review regeneration Tim Bryson sent recommendations via email

2-32200 2214 Pickerel & Jack Lake Road 11/04/2024 Road Boring to address in agreement Demo - Rebuild in FP-48

1-34000 98 Doe Lake Peninsula 06/25/2025 Legal Demo/Rebuild - shore road trf too

1-69900 39 Magview Drive 07/23/2025 Legal New dwelling on Mag River

Pending 303 Relative Road 01/13/2025 Pre-consultation RC use of property

1-73100 943 Relative Road 08/12/2025 Legal Demo all structures on property and rebuild

1-76300 868 Skylin Drive 07/23/2025 Legal Construct SFD, Garage, Guest Sleeping Cabin and Boathouse

2-01431 Lot 9, Millies Way 07/23/2025 Legal Construction of a new Single Detached Dwelling

3-30420 1857 Pevensey Road 08/01/2025 Pre-consultation Construction of a new Single Detached Dwelling and Garage

2-13500 89 Ontario Street 08/20/2025 Pre-consultation Demo and rebuild Additional Residential Unit
inor Variance

Roll # Address Date File # Status Note

Zonings

Roll # Address Date File # Status Note

2-07015 51 Commercial Drive 02/28/2023 Pre-Consultation- PJR Required Site Specific - Commercial w Residential units

3-19722 Con 13, Part Lot 11 09/05/2023 Municipal Planner concern of OPA too Engineers agree to adjust FP mapping

3-19716 to 3-1972:240-268 N Pickerel Lake Road  10/21/2024 Application Refused - Engineer Disagree FP mapping update after site alteration

2-12200 Con 7 Lot 32 11/28/2024 Application Woodland Retreat

Pending 303 Relative Road 01/13/2025 Awaiting Application RC use of property

ZBA 09/02/2025 Application to Council Update Definitions and Wetlands Requirements

TOTAL # OF TELECONFERENCE PRE-CONSULTATION MEETINGS TO DATE FOR 2025: 18

Charlene Watt

Page 2 of 2

September 2025



>,

Charlene Watt (Degusx Clerk)

From: Doug Godin

Sent: August 21, 2025 11:49 AM

To: Charlene Watt

Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL]Statistics for township

Here are the septic permit stats from NBMCA.

THANKS
Doug

Get Ou look for i0S

From: Doug Godin <doug.godincho@armourtownship.ca>
Sent: Thursday, August 21, 2025 11:48:05 AM

To: Kris Rivard <Kris.Rivard@nbmca.ca>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]Statistics for township

Thank you very much.
Apologize for the confusion.

Have a great day
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Kris Rivard <Kris.Rivard@nbmca.ca>

Sent: Thursday, August 21, 2025 11:46:12 AM

To: Doug Godin <doug.godincbo@armourtownship.ca>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]Statistics for township

Hi Doug,
Apologies, but an email was never sent since | had let you know of the numbers over the phone a couple of weeks ago.

Permits for the Township of Armour -
2025 - 17 (As of August 21, 2025)
2024 - 28

2023 -28

2022 -33

Hope this information helps. Please let me know if you need anything else.

Regards,

ris Rivard (he/him)
Chief Bui din Official
anager, OSS
North Ba - attawa Conservati A ity
15 Janey Av nue
rthBa ,ON P1C 1N1



Cel: 705-471-3010

ice 705-474-5420 e 2016
Fax: 705-474-9793

b:  www.nbmca.c

ers ‘n Watersh anagem nt

é Consider the environm nt. Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to.

heinormationco tai dint is lectronic essa e from North Ba - a awa Conservation A thority i directed in confidence solely o
he e on( namedabov dma no b o herwise distributed, copied or disclosed in ludin att chm nt . The message may
con ain in ormation thati  'vil ged, confidential and exempt r m di closure underthe nicipal m f Information and

rotec ion of Privacy Actand b t e Pe so al Information Protection and lec ronic Documents Act. T u e of such per onal
i fo aionexcepti complian witht e Acts, is strictly prohibited. | ou ha e received thisme g ine or, please notify he

ender immediately advi i  of the error and delet the mes ge ithout making a copy. Than y u.

From: Doug Godin <doug.godincbo@armourtownship.ca>
Sent: August 20, 2025 10:46 AM

To: Kris Rivard <Kris.Rivard@nbmca.ca>

Subject: [EXTERNAL]Statistics for township

U 10: - This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you validate the
sender and know the content is safe. Please forward this email to in osec northba .ca if you believe this email is suspicious.

Good morning, Kris

I hope you are doing well. Would you be able to send me the stats for Armour, again. Sorry | cant seem to find
your last email about it.

Thank you for your time.
Doug

Doug Godin

Chief Building Official

T: (705) 382-3332 ext. 104 « : (705) 787-5358
E: doug.godincbo@ rm urto nship. a

Please Note: Inspection requests will not be accepted by the undersigned. Inspections can be requested online
directly through Cloudpermit or:

Township of Armour
Please contact Kaiyla Hoffmann, Building/Planning Administrative Assistant at

buildingadmin@ar o rtow __ip.c or (705) 382 — 3332 ext. 102.

Township of | ¢/ urrich/. onteith
Please contact Brandilea Decaire, Building/Planning Coordinator at building@ urric_monteith.com or (705)
685-7901.

This message may contain confidential information. If you are not the named addresses, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. Please notify the
sender immediately if you have received this email and delete the email from your system. Finally, the recipient should check this email and any attachments for the
presence of viruses. The organization accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email.



(%)

- Box , B, o 100 tt Cen
o 827
b ) ety.com
b w‘
on ¢
- INUTES

REGULAR EETING
Burk’s Falls & District Historical Society
Fell Homes, Burk’s Falls
Monday, August 18, 2025

Members Present: Diane Brandt — President
Jarv Osborne — Vice President
Nieves Guijarro, Acting Secretary
Kirk Du Guid
Krista Trulsen
Nancy Kyte
Mike Quinton
Peter Hall

The Members present constituted a quorum.

Regrets: Jenny Hall — Treasurer
Barry Burton
Charlene Watt — Secretary/Deputy-Treasurer

Call to Order:
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.
Diane Brandt in the Chair.

Welcome:
Diane Brandt welcomed Members to the meeting. Regrets were disclosed.

Appointment of Secretary for the eeting:

Per section 6.2(c) of the constitution: if the Secretary is, for any reason, unable to be present
at a meeting of the Board or the Members, the Board may appoint another Director to record
the minutes of the meeting. otion to appoint Nieves Guijarro as the acting secretary for
the August 18, 2025 meeting of the Burk’s Falls and District Historical Society: oved
by Nancy Kyte, Seconded by Kirk Du Guid. Carried

Approval & Amendments of the _inutes of the Last _eeting:

Acceptance of minutes and adoption of the July 21, 2025 Meeting Minutes as circulated:
oved by Jarv Osborne, Seconded by Krista Trulsen. Carried

August 2025 - Page 1 of 3



c
» . ’ P 1Co
% Pho 627
¢ etycom R
b ‘ ome
on n d d

Treasurer’s Report:
Treasurer’s / Financial Report was presented by Peter Hall on behalf of Jenny Hall. Main bank

account balance was $70,976.16 on July 1, 2025. Expenses totalled $5,702.02 for expected
fixed monthly business expenses (e.g. telephone/internet), and Heritage Day Prizes,
farmhouse keys, new phone, pictures, frames, printing, partial payment for Insurance, cleaning
schoolhouse and contribution to refreshments for the King Charles Coronation event
honouring Lorne and Betty, and the engineering assessment of the barns fitness for repair or
recovery. Revenue totalled $7,958.15.  otion to accept the Treasurer’s report and pay the
monthly in oices: = o ed by Nancy Kyte, Seconded by Krista Trulsen. Carried

Committee Reports:

Wiseman'’s Corner Schoolhouse Update:

Diane Brandt informed the Members that the facility has received approximately 78 visitors
during the month of August. Diane and Mike met with the Zehr Family who were visiting the
area once again. The Zehr family has a long history in the area, in particular with a Timber

Company.

Watt Farm House Update:

Diane Brandt informed Members that the Heritage Centre received 25 visitors during the
month of August. The two part-time employees, Clara and Jordan, have been actively
engaged in researching and inventorying artifacts.

Diane Brandt also provided a status update on the red building construction. The utilities have
been hooked up now.

Facilities and Function Committee:

Diane Brandt informed Members that she received a response from Anthony D’Agata, who
has contact with the Amish community, and discussed the disassembling of the barn at the
farmhouse. Heritage Centre staff are currently cataloguing the barn wood boards.

Membership Committee:

Peter Hall advised Members that he received two payments to renew memberships for 2025.
Peter attended the Ryerson Yard Sale where he was able to promote the Historical Society
and the work being done at the Heritage Centres.

Correspondence: None

General Business: None

August 2025 - Page 2 of 3



L ] * c
o PuO.\ P B -] 1 m F
o n. 827
< ety °
on k s Corner

New Business:

Fall Fair:

The Fall Fair will be held on Monday, September 1, 2025. Display items for the table at the
fair will include the mystery box game of artifacts, newsletters and membership forms. The
donation jar and large banner poster will be picked up from the Farm House before the event.

Halloween:

Nie es Guijarro informed embers that she ill be meeting with the Lion Club on September
18, 2025 with Charlene Watt to discuss the annual event planning. It is expected that Historical
Society Members will do as they have in the past with manning game tables and handing out
candy. We will advise the Lions Club that the Historical Society will bring their fishing game
back and hand out our own candy. Charlene will send out donation request letters to the
Township of Ryerson and Township of Armour. She will also offer to create the event flyer and
seek bottled water donations from Valu-Mart. Additional information will be brought forward
next month.

Relocation of an Active Member:

At this meeting, members presented a photo keepsake to Kirk Du Guid in recognition of his
dedicated service, as this was his final meeting with the Historical Society. Kirk has been an
active volunteer for several years, generously opening the schoolhouse to visitors and playing
a key role in ensuring the heritage centre remained accessible for public tours. The Society
expressed its sincere appreciation for Kirk’s contributions and extended best wishes for the
future. Members also expressed hope to remain in touch and to receive future correspondence
from him.

Other Business:
Jarv Osborne inquired about any update on the tinted windows. Diane will bring an update at
the meeting in September.

Adjournment:
The next meeting will be held on Monday, September 15, 2025 at Fell Homes. There being

no further business, Kirk Du Guid moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:34 p.m.

Recorded by Approved by
Nieves Guijarro, Acting Secretary Diane Brandt, President

August 2025 - Page 3 of 3



SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND DISTRICT

PLANNING BOARD
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, August 27, 2025 — 6:30 p.m.
VIA ZOOM
Hearings;
6:30 p.m.:. 1) B-027/25 - T. STEVENSON
B-028/25
2) B-029/25 - L. BUGELLI
B-030/25
3) B-03125 - E. & L. BUGELLI
49 B-032/25 - R. HODGE
B-033/25
5) S-0U25 - 2152900 ONTARIO INC.
Regular Meeting:

1.

Review and Approval of the Minutes

Business Arising from the Minutes

Administrative

Correspondence

Status of Applications
FEES - Staresinic

Financial Report

Other Business

Adjournment



Director of Economic Development (DoED) Report
August 28, 2025

Core Activity Tracking — (Since la_t rep rt)

Activit :
usines 'Assis ance
Start U Files

Ex ansion Files
Developer Files

General Su ort
Brand Ambassador
Hi h Priori
Business Visits
Program Referrals

Mreti *
ACED Website Updates

Social Media Postin
Facebook/Insta ram Reach
Facebook/Instagram Views

Facebook/Iinstagram
Likes/Followers

Website Tr ckin

Total Users / Views

Most viewed a es
besides landin a

Commu icatio s
Email Blasts

Or anization eetin s
Partnershi Pro’ects
unicipal Visits

Member Interactions / Support

Re uests
edia Comment Requests

Inte actions

2
1
1

3700
585

Current Files & Pro’ects

Project 1A — Bus'ness Support

RCIP Update

Descri tion

2 Burk’s Falls
1 Sundrid e
1 Strong

NECO (2), The Business Centre (2),
NOW 1

Business Directory, investment
properties, events, Eat Local (updated
farmers markets information

5 ACED 20 Ex lore

5,655 ACED 12,900 Ex lore

4,327 (ACED) 49,4000 (Explore)

1816 (ACED) 2808 (Explore)

Screamin Heads business directo

4 (Almaguin Summer Star Party), 2
Business U dates , 1 Newsletter
AHHC, Par Sound CBDC, RNIP

Alma uin Summer Star Part

Perry, BF, Sundridge, SR, Strong, Joly,
M/

South River (1)

Almaguin Summer Star Party article

The EDO attended the August RCIP meeting on Friday, August 22. There were 12 applications
submitted and reviewed, and 11 applications approved.



Business irectory Update:

The C O has completed 70% of the annual Business Directory update. An email blast and social
media callout were issued to all businesses currently listed, requesting updated information.
Follow-up cold calls have also begun for outstanding businesses that have not yet been reached
directly, to ensure all listings on the website remain accurate and up to date.

ACED Staff have been engaging with businesses in the community weekly to help the C O build
familiarity and connections with local stakeholders and strengthen relationships.

Project 2A — Community Organization Support
The CMO will be leading the AVEMP program and has received the contact list. Outreach to

community organizations will resume in the coming weeks.

Proect - Re ional Recreation & Munici al u ort

McMurrich Monteith Facility Improvement upport

The Community Survey for Mc urrich/ onteith is live until August 22, with 94 responses to-date.
Once the survey is closed, a summary report will be compiled and shared with
McMurrich/Monteith staff.

Village of Bur ’s Falls Support

Carried from last month: Staff met with a Councillor from Burk’s Falls to discuss a funding
application for the Burk’s Falls theatre. It was mentioned that the topic will be discussed at the
next Burk’s Falls Council Meeting. ACED staff are waiting for further direction following the
Council eeting, as no new update had been provided.

Village of S ut River Suppor

Staff created a Site Package Overview for the South River Brewery/Happy Landing Location that
was shared with the South River Clerk and Economic Development Intern for more information.
The package includes land development information, planning and zoning considerations,
available incentives, up-to-date labour market considerations, and a breakdown of the service
infrastructure. A meeting was held with the Real Estate Broker to establish a relationship of
support for interested businesses or developers, and the Site Overview Package will be shared
with the Broker once it has been completed.

Project 3 — Transporta ion
Almaguin Community Transportation Committee
Carried from last report: Efforts continue to investigate local service models such as the EPS

Support Services and the Ontario Northland Bus service. The next ACT committee meeting will
be scheduled for September.

The Return of Passenger Rail Service

The EDO and CMO met with Christine Puma from Ontario Northland to discuss marketing
opportunities. Different marketing tactics were presented, from digital and print advertisements to
ad spaces available at the train stations and on the trains. Marketing opportunities regarding the
Ontario Northland Train will begin in the Spring 2026. Marketing opportunities are available for
businesses and tourism opportunities. Communications will be shared with businesses so
everyone is made aware of the marketing that can be accessed, and ACED/Explore Almaguin
will begin exploring avenues to promote the region and the tourism in Aimaguin through ONR.

Carpool Almaguin Campaign
The CMO developed a Carpool Almaguin promotional campaign, featuring an article highlighting
local carpool sites and their locations, updated photos, and information about the Poparide app.



The campaign generated 31 page views on the website, 695 views and with a reach of 475 on
Facebook.

Project 4A — Brand Strategy Implemen ation

Phase 2 — Ph sical Brand Roll Out

Staff are finalizing the FedNor Phase 2 application to support the project. The EDO participated

in a webinar for the ROD program. Staff are working to complete the ROD application. To date,

Staff have received resolutions of support from South River, Strong, Burk's Falls, Perry,
cMurrich Monteith, and Armour.

Social Media/E plore Almaguin Website/ Email Marketing/Content

The C' O updated the Feast in Aimaguin web page and launched weekly so ial media posts
highlighting the various Almaguin Farmers’ arket, aiming to boost visitor engagement and
drive traffic.

The CMO created and distributed the fall edition of the digital quarterly newsletter. It was
distributed to email s bscrib r , highlighting lo al fall e ents such as fairs, special promotions
from area businesses, and additional attractions shared by our brand ambassadors to support
regional engagement and economic activity.

The C O developed 25 new social media posts and reels emphasizing visually engaging photos
and videos that showcase local businesses, farmers’ markets, upcoming events such as fall fairs,
and regional attractions including parks, beaches, and trails, supporting tourism promotion and
community engagement. This content resulted in an 11.8% increase in views across Explore
Almaguin platforms and a 13.9% increase on the ACED Facebook page

Project 4B — Tourism Promotion
Almaguin Summer Star Party

The Aimaguin Summer Star Party took place on August 11 and 12". A summary report is attached
with demographics and final numbers for event attendance.

onday - South River
The evening in South River offered a relaxed and welcoming atmosphere. Guests enjoyed:

Food prepared by The Banger

A Disc Golf demonstration by the local Disc Golf Club

A scenic sunset over the water

Guided stargazing with Stéphane Picard (Cliff Valley Astronomy) and members of the
North Bay Astronomy Club

o Live musical performances by Sean Cotton and Bill Stewart

Tuesday — Screaming Heads

Despite variable weather, the evening proved highly successful due to both participant flexibility
and strong programming. The event began indoors, featuring:

o Food service from The Banger (including grilled cheese offerings)
e Live music by Sean Cotton



An engaging astronomy presentation by Stéphane Picard

At 9:00 p.m., a decision was made to move activities outdoors to Screaming Heads. This
shift provided participants with a memorable stargazing experience, which included:

e Meteor sightings

e Guided telescope viewing

e A surprise rocket launch visible from the grounds

Overall, participant enthusiasm and adaptability contributed significantly to the success of both
evenings, showcasing the community’s capacity to host engaging astronomy and cultural
programming even under uncertain conditions.

The C O launched a social media campaign using a combination of carousel posts and reels to
promote and recap the Almaguin Summer Star Party. The campaign highlighted stakeholder
involvement and achieved a reach of 13,973, with a total of 23,143 views across platforms,
increasing visibility for both the event and its partners.

The Almaguin Summer Star Party has received attention from several media outlets, including
NorthBayNipsissing.com and Travel and Tour World.

http .//www.northbaynipissing.com/news/written-in-the-star _-almaguin-primed-to-become-
astrotourism-destination/ rticle 32c4a702-d7 a-5b27-aa99-c80 087584d0.htmi

https://www.travelandtourwo Id.com/new /a i | d'sc ver-the-starry-skies-of-almaguin- he-ris
of-_stro-touri_ m-in-ontario-canada/

Experiential Tourism Article with Deer Lake Wilder e R reat

The EDO developed an experiential tourism article that featured Deer Lake Wilderness Retreat,
as well as 6 other businesses, with the theme of experiencing the night sky and the stars in
Almaguin. The article performed well, with all organic views.

Facebook/Instagram views — 6,707
Reach-2,784

Interactions—19

Link Clicks — 110 from Facebook

Google Analytics from our website — 160 views

Deer Lake Wilderness Retreat was impressed with the article and response to the content and
has expressed an interest in another partnership in the future, featuring winter accommodations
and tourism opportunities.

Project 4C Shop in Almaguin Campaigns
A Shop Local reel was posted from July 2-31%, encouraging participants to like, share, comment
and follow to be entered into the draw. Results can be seen below:

Views Reach Interactions Follows
Facebook 16,355 5,659 82 5
Instagram 7,227 4,496 148 39
Totals: 23,582 10,155 230 44




Projec 5A RED Gala

The RED Gala venue has been booked, taking place at the Sprucedale Community Centre on
December 9™, 2025. Both NECO and the Labour arket Group has expressed an interest in
partnering and providing funding for this year's event.

ACED Shared Services Agreement, Evolution of Service Delivery, ETC.
The DoED has attached the Transitioning to a Two-Staff Department Staff Report to the agenda
package for the Board's Review.

ACED Department Information Package 2025

Based on the feedback received from municipal staff during the ACED in-office visits, staff have
prepared the ACED Department Information Package which contains an overview of ACED
including a brief history and timeline, a review of investments and funding, a review of core
services, and a quick-reference guide on how to best utilize the department. This document will
help stakeholders understand ACED in a greater capacity and assist with communicating the
value of the department.

Finalizing he Revised Shared Services A reement & Funding Formula
Step 1 - The Board will need to determine if they approve the 2-staff department report.

Step 2 — The Board will need to determine whether they support the percent-to-levy funding
formula concept or keep the existing formula. Should the Board support the new funding concept,
it will be reflected in the 2026 budget projections and circulated to all members in October for
approval.

Step 3 — The new shared services agreement will need to be finalized and circulated to all
municipalities for review and acceptance. The DoED is recommending that the shared services
agreement term should be set at two years (2026 and 2027) and treated as a transitional
agreement wherein which the Board and Staff can identify and evaluate options for departmental
funding once the current CIINO agreement expires.

Once the new agreement is finalized, it will be circulated to all Almaguin municipalities (member
and non-members) for their consideration along with the attached ACED Information Package.
The goal of this is to encourage all Aimaguin Municipalities to consider membership and take part
in planning for the future of economic development in Aimaguin.



“spersion - egi 1ick
r
A na .5
L Amg nu r arP y
’ o danc
F 1
nated
t0,27 1
N
- volun - rs
& ]
Woadb
W8 T
Disp ion f egist d icke
Screa i Heads
A7 Burk'sF 3 Sundridge, 2
Hoon1 Al agi um er ta Prty
mevil ,8 rearplig Att
fegist
B ge, 2
Yor 0,14
avenhurst, 4 A
Barrie, § v
ST ugas
e
tedon, 1 - "
L MA
: e

US NOR H OF TOROH

[N



usnes C llaboa rs

Activitie

Fo &Be rage

Acco  atio

Monday - South River

Guests enjoyed a relaxed evening on the waterfront.

Food was provided by The Banger.

The Disc Golf Club hosted a demonstration.

Attendees experienced a sunset over the water followed by guided stargazing with Stéphane
Picard (Cliff Valley Astronomy) and the North Bay Astronomy Club.

Live music was performed by Sean Cotton and Bill Stewart.

Tuesday — Screaming Heeds

Weather conditions required flexibility, with the evening beginning indoors at the Armour,
Ryerson Burk's Falls Arena.

Participants enjoyed food from The Banger and music by Sean Cotton.

Stéphane Picard delivered an astronomy presentation.

At 9:00 p.m., activities shifted outdoors to Screaming Heads.

Guests experienced meteor sightings, guided telescope viewing, and a surprise rocket launch
visible from the site.

o

.- -
US NOR H O TORON 0
~



ALMAGUIN COM_ UNI ECO EVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontario St. Burk’s Falls ON. POA 1C0

August 28, 2025

To: Almaguin Community Economic Development (ACED) Board
From: Dave Gray, Director of Economic Development
Subject: Transitioning to a two-staff department

Reco mendation

That the Almaguin Community Economic Development Board receives the staff report regarding
the transition to a two-staff department and requests that the Township of Armour proceed with
administering the transition effective January 1%, 2026.

B ckground

Through 2025, the ACED Department has shared th full tim | adership position f Chief
Administrative Officer / Director of Economic Development with the Township of Armour. This
temporary, dual-purpose role was intended to serve both parties in that it supported succession
planning for both organizations.

The Township of Armour is currently evaluating the need for a full-time Chief Administrative
Officer, which will be discussed at the August 12" Regular Council eeting. This transition will
affect the ACED Department's current 2.5 FTE structure by creating a vacancy in the DoED
position. Armour remains committed to providing administrative services to ACED, as well as
direct mentorship support to ACED staff through their subsequent transition and in the future.

Through 2025, the ACED EDO has completed several training opportunities as identified in the
Leadership and staff considerations pertaining to the planned exit of the Director of Economic
Development staff report (October 21, 2024). Additionally, the ACED Board and Department
have committed to evolving the delivery of ACED services through enhanced member
communication, the creation of a new draft shared services agreement, and creating a
new cost sharing concept. These action items have been undertaken based on feedback
from municipal members to ensure fairness and value to all members while reflecting their
local priorities in the activities of ACED. Reducing the department to two full-time staff, with
future potential for internship support, will result in significant short-to-mid-term cost savings to

municipal partners while also creating an attractive entry (or re-entry point) for past and/or future
members.

Financial Considerations

Transition structure Line 370-000 2026 Savings VS 2026
Total' 2026 Pro’ection $220 300

Replace current Director w/o backfilling $142,300 $78,000

EDO Position

Re lace EDO with ED Intern? $163,584

1 — Provides the sum of the figures presented in Line 15-370-000 “Total Municipal & Chamber
Contribution”

2 - Estimated costs based 35 hours per week at a wage of $28.74/hour plus deductions, less $35,000
internship grant. Estimated start for Spring 2026.



ALMAGUIN COMMUNI EC ELOPMENT
Bo 533 - 56 Ontario t. Burk's Falls N. POA 1C0

Impacts to the current FedNor CIINO agreement

Both remaining full-time staff positions are supported under the current CIINO contribution
agreement. There is no anticipated impact on the agreement, which is expected to expire in Q3,
2027.

Additional Considerations

The Township of Armour’'s Employment Policy stipulates that Township position postings
must be made internally for a minimum of 1 week prior to being posted publicly. Should
the ACED board wish to deviate from the policy for any reason, a request from the board
would need to be made to Council. Additionally, should the Board select a candidate from
outside the organization, budget adjustments would be required to reflect 3 permanent,
full-time staff.

Others Cons lted

Alison McGregor, Treasurer, Township of Armour

Chris Nicholson, ACED Chair & Township of Joly Council Representative
Courtney Metcalf, EDO, ACED

Rod Ward, Mayor, Township of Armour

Attachments:

1. Costing scenario based on percent-to-levy concept w/ 2 permanent, full-time staff
a. 14 Partners
b. 10 partners
c. 8 partners

2. Costing scenarios based on percent-to-levy concept w/ 2 permanent full-time

staff and 1 full-time intern.

a. 14 Partners
b. 10 partners
c. 8 partners

3. Current cost share formula / budget
a. 10 partners
b. 8 partners



Attachment 1 — Scenarios

A MAG IN COMMUNI

LOPMENT

E € E
Box 533 - 56 Ontario St. Burk’s Falls N. POA 1C0

Figure 1A — Scenario with 14 Par ners

ith 2 permanent full-time sta f

Municipatity TaxLevy 024 0.35% of Tax Levy Difference /Municipality
Perry $ 3,848,017.56 $ 13,468.06 $ 29,805.94
Armour $ 3,201,570.00 $ 11,205.50 $ 20,729.51
Strong $ 3,035,099.28 $ 10,622.85 $ 18,940.15
McMurrich/Monteith $ 2,160,272.00 $ 7,560.95 $ 1 ,398.05
Sundridge $ 1,922,304.00 $ 6,728.06 $ 12,555.94
South River $ 1,366,381.00 $ 4,782.33 $ 14,713.67
Burk's Falls $ 1,491,745.00 $ 522111 $ 1,9 9.89
Joly $ 880,625.00 $ 3,082.19 $ 5,595.81
Ryerson (2023) $ 2, , 28.00 8,209.35
Kearney $ 4,596,666.00 $ 16,088.33
Magnetawan $ 5,983,907.00 $ 20,943.67
Powassan $  4,500,387.00 $ 15,751.35
Machar $ 2,509,174.00 $ 8,782.11
AHCC $ 10,000.00

$ 142,445.87
Figure 1B — Scenario with 10 Par ners
Muhiclp lity Tax Levy 2024 0.711% of Tax Levy , Difference/Municipa ty
Perry $ 3,848,017.56 | $ 27,359.40 15,914. 0
Armour $ 3,201,570.00 | $ 22,763.16 ,11.84
Strong $ 3,035,099.28 | $ 21,579.56 | $ 7, 83.44
McMurrich/Monteith $ 2,160,272.00 | $ 15,359.53 | $ 8,59 .47
Sundridge $ 1,922,304.00 | $ 13,667.58 | $ 5 6.2
South River $ 1,366,381.00 | $ 9,714.97 | $ 9, .03
Burk's Falls $ 1,491,745.00 | $ 10,606.31 | $ 8,6 4.69
Joly $ 880,625.00 | $ 6,261.24 | $ 2,416. 6
Ryerson (2023) $ 2,345,528.00 | $ 5,000.00
AHCC $ 10,000.00

$ 142,311.76

Figure 1C— Scenario w

ith 8 Partners

Mu icipality Tax Levy 2024 0.846 of Tax Levy Di erence/Municipality
Perry $ 3,848,017.56 | $ 32,554.23 | $ 1,719.77
McMurrich/Monteith $ 2,160,272.00 | $ 18,275.90 | $ 5,683.10
Armour $  3,201,570.00 | $ 27,085.28 | $ 4,849.72
Strong $ 3,035099.28 | $ 25,676.94 | $ 3,8 6.06
Sundridge $ 1,922,304.00 | $ 16,262.69 | $ 3,0 1.31
Joly $ 880,625.00 | $ 7,450.09 | $ 1,227.91
Ryerson $ 5,000.00
AHCC $ 10,000.00

$ 142,305.13




ALMAGUIN COMMUNI
Box 533 - 56 Ontario

EVELOPMENT

E O E
. Burk’s Falls ON. PO 1CO

tachment 2 — Scenarios with 2 permanent ull-time sta f and one full-

ime intern

Figure 2A — Scenario wi h 14 Par ners
Tax Levy 2024

Municipality
Perry

Armour

Strong
McMurrich/Monteith
Sundridge
South River
Burk's Falls
Joly

Ryerson (2023)
Kearney
Magnetawan
Powassan
Machar

AHCC

Figure 2B — Sce
Mu icipality
Perry

Armour

Strong
McMurrich/Monteith
Sundridge

South River

Burk's Falls

Joly

Ryerson (2023)
AHCC

Figure 2C— Scenario with 8 Partners
Tax Levy 2024

u Icipality
Perry
McMurrich/Monteith
Armour
Strong
Sundridge
Joly
Ryerson
AHCC

P P P B PPP PPN N D

rio wi h 10 Partners
Tax Levy 2024

P N O P P PSS

R - - C oL -

3,848,017.56
3,201,570.00
3,035,099.28
2,160,272.00
1,922,304.00
1,366,381.00
1,491,745.00

880,625.00
2,345,528.00
4,596,666.00
5,983,907.00
4,500,387.00
2,509,174.00

3,848,017.56
3,201,570.00
3,035,099.28
2,160,272.00
1,922,304.00
1,366,381.00
1,491,745.00

880,625.00
2,345,528.00

3,848,017.56
2,160,272.00
3,201,570.00
3,035,099.28
1,922,304.00

880,625.00

0.

O PP PP PGB YPHPHHHH

of Tax Levy

0.83% of Tax Levy

W PPN R P

0.988% of Tax Levy

R R C R - -

15,622.95
12,998.37
12,322.50
8,770.70
7,804.55
5,547.51
6,056.48
3,575.34
9,522.84
18,662.46
24,294.66
18,271.57
10,187.25
10,000.00
163,637.20

31,938.55
26,573.03
25,191.32
17,930.26
15,955.12
11,340.96
12,381.48
7,309.19
5,000.00
10,000.00
163,619.91

38,018.41
21,343.49
31,631.51
29,986.78
18,992.36
8,700.58
5,000.00
10,000.00
163,673.13

Difference/Mun cipality
$ 27,65 .05
$ 18,936.63
$ 7.2 .50
$ 1 ,188.30
$ 11,479.45
$ 13,948.49
$ 13,154.52
$ 5,102.66

Ditference/Municipal
11,335.45
5,361.97
4,371.68
,0 8.74
3,328.88
8,155.04
6,829.52
1,368.81

P P PP PP PP

Difference/Municipality
$ 5,255.59
$ 2,615.51
$ 303.49

-$ 423.78
$ 291.64

-$ 22.58



ALMAGUIN COMMUNI

EC [=5 LOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 On ario t. Burk’s Falls ON. POA 1CO

Figure A - Current formula with 2 taff and 10 partners

202 2 2027 28
Descrj 22 De 1 t De
Ac | e ate
1 4 1 p ers
& s
F
t
i
¥
“er
erce
Figure 3B -Current Formula with 2 Staff and 8 Partners
22 2 2027 228
s " ' n 22 202 D, anm t D Dep.t%nf
Ac | et g e Esti Es te
16 1 s



ACED & Regional Economi Development Overview

Almaguin Community Economic Development (ACED) represents a multi-municipal effort
to provide economic development services throughout the Almaguin Highlands Region.
While ACED is the current face of regional economic development, there is a clear and
demonstrable history of collaborative economic development efforts in Almaguin that has,
and continues to, drive observable growth in the region.

This information package is intended to serve everal key purposes:

1. Provide a functional understanding of who ACED is.

2. Review the history of collaborative economic development in the Almaguin
Highlands, including the investments that have been in, and attracted to, the region.

3. Define the services that ACED provides within the regions with some highlights of
services and initiatives to-date.

4. lllustrate how municipal partners can best utilize and benefit from ACED’s services.

Whois CED, and what do they do?

In April of 2019, municipal partners formed ACED as the first-ever multi-staff, fully regional,
economic development services department. After years of successful multi-municipal
partnerships, such as the Central Almaguin Economic Development Association, Burk’s
Falls & Area Economic Development, or EcoDey, regional partners developed a regionally
inclusive economic development plan and formed ACED. This marked a significant
milestone.

ACED operates as a shared services department that is comprised of the ACED Board and
ACED staff. The ACED Board was established to oversee ACED Staff and provide direction
based on regionally shared goals, objectives and interests. ACED currently (as of 2025), has
three staff roles, which are

e Director of Economic Development (.5FTE for 2025)
e Economic Development Officer
e Communications and Marketing Officer.

Organizational Struc ure

ACED operates under a shared services agreement, which is currently undergoing the first
major updated since 2019. ACED is administered by the Township of Armour, who provides
services such as human resources, financial administration (including grants and payroll),
office space, etc. The ACED Board interfaces with the Armour Township Council through
providing recommendations (via resolution) which are implemented through complimentary
council decisions.



A eline

es in collaborative economic d

Thi i | e highight It
reg on, s g growth, partnerships, and strat
ui la
Cc c
B
e b N
i o oD
Mc uch o Bl
Ma ?fGW 17 Devéb’pmen
Ké {RED)
KPAM £
6 g
Dev
Parinership
*AC - launched.as ~ regional &
de - -rtmen , with up ¢ :
FedN- funch frofe
; 1 - AEDA
o uncafio s{ im red M&g‘n‘@
Withare
om
cong
Dev.
he ional
Brand Coordi:  or
Pow 2
=
f e ed Fed 1
i
h

*ACED Launched with e following pariners: Powassan South River, Strong, Sundridge, oly, Magnetawan, Ryerson, Bu s Falls, Armour, Peny

tilialiv
from

D 's 2 h
n e I ol
& - 3

all
0 - P ea ., emy.

urich/ ont ° g awn-

hiredN - FC intem

ergerof BACEDa d  oDey

Increased ollaborati nso

regional projects  nd inicth
beiwee BACEDand - ED

Brasa  alegy

Dev pmentoftheR - nal
grond Qta?‘

frategy
ACEDI pande i esporse or

busine”™ su

ple e a’

BExp ‘ng mic
oy’ A

he Almaguin




ACED & Regional Funding History and Highlights

The following summary provides an at-a-glance perspective of the investments and
partnership funds invested into regional initiatives and economic development departments
over the 12-year period from 2013 to 2025. Several points to consider:

1. These totals include funding for initiatives that occurred prior to ACED; however,
represent projects that benefited multiple municipalities (including fully regional
projects).

2. Totals include both ACED/ ED Staff led and supported applications.

3. Municipal contributions only reflect the application portion of approved grants and
do not include municipal contributions to ACED operating budgets.

Public ector Funding

Senior Government Municipal Contributions' Total Invested in Local
Funding (Approved grant (Municipal / Applicant Economic Development
funds secured) portion) Initiatives (public sector)
$6,181,091.00 $3,120,387.00 $9,301,478.00

1-Municipal contribution amounts were not provided for some projects where staff provided direct application
support.

Funding By Type

$450,540

$317,410

= ED Projects = Community Enhancement = Plans and Studies = Operations and Staffing

Private ector Funding — High Level Total

Senior Government Applicant Investment Total known investment
Funding (Approved grant (Estimated)
funds secured)
$4,991,652 $6,425,652

*These figures represent large projects where ACED Staff supported all or some of the
application process (including letters of support, etc.)



D finn CED’ Services

The term ‘economic development’ can evoke a wide range of perceived definitions and an
even wider range of expected activities or desired results. Objectively, nearly anything that
happens in a municipality that involves a financial transaction and/or the delivery or
procurement of a service impacts the economy (local and/or regional). ACED’s workplans
are broken up in to five distinct categories, or focus areas, that broadly define the work that
ACED Staff perform.

1. Business Support & Development
¥ One on one support for start-ups, expansions, developments, and general
business needs.
¥ Promotes local business through shop local campaigns and the online
regional business directory (as well as other promotional and marketing
efforts)
2. Economic Development Planning
v' Creation and execution of strategic plans & studies at both the regional and
local levels.
v ClickHeretoview E °’ i for examples
3. Community Development
v" Providing supports for municipalities and community organizations such as
grant writing support, volunteerism supports, and other functions.
v Supports fundraising for the development or improvement of community
facilities.
4. Tourism Marketing & Promotion
v Administers the Explore Almaguin digital presence ( . , etc.).
v Produces engaging tourism content and campaigns.
v' Supports the development of joint marketing initiatives with local businesses
and brand ambassadors.
5. Special Projects & Events

ACED staff create annual workplans, which are approved by the ACED Board. Staff report
on the progress of activities through monthly reports provided to the Board, as well as with
an annual report.

Another important function of ACED is that the department serves as a critical connecting
link to numerous support agencies and their representatives. Agencies include, but are not
limited to: FedNor, The Ministry of Northern Development, NECO Community Futures, The
Business Centre NPS, IION, Explorer’s Edge (RTO12), The Labour Market Group, BlueSky, The
Almaguin Chamber of Commerce.



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

The combined in-person/virtual TRI Council meeting of the Councils of the
Township of Armour, the Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls was
held on Monday, August 25, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. at the Katrine Community Centre.

Those in attendance for were:

Township of Armour Council present included Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors Jerry
Brandt, Wendy Whitwell, Dorothy Haggart-Davis and Rod Blakelock; Staff: Dave
Gray, CAO/Deputy-Clerk and Amy Tilley, Waste Management Administrator.

Village of Burk’s Falls Council present included Mayor Chris Hope, Councillors
Nancy Kyte, and Ashley Brandt; Staff: Denis Duguay, CAO-Clerk.

Township of Ryerson Council present included Mayor George Sterling,
Councillors, and Glenn Miller, Beverly Abbott; Staff: Brayden Robinson,
CAO/Treasurer, and Joe Readman Fire Chief.

Guests: Nieves Guijarro, Sarah Cooke, Ruth Fenwick, Joe Vella, Bob Van der
Wijist, Diane Brandt, Doreen Monk, Tiffany Monk, Marie Odorizzi, Ana Cultraro,
Dino Cultraro, Barry Burton, John Hind, and Alice Hewitt.

WELCOME

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rod Ward at 7:00 p.m.
Mayor Rod Ward welcomed all of the participants.

VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAIMER:

Participants were informed that the meeting will be recorded to provide a record
of discussions and agreements held within the meeting. By staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Participants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other distribution services.

INDIGENOUS LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

TRl Council acknowledged the traditional lands of the Anishinaabe and
recognized the historical and contemporary contributions of the local First Nations
and the peoples of Turtle Island.

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING:

The notes of the regular meeting held on May 26, 2025 were approved as
circulated.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

No pecuniary interest and general nature thereof were declared.
Page 1 of 6

@



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

Informal TRI Council Sub-Committee Update

A verbal update was provided on the monthly Sub-Committee meetings. Since its
formation in April, the Sub-Committee has played an effective role in enhancing
communication among the TRI Council members, fostering stronger collaboration
and alignment on shared priorities. Notable progress includes the successful
finalization of the fire agreement, demonstrating the committee’s ability to move
key initiatives forward. In addition, a draft library agreement is scheduled to be
presented later in the meeting, further highlighting the committee’s ongoing efforts
to address and support intermunicipal services.

Draft Library Agreement

The Sub-Committee presented a new Library Agreement to TRI Council for review
and approval. TRI Council discussed the draft agreement. Questions were asked
and answered. Based on the discussion, several changes to the draft agreement
were requested from the TRI partners. The agreement was presented for
approval as amended. Once all participating Mayors and Clerks/CAOs have
signed the agreement, each individual Council will be required to pass a by-law to
enact the new agreement. Existing by-laws relating to the previous library
agreement will need to be repealed accordingly. Once all by-laws have been
passed, municipalities were asked to circulate copies to the other TRI Council
partners for their records. A resolution was passed supporting the Library
Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library and
authorized the Mayor and Clerk of each municipality to sign the said agreement.
Councils thanked staff for their efforts.

TRI-R Landfill Report: Options and Budget Implications (Blue Box)

TRI Council reviewed a report from the Waste Management Administrator
providing options and budget implications to the Blue Box Program effective
January 2026. Resolution #206 from the Township of Armour, dated July 8, 2025,
was forwarded to Circular Material Ontario in response to their June 27, 2025
Change Notice and stated that the Township of Armour does not accept the
proposed reductions. The TRI partners have responded with supporting
resolutions. TRI partners were in favor of the Waste Management Administrator
continuing to advocate for improvements to the program and the reconsideration
of the compensation rate.

The Waste Management Administrator contacted Reverse Logistics Group (RLG),
noting that this arrangement was not part of the agreement with CMO and
imposed operational inefficiencies. However, Emterra's contract with RLG is at a
flat rate, RLG indicated there was no financial impact to CMO and therefore had
no incentive to reconsider.

Page 2 of 6



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

TRI Council reviewed the budget implications with the intent to provide direction
to the Waste Management Administrator with regard to negotiations with Circular
Materials.

2025 Monthly Contract Price Formula

Contract Price= (a)+ (b) - (c)

(a) Promotion & Education (P&E) Payment

$1.00 x 1,916 households+ 12 = $159.67 per month

(b) Residential Depot Operation Costs

Fixed amount= $4,080 per month

(c) Deduction for Non-Eligible Sources

= 4.40% (Non-Eligible Source Deduction) x (Monthly Tonnage BB material) x
($200/tonne)

2025 Operating Revenue Allocation = $47,000

2026 Monthly Contract Price Formula

Contract Price= (a)+ (b) - (c)

(a) Promotion & Education (P&E) Payment

$0.35 x 1,916 households+ 12 = $55.88 per month

(b) Residential Depot Operation Costs

Fixed amount= $1,223 per month

(c) Deduction for Non-Eligible Sources - Regulation amended July 4, 2025

= 4.40% (Non-Eligible Source Deduction) x (Monthly Tonnage BB material) x
($200/tonne)

2026 Operating Revenue Allocation= $15,000

It was recommended that TRI Council consider the funding and compliance,
regulatory compliance, operational considerations, resident expectation and legal
risk when reviewing the budgeting implications.

Additional information will be provided at the October 2025 TRI Council meeting.

New Fire Hall Build Update

The Township of Ryerson provided a status update on the progress of the new
Firehall build. It was confirmed that all three municipalities—Armour, Burk’s Falls,
and Ryerson—have now passed formal resolutions supporting the awarding of the
construction tender for the project. In addition, each municipality has expressed
its full support for the joint application to the Northern Ontario Heritage Fund
Corporation (NOHFC) under the Community Enhancement Program, which will
assist in funding the new facility. As part of this commitment, all three Councils
have agreed to contribute their respective shares toward the overall project cost
and have further committed to covering any potential cost overruns that may

Page 3 of 6



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

occur. This coordinated support reflects the ongoing spirit of collaboration among
the TRI Council partners and a shared dedication to improving emergency
services infrastructure in the region.

The construction is expected to begin by October 31%t, 2025.
NEXT MEETING:

The next meeting is scheduled for October 27, 2025 and will be hosted by the
Village of Burk’s Falls.

ADJOURNMENT:
The TRI Council meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.
RESOLUTIONS:

Moved by Beverley Abbott, seconded by Ashley Brandt; That the TRI Council of
the Township of Armour, Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls
approve the notes of the regular meeting held on May 26, 2025. Carried

Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; WHEREAS Section 20(1)
and 20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25, as amended,
authorizes a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more
municipalities or local bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union pubilic library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of
Armour supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls
Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT each municipal Council shall bring forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement at their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible thereafter. Carried

Moved by Nancy Kyte, seconded by Ashley Brandt; WHEREAS Section 20(1) and
20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, Chapter 25, as amended, authorizes

Page 4 of 6



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more municipalities or local
bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union public library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Village of Burk’s
Falls supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls Armour
& Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT each municipal Council shall bring forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement at their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible thereafter. Carried

Moved by Glenn Miller, seconded by Beverly Abbott; WHEREAS Section 20(1)
and 20(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25, as amended,
authorizes a municipality to enter into an agreement with one or more
municipalities or local bodies;

AND WHEREAS Section 5(1) of the Public Libraries Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P.44, provides that the councils of two or more municipalities may make an
agreement for the establishment of a union public library;

AND WHEREAS the Council of each of The Township of Armour, The Township
of Ryerson, and The Village of Burk's Falls deems it appropriate and in the public
interest to enter into such an agreement with respect to the Burk’s Falls Armour &
Ryerson Union Public Library;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of
Ryerson supports entering into a Library Agreement regarding the Burk’s Falls
Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and the Clerk of each municipality be authorized
to sign the said agreement on behalf of their respective municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT each municipal Council shall bring forward a by-law
authorizing the execution of the Library Agreement at their next regularly
scheduled Council meeting or as soon as possible thereafter. Carried

Page 5 of 6



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

TRI COUNCIL NOTES
August 25, 2025

Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Glenn Miller; That the TRI Council
of the Township of Armour, Township of Ryerson and the Village of Burk’s Falls
adjourn this regular TRI Council meeting at 8:15 p.m. until the next regular TRI

Council meeting scheduled for October 27, 2025 to be hosted by the Village of
Burk’s Falls. Carried

Rod Ward, Mayor

Dave Gray, CAO/Deputy-Clerk

Page 6 of 6



O TAR OHE LTHT AM

=S

HHR Recruiter Fundi g Renewal
Request

Sustainin HHR recrui men within Muskoka Almaguin OHT -
Three Year Term

Jul 3,2025

‘KesoLvTio -



MAOHT Health Human Resources (HHR) Recruier P gr

Program Background

* Health service providers, Hospital Foundations, the D'sti t nd Muni ‘palities ha e u ded the
HHR primary care recruitment program for an i itial 3-y artermwhic e pires n e mber 31,
2025. The funding supports an HHR ecruiter and s ciated budget

Recommendation for Extension
» The MAOHT HHR Task Force recommends conti i gt program for a urther -yeare en ion
ue to a ersist nt shortage o primary ¢ re practition s ds ccess of recrui ment to date
through he HHR recruiter and a k Force working dire tI with local practices and he Hospital.

Workforce Analysis within  OHT
» 26Y% of Family Ph sician have been in practice for 30+ y ars.
* 18% of Nu se Pr ctitioners ha e been in p actice for 20+ years.

Patient Services (Waitlists)
* S uth Muskoka Waitlist 13,000 North Mus oka Waitlist 9,000 Health Care Connec 1, 5

MUS O A ALMAGUIN ON ARIO H ALTH TEAM |HH R cruit r F dir:ég R n al Reque



Current Opportunities

The governm n a nounced in stments of $1.85 billion over the next ars o c eate new and e anded
primary care te hrough he ork of Dr. Jane Philpott and the Primary Care Action Team (PCAT).

Ontario Health Teams are mandated to “advanc  PCN (Primary Care Ne ork that organizes the o |
primary care sec o and engages interpr f ssional p ‘mary car provider in OHT pl nning, decision- akin
and implementation of clinical priorities”

Practice Ready Ontario streamlines h proc ss for internat'onally trained ph icians hoh e compete
po tgradua e traini g and have experi nc of 'nd endent practice in amil medicin orasage e
practii ner outside Canada. t will provid u 01 0 new famiy physicians by he - d f2025.

New Medical Graduates: Continued alignment to enhance connection wi h the Northern Onta io Sch o of
Medicine (NOSM) nd explore new con ections t the planned medical school at ork univer ity va AOHT
clinical leader hip nd the HHR recruiter.

Outreach through artner hip: Ontario Physicians Recruitment Alliance. The me bers of OPRA ave a fo us
on international recruitment, standardi ation of finan iali entive , immigration processes, syste d catio |,
acces ing provincial and feder | grants, an ad ocating fo the removal of barriers - ced by recrui e s and
incoming physicians.

MUSKO A ALMAGU N ONTARIO HEALTH TEAM |HHR R r i r undin R newal Request



David G av lle, HHR Recruiter AOHT

Ne HHR Recruiter started Dec mbe 024.
20 years of experience in comm nity/ho pital recruit ent.

Recognized provincially and n tion lly for innovative recruitmen
str egies.

Board o Direcors CaSPR (Canadian Society of Physician
Recruitmen

Board of Director of OPRA Ontario Ph sician Recruitment A lia ce)
and Vi e-Chair of COPRA Cen ral Ontario Ph sician Recrui me t
llia_c

Established relationship wit P° ry C re Practi es, Muskoka

Algonquin H alth Care ( AH ),C m unit Econ mic Development
Officers and Community Leadersh'p

MUSKOKA ALMAGUIN ONTARIO HEALTH T R Re r iter Funding Renewal eque t



HHR Recruitme t Pillar - Areas of Focus

IP LINEDEV .OP E EN AGE E T CO LAB 0
OS Clerks eside ts . iIc-:a «N° -n-agemen . RA OPRA/ a PR
ec uit ent air (ON, UK, USA * Com ity E gagement + ustoe iu PRO
= icDe e t
ocial Media eting cng;s AR A, + NS
ractice Ready Onta io (PR ) iz
. . William S. onk alt car
imary r ction eam PC ) Fu d
e M

Early Succe s

Infiscal ear2 24-25: 15 e fa iy physicians and nur e practitioners joined pra tices
ithin  AOHT.

Ho piali programs atS uth oka/Huntsville district are full staffed till Novem er.

Robust pipeline of internat’ | ¢ ndidates ha been developed.

Updated arketing —differe ti ing usko a Almaguin as an area to Care, Thrive and

Explore.

Multiple comm nity toursu o i gfor otentia candidate visits.

MUSKO A ALMAGUI ONTAR O H HTE M| Recruiter F nding enewal Request



Fu ding Supports by Municipality
/or Distri t

i Townsh 1000

of 25000

Townsh 1000

Mun of n an 1000

T of 25,000

Town of Gravenhurst 10 000
T  ofHun 25,0

Townsh  of keofBa 5,000

T of 1000

T of n 1000

T of 1000

of a 1000

of und 1,000

Request: Municipalitiest  ovide funding supports as per
historical le e abovef ra3- artme e odF 2026to 028.

MU KOKA LMAGUI ONTARIO HEA TH TEAM HHR Recruiter Funding Ren al Request



ppendix

¢ Health Human Resource Task Force — Membership
* Primary are Netwo k — Mandate and Membership

e AOHT - HHR Rec uitment Branding (example)

USKOKA A MAGU N ONTARIO HE LTH TEAM | HHR Re uiter Funding Rene al Request



HHR Task Force Term of Reference Membership O er iew

Prima Care Providers

Dr. Melanie Mar, Family Phy ician, AFHT

& Co-C ief of Family Medicine HDMH

Dr. Sarah Mac innon, Family Physician,

SDMC

Dr. K aled A d | Razek, Chief of Staff,
AHC

Jane Rolfe, NP, Co munity

Municipal Government

Scott Luca , CAO, Gravenhur t
La ren M cDermid, EDO, Hunt ville
Rod Ward, Chair, AHHC

Co-Chai s

Leanna Lefeb re, NP, NM NPLC

Dr. Kristen Jone , Famil Physician, CCFHT

MUS O AA MA

IN ONTARIO HEALTH TEAM | HHR Re ruiter

Organizations

Janine van den Heuve, FHT

Noreen Chan, MAHC

Shelly vand n Heuvel, cti g E ecutive
Di ector, AHFHT

Irene Wright, PFCPAC

Sandy Zurbrigg, PFC C

Is belle McWilliams, H

Katherine Craine, Hunts ille H spital
Fo ndation

Leah Walker, South uskoka Hospital
Foundation

nding Renewal Request



Primary Care Network Terms of Reference Mandate Overview

Esta lishaPi a CaeNetw ktomeetthe requirements of O tario Health for its establishment and to add ocally
driven value t Primary Care Providers and Practices withinth ~ AOHT a it continues to evol e.

Vision .
, _ o PCN Task Fo ce embership

PCNs will conne t, in e rate, and support primary  clinicia s

within  AOHT to improve the deliv ry and coor ination of are for

atients ( H), families and caregivers. Dr. David Mathies Co-Ghair (AFHT)

Dr. Keith Cross Co-Chair (CCFHT)
Dr. Tina Kappos (CCFH )

L anna Lefebvre (NPLC

Dr. Sarah MacKinnon (SDMC)

Dr. Luke Wu  AHC

Dr. Melanie Mar ( FH )

Dr. Stacy Erven (AHFHT)

Donna Kearn Y (Hospice Muskok )
Barb Borland (Midwives of Muskoka
Diane L oyd (PFCP C

bjectives

 Organize the local 8 imary care sector in OHT lanning an
rovide a voice in OHT decision- maki g.

» Serve as a vehicle to support OHTs inthe i ple entatio of
local an provincial priorities. ) o

* Articul te, advocate and drive local primary are priorities
Develop and implement an engagement strat gy a ross the
P imary Care sector.

* Provide for effective and fficient two-way co munications ith
primary care network members from PCN lea ership on
o portuniti s, information to assist p actices an ensu the
voices i thefi | are heard.

MUSKOKA ALM GUIN ONTAR O HEALTH TEAM HH R cruiter F ing Renewal Request



Charlene Watt (De u Clerk)

From: Deb Duce <dduce@maoht.ca>
Sent: September 5, 2025 9:03 AM
To: McMurrich/Monteith Clerk; Admin Joly ; AHHC Email; Brad Kneller ; CAO Armour ;

Cheryl Philip ; Charlene Watt; Clerk Burks Falls; Clerk Kearney; Clerk Machar ; Clerk
Magnetawan ; Clerk Ryerson ; Clerk South River ; Clerk Strong ; Clerk Sundridge ; David
Gravelle; Delynne Patterson ; Jim Ronholm ; Margaret Ann MacPhail; Norm Hofstetter ;
Office Joly ; Mayor Rod Ward; Sean Cotton ; Shawn Jackson ; Tom Bryson; Councillor
Vicky Roeder-Martin

Subject: RE: Minutes from the AHHC Meeting on July 3, 2025

Attachments: MAOHT Deputation to Council Presentation AHHC 2024.07.03.pdf

en b half of t e Almaguin Highlands Health Counci
A the uly " me ting of the Almaguin Highland Health Counc'l the o lowing resolution was approved:

T E EFORE BE IT RE OLVED THAT the Imaguin ‘g lands Heal h Council will request
commitment from each municipal'ty for $1000 per ear for he years 2026, 2027, and 2028 for the
continu d MAOHT Health Human Resources Recruiter.

Would u please hare the status of the resolution wi h your m nicipality. Has the fundin renewal been
ap roved b your Council? If not, wil it be presented in an upcoming meeting? If so, upon a de ision, please
share ith me.

lam w e f hree approvals to date: Stron , Armourand c¢ rrich- onteith.

Thank o for your assistance.

Deb Duce
Admini trati e sistant

skoka Imaguin On ario Healt Team
Cell 70 349 8969

From: McMurrich/Monteith Clerk <clerk@mcmurrichmonteith.com>

Sent: September 5, 2025 8:51 AM

To: Deb Duce <dduce@maoht.ca>; Admin Joly <municipal.admin@townshipofjoly.com>; AHHC Email
<AHHC@burksfalls.ca>; Brad Kneller <bradkneller@live.com>; CAO Armour <cao@townshipofarmour.ca>; Cheryl Philip
<mayorcherylphilip@gmail.com>; Clerk Armour <clerk@armourtownship.ca>; Clerk Burks Falls <clerk@burksfalls.ca>;
Clerk Kearney <nicole.gourlay@townofkearney.ca>; Clerk Machar <aloneymachar@viatnet.ca>; Clerk Magnetawan
<clerk@magnetawan.com>; Clerk Ryerson <clerk@ryerstontownship.ca>; Clerk South River <clerk@southriver.ca>;
Clerk Strong <clerk@strongtownship.ca>; Clerk Sundridge <naustin@sundridge.ca>; David Gravelle
<recruiter@maoht.ca>; Delynne Patterson <delynne.patterson@ryersontownship.ca>; Jim Ronholm
<jronholm@strongtownship.com>; Margaret Ann MacPhail <margaretann.macphail@townshipofperry.ca>; Norm
Hofstetter <norm.hofstetter@townshipofperry.ca>; Office Joly <office@townshipofjoly.com>;
rward@armourtownship.ca; Sean Cotton <cottonmusic@hotmail.com>; Shawn Jackson <sjackson@sundridge.ca>; Tom
Bryson <tombryson@townshipofjoly.com>; Councillor Vicky Roeder-Martin <vroeder-
martin@mcmurrichmonteith.com>

Subject: RE: Minutes from the AHHC Meeting on July 3, 2025



Good morning.

Please be advised that at the Council meeting held Tuesday, September 2", 2025, Council passed a resolution
supporting the extension of the 3 year recruiter funding term ($1,000 per year).

Best Regards,

Cheryl Marshall

Clerk/Treasurer

Township of McMurrich/Monteith

P.O. Box 70, 31 William Street

Sprucedale, Ontario POA 1Y0

T: 705-685-7901 F: 705-685-7393
w_. cmurrichmon e'th.com

This communication is intended for the sole use of the person(s) to whom it is addressed and may contain
information that is privileged, confidential or subject to copyright. Any unauthorized use, disclosure or
copying of this communicatio is strictly prohibited. If you have receive this communication in error, please
contact the sender immediately. Any communication received in error should be deleted and all copies
destroyed.

From: Deb Duce <dd ce@ a ht.ca>

Sent: August 14, 2025 5:35 PM

To: Admin Joly <municipal.a _ in@ ownshipofjoly.com>; AHHC Email <AHHC@burks alls.ca>; Brad Kneller
<bradkneller@live.com>; CAO Armour <cao @townshipofarmour.ca>; Cheryl Philip <mayorcherylphili mail.com>;
Clerk Armour <clerk@armourtow_ship.ca>; Clerk Burks Falls <clerk@burksfalls.ca>; Clerk Kearney
<nicole.gourlay@townofk arn y.ca>; Clerk Machar <aloney achar@viatnet.ca>; Clerk Magnetawan
<clerk@magnetawan.com>; Clerk <cler @mcmurrichmonteith.com>; Clerk Ryerson <c erk erstontowns _ip.ca>;
Clerk South River <clerk@southriver.ca>; Clerk Strong <clerk@strongtownship.ca>; Clerk Sundridge

<_austin@ undridge.ca>; David Gravelle <recruiter@maoht.ca>; Delynne Patterson

<delynne.patterson@ryer onto nship.ca>; Jim Ronholm <jron olm@strongtownship.com>; Margaret Ann MacPhail
<margaretann.macphail@ ownship fpe ry.ca>; Norm Hofstetter <norm.hofstetter@townshipofperry.ca>; Office Joly
<o fice@townshipofjoly.com>; rwar @armourtownship.ca; Sean Cotton <cottonmusic@hotmail.com>; Shawn Jackson

<sjackson@sundridge.ca>; Tom Bryson <tombr son  ownshi of ol .com>; Councillor Vicky Roeder-Martin <vroeder-
martin@mcmurrichmonteith.com>
Subject: Minutes from the AHHC Meeting on July 3, 2025

Attached are the minutes from the meeting on July 3, 2025 of the Almaguin Highlands Health Council.
They will be included for approval in the September meeting agenda package.
Thank you,

ebD ce
Administrative Assistant

u k ka Imaguin Ontario Health Team
Cel 705 349 8969

mail __uce@maoht.ca

Web ite www.maoht.ca



Armour Recreation & Katrine Community Centre

Monthly eeting
September 8, 2025
5pm — Katrine Community Centre
Agenda

a0

CALL TO ORDER

1. WELCOME

2. UPDATES AND GENERAL INFOR ATION ITEMS
a) Previous Event Update

a.

f.

®» o0 o

Soccer

Ball Hockey
Cornhole

Heritage Festival
Baseball Tournament

Summer Camp

b) Programs Update

a.

@ ~ o 00 T

Cornhole

Fall Fashion Frenzy
Fitness

Kids Halloween

Wreath Workshop
Katrine Christmas Market
Gala

c) New Business
d) Next Meeting — October 6

3. ADJOURNMENT



y (22

‘orpor
25 ecal P stal ag729 mi: fo@ ca
Te O 0 Webs" :ww  eed.c
el. 3 =25 fa bookco ee t
:( 13 8-645
T: 1 taro unicipal Council

Collaborative Action on Sustain ble ste nagementi Ontari

A mem ers of municipa coun Is, e harear p sbhiityt mae e ionst at
result 'n the mo t positive outcomesforb hourc rr ntresid n a d future

gene ‘o s.The mana ementof un ipal aseis n ofthem ressi g
environ entalc allengeswef ce da.

arg urban cen res are increasingly look'ng to ral areas for land to bury garbage
waste. onti ui gto wyga e  thegound °linevitably e d rious
co seque ce :

Gobal , solutions alread e ist. Clean i cinerat'on technology can dras ‘call reduce
the volume of was e going t landfill while producing much needed el ctric'ty. German
serves as an inspiring model, aperating 56 m nicipal thermal waste incineration
facilities with an agg egate annual capacity f 25 million tonne . t the same time,
Germany recycles 6 .1% of its m nicipal waste, the highest rate in the world, driven by
s rong comm nity engagement, innovative infrastructure, and ea | education progra s
t at fos er a culture of sus ainability.

e believe Ontario can and mus do better.
We are cal ing for:

1. T e creation of a pro incial working group composed of municipal’ ies, the
Provincia and Federal Governments, and manufacturing p rtners;

2. commitme tto exploring and im ementing clea inciner tion, stronger
rec cling progra s, and other s stainable ractices;

3. Support om ic’pal coun 's across On ario to advocate for immediate a ion
at all levels of govern ent.

W espe | eqest atyo councitconsder p ortngth'si ~~ tveb passinga
“rresolutt a communicat yo suppo P emier Do or , €oppos ‘on

parties, ndotherreleva ts k ol ers.Byactin o er,we nens ethatwaste

d posalin ntaio’s anaged quickly, effi ‘'en y, an sustaina p tecting our

e vron e t nds eguardng our communites for generationst come.

i Flieler
Cou cilo, Muni ip lity f weed

-ReSoL0T ot -



R olution for Incineration and a more Robust Recycling Program

ereas It is incumbent upon the members of council, MPP's and MPs to make the decisions
that Il result in the most positive outcomes for now and future generations

And Whereas ° large urban centres no looking in rural areas of our province and entire
country for lands to bury their garbage waste

And Whereas a large landfill site 0 ed by a large urban centre which receives 50% of their
garbage at the present time is expected to be full by 2029 creating more environmental impacts

And Whereas continuing to bury garbage in the ground will result in our future generations
having lost potable groun ater as a result of garbage leachate rendering it usable.

And as burying garbage, particularly organic waste in landfills, leads to the production of
methane a greenhouse gas, which escapes into the atmosphere and contributes to climate
change causing more en ironmental destruction.

And ereas we continue to destroy our environment jeopardizing our future generations

And Whereas we have orl " e technology that will allow us the use of clean incineration
and also produce much needed electric energy

And Whereas the incineration of household and other municipal waste has a long tradition in
Germany, which currently has 156 municipal thermal aste incineration facilities with an
aggregate annual capacity of around 25 million tons

And Whereas with a strong focus on community involvement, innovative infrastructure, and
sustainable practices, Germany has set a high bar for municipal recycling programs that the rest
ofthe orld can leam from and emulate.

And Whereas at the present time, Germany re cles 66.1%of its garbage aste at a municipal
level. This places the country as the most effective and prominent country  en it comes to
recycling in the entire world. This highlights the citizen's strength and motivation to deal with
environmental issues on a daily basis.

And ereas German schools often integrate recycling education into their curriculum. This
early exposure to the impo  nce of recycling instills a sense of responsibility in the younger
generation, creating a culture of sustainability that trans  ds generations.

Now Therefore be it resolved that Council direct staff to investigate the possibility of working
together ~ Ontario unicipalities, Provincial and Federal Govemments as well as our
manufacturing partners to form a working group to ensure that our aste disposal issues can be
resolved quickly, efficiently and effectively ° the use of incineration, more robust recycling
programs and sustainable practices so that our future generations will not suffer from our
environmental mismanagement and to request support from these organizations as well as
letters being sent to all municipalities in Ontario, Premier Ford and the opposition parties.



Municipality of Gouncil Meeting ® %,
Councll ee § . %
 Resolution No. 3ssS =it
Title: Notice of otion - Incineration and a ore Robust Recycling
Date: Tuesday, August 12, 2025
by Councillor J. Flieler
nded by Councillor P. Valiquette

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct staff to investigate the possibility of working together with the
Ontario unicipalities, Pro ncial and Federal Go emments as well as our manufacturing partners to
forma rking group to ensure that our waste disposal issues can be resolved quickly, efficiently and
effectively ith the use of incineration, more robust recycling programs and sustainable practices so
that our future generations will not suffer from our environmental mismanagement and to request
support from these organizations as ell as letters being sent to all municipalities in Ontario, Premier
Ford and the opposition parties.



TOWNSHIP OF ¢ URRICH/MONTEITH
District of Parry Sound
- P.O.Box 70 31 William Street
Sprucedale, Ontario POA 1Y(0
Phone 705-685-7901 Fax 705-685-7393
www.memurrichmonteith.com  E-Mail:_clek@mcmurrichmonteith.com

dAm .~ PUBLIC NOTICE

Take Notice that the Council for the Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith
will hold a Public Meeting to consider municipally initiated amendments to the
Township's Zoning By-Law 16-2016, as amended, pursuant to Section 34 of the
Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P.13, as amended.

On Tuesday, September 16, 2025, at 7:00 p.m.

in the Council Chambers at the Township Administration Office, located at 31 William
Street, Sprucedale, Ontario, POA 1YO0.

Members of the public are encouraged to attend the meeting or submit written
comments prior to the meeting.

Purpose and Effect: The purpose and effect of the proposed amendment is to address
three matters that have arisen during the application and review of the By-Law and to
assist in the use and interpretation of the By-Law. These include the following:

{1) To amend Section 3.1.3 (Principal Building to be erected First) by removing the
following text from the section: “... or a single storage shed not exceeding 25
square metres (270 square feet) in gross floor area or one (1) single storage
container.” The section is now proposed to read: “No accessory building or
structure shall be erected on any lot until the principal building has been erected,
with the exception of: temporary construction uses or a garage during the term of
an active building permit for the principal building, or a septic system, or dock”.

(2) To reduce the inimum Dwelling Unit Area in Table 5 to 19 square metres (204.5
square feet) in the Waterfront Residential, Settlement Residential, Rural, General
Commercial, Tourist Commercial and General Industrial zones; and

(3) To remove the size requirement for a secondary dwelling in Table 4 to be a
maximum of 50% of the floor area of the principal dwelling.

There is no key map attached to this notice given that the provisions of this By-law shall
apply to the entire Township.

Information Available: Pursuant to Section 34 (10.7) of the Planning Act, the
application file is part of the public record and is available to the public for inspection. An
electronic copy of the Draft By-law is available for review on the Township website at
www mcmur chmonteith.co

Any person who requires further information or clarification regarding the application
should contact the Township Clerk at clerk  cmurrichmonteith.co or 705-685-7901

If you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith on the
proposed Zoning By-Law Amendment, you must make a written request to the Township
Clerk at the address noted below.

If a person or public body would otherwise have an ability to appeal the decision of the
Council of the Township of McMurrich/Montieth to the Ontario Land Tribunal but the
person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make
written submissions to the Township before the by-law is passed, the person or public
body is not entitled to appeal the decision.

If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting, or make
written submissions to the Township of McMurrich/Monteith before the by-law is passed,
the person or public body may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal

@)



before the Ontario Land Tribunal unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are
reasonable grounds to do so.

DATED AT THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH THIS 26th DAY OF August
2025.

Cheryl Marshall, Clerk

Township of McMurrich/Monteith

P.O. Box 70, 31 William Street, Sprucedale, Ontario POA 1Y0
Tel: 1-705-685-7901 Fax: 1-705-685-7393

Email: clerk@mcmurrichmonteith.com



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MCMURRICH/MONTEITH
BY-LAW XX - 2025

Being a By-Law to further amend the Zoning By-Law 16-2016, as amended, to update
Provisions based on an Administrative Review (Housekeeping Amendment)

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith is empowered
to pass By-laws to regulate the use of land pursuant ta Section 34 of the Planning Act, 1990, as
amended,;

AND WHEREAS the Tawnship of McMurrich/Monteith has initiated a municipal amendment and
has proposed to further amend the Zoning By-Law No. 16-2018, as amended (‘By-Law”), to
address housekeeping matters that have arisen during the application and review of the By-Law
and to assist in the use and interpretation of the By-Law;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MCMURRICHMONTEITH ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. THAT Section 3.1.3 entitled “Principal Building to be Erected First’, of Zoning By-law
16-2016, as amended, is deleted and replaced with the following:

“No accessory building or structure shall be erected on any lot until the principal
building has been erected, with the exception of temporary construction uses or
a garage during the term of an active building permit for the principal building,
or a septic system, or dock.”

2. THAT Table 5 entitled “Zone Requirements Table”, of Zoning By-law 16-2016, as
amended, is amended by deleting the Dwelling Unit Area (minimum) for the Waterfront
Residential, Settlement Residential, Rural, General Commercial, Tourist Commercial
and General Industrial zones, and replacing it with the following: “19.0 sq m (204.5 sf).”

3. THAT Table 4 entitled “Permitted Uses for all Zones”, of Zoning By-law 16-2016, as
amended, is amended by deleting Note 8, which reads: “(8) the floor area of the
secondary dwelling shall be a maximum 50% of the floor area of the single detached
dwelling and replacing it with the following: “(8) This clause deleted by By-law 2025-

4. In all other respects, the provisions of Zoning By-Law 16-2016, as amended, shall apply.
5. This By-law shall take effect from the date of its passage by Council and shall come into

force in accordance with Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Ch P.13, as
amended.

READ a first and second time this 16 day of September 2025

Mayor, Glynn Robinson Clerk, Cheryl Marshall

READ a third time and passed this 16th day of September 2025

Mayor, Glynn Robinson Clerk, Cheryl Marshall



Nie es  uijarro

Burk’s Falls, Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library
Box 620, 39 Copeland St.

Burk’s Falls, ON POA 1CoO

705 23327

burksfallslibrary@gmail.com

www.burksfallslibrary.com
“Where do You 9o to grow? Try your public Library!

A Visit Wil Get You Thinking”

From: TD Summer Reading Club [mailto:tdsrc-cletd@tpl.ca]
Sent: August 25, 2025 8:02 AM

To: burksfallslibrary@gmail.com

Subject: News from TD Summer Reading Club

View this email in your browser

Re ingf no 'dsfr

C a a' publiclibra i

In conversation with the 2024

Accessibility Award winner: Tips

from a small-town library

22/08/25

Each year, TDSRC and the Centre for Equitable Library Access (CELA)

recognize a participating library for their dedication to accessibility. The 2024

winner of the Accessibility Award is the Burk’s Falls, Armour & Ryerson Union

Public Library. This small, rural Ontario library exemplifies the spirit of this



award. Not only did they prioritize accessibility every step of the way, but they
also demonstrated that you don't need unlimited resources to have a big
impact.

Lily Kyte, the Summer Program Coordinator, shared some insights about how
they created an accessible and inclusive summer reading club. Here are some

of her tips and examples to help you do the same.

Tips for maximizing limited resources

1. Make use of free resources

The summer reading club staff at Burk’s Falls “focused strongly on resources
provided by the TDSRC and CELA on the staff site, such as suggestions for
accessible activities, guidelines on how to offer accessible formats for reading
logs and other print materials, and more.” Kyte stressed that learning about and
improving accessibility doesn’t have to be expensive.

1. Know your patrons

By “focusing on what [their] patrons needed and wanted to see in [their] library,’
the staff at Burk’s Falls were able to offer engaging and accessible programs.
After the resounding success of a braille program during their 2023 summer
reading club, they made a point of bringing this program back in 2024. They
even created “tactile materials that became permanent fixtures in [the] library.”



In this instance, the popularity of one program led to a long-term accessibility
improvement.

1. Look beyond your current patrons

Remember that there are people in your community who haven't yet become
library patrons. Burk’s Falls recommends being “observant of the world around,
both within your library and more broadly.” By doing this, you learn about who
isn't coming through your doors and what you can do to change that. There are
people with disabilities, including children, in every community. They just might

not know that the library is a place for them too.

1. Promote accessibility

You don't need a large budget to make some simple adjustments to your
promotions. For example, add accessibility information to your flyers. Burk’s
Falls also “placed posters in the children’s section of [the] library with
information on what formats [they] offer (printbraille, braille, decodable books,
and audiobooks), encouraging patrons to ask questions and explore these
options.” Plus, they made sure to then include these different formats in their
regular book displays.

1. Put accessibility into practice

Burk’s Falls demonstrates that a little patience and ingenuity can go a long way.
When a participant with limb difference was struggling during a crochet

program, the Summer Program Coordinator collaborated with the child to



create a workaround. Some quick thinking meant that “the child was able to
participate more fully and be more involved than they would have if these
supports were not available.” For 2025, Burk’s Falls is bringing sign language
into their programming by featuring different regional sign languages during
their weekly Around the World-themed programs.

Small libraries, big accomplishments

When asked what winning the Accessibility Award meant to the library, Kyte
explained that it “represents the power that small libraries can hold in their
communities, acting as a resource to promote accessibility and inclusion for
all.” Very true!

She also offered an important reminder: “Inclusivity and accessibility are
responsibilities that all libraries share in providing a positive, equitable
experience to all patrons who enter their doors—especially for young readers...
No matter how large or small your library is, or the resources you have
available to you, there is a great idea just waiting for you to share with your
community.”

Congratulations to Burk’s Falls, Armour & Ryerson Union Public Library! Keep
up the good work! |



Since 1992

Serving

Township
of Armour

Village of
Burk's Falls

Town of
Ke ney

Municipality of
agnetawan

Township of
McMurrich/
onteith

Township
Of Perry

Township
of Ryerson

Memberships

Feed Ontario

Food Banks Canada

@25

Burk’s Falls and District Food Bank
Serving Almaguin South

P.O. Box 694

Burk’'s Fal s, ON, POA 1CO

RECEIV D
SEP 03 2025

TOWNSHIP OF Ak /.«

August 2025

Charlene Watt

unicipal Clerk
Township of Armour
56 Ontario Street
Burk's alls, ntario
POA 1CO
Charlene,
The Burk’s Falls and District Food Bank would once again like to express our
sincere ‘thanks’ not only for all Armour does to support our Food Bank but in
particula o include u inyour: nnual Heritage Festival.
Once again, the festival was a HUGE success, thanks to the dedicated eople
who are involved with all that is required to organize such an amazing e ent.
This year, the 50/50 draw raised $450.55 for the Food Bank. Typically, at this
time of year, donations are down. These funds will go a long way to help
support those in need within all our communities.

We greatly ppreciat being ablet ‘set up our table’ at this event and will

look forward to being involved again next year.

Sincerely

Karen -William
Executive Director
Burk’s Falls and District F* od Ban

Phone messages checked daily: 705-380-4669



EWS RELEASE

Ontario Expanding RSV Immunization to Protect More
Seniors This Fall

Expanded program to include everyone aged 75 years and older

August 27, 2025
Health

TORONTO — The Ontario government is expanding the Respiratory Syncytial Virus
(RSV) prevention program to include all individuals aged 75 years and older, helping
to p otect those most vulnerable during the upcoming respiratory il ness season.

"Our government is ensuring the most vulnerable have access to the tools they
need to protect themselves and their family during respiratory illness season," said
Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. "We're once again expanding
RSV immunization which will now include everyone 75 years of age and older so we
can help protect more seniors and reduce unnecessary hospitalizations this fall and
winter.”

Starting this fall, RSV immunization will now be available through Ontario’s publicly
funded RSV immunization programs to all individuals aged 75 and older, building
on last year’s _pansion of the programs that also includes:

¢ Certain high-risk adults aged 60 to 74, such as residents of long-term care
homes or retirement homes

e Infants up to eight months of age in their first RSV season

e High-risk children up to 24 months of age in their second season

Pregnant women will have the option to receive the RSV vaccine Abrysvo®, which
can help provide protection to infants at birth, while eligible newborns, infants and
high-risk children can receive the Beyfortus® immunization. More details on where
families will be able to access RSV immunization will be provided in the coming
weeks.

“As we prepare for the upcoming respiratory illness season, it's essential that we
take proactive steps to protect those most at risk and reduce pressure on our
health-care system,” said Dr. Kieran oore, Ontario's Chief Medical Officer of
Health. “Ontario’s RSV immunization programs for infants, high-risk children, high-



risk adults over 60 and everyone aged 75 and older is a critical part of our strategy
to prevent severe illness, hospitalizations, and complications, especially among
those most vulnerable to respiratory infections.”

Routine and recommended immunizations help prevent the spread of serious
diseases throughout communities, reduce medical visits and keep people out of
the hospital. Everyone is strongly encouraged to stay up to date on their
immunizations, especially children returning to school who may have missed
routine vaccines.

Through Your Health: A Plan for Connected and Convenien Care, the Ontario
government is providing people with the tools they need to connect to the care
they need to keep themselves and their loved ones safe and healthy.

Quick Facts

¢ Information about recommended immunizations for the upcoming respiratory
illness season, including when to get your flu shot and COVID-19 vaccine, will be
available closer to the fall.

e Respiratory Syncytial Virus (RSV) is a common respiratory virus that infects the
nose, throat, and lungs. Infection is most severe in young babies and older
adults and can cause serious lung infections that may require hospitalization.
RSV infection can also make chronic health problems worse.

* Pregnant women should consult with their health-care provider before
receiving Abrysvo®.

* Every time your child gets a routine immunization, report it to your local public
health unit to ensure their records for the ISPA are up to date. Health-care
providers do not report these records for you.

¢ Under Ontario’s Immunization of School Pupils Act (ISPA), students must
provide proof of immunization against diseases such as measles, mumps,
rubella and whooping cough to attend school.

¢ Talk to a health-care provider or public healt unit if you are unsure if your child
has missed routine immuniza ions or if you are unsure about which
immunizations they have received.

e Visit Healt 811 online or call 811 (TTY: 1-866-797-0007 toll free) for health
advice and information 24 hours a day, seven days a week.




@

Charlene Watt (De u Clerk)

From: City of Kingston Feedback <feedback@cityofkingston.ca>
Sent: September 3, 2025 8:28 AM
To: Charlene Watt
Subject: City of Kingston Customer Experience Feedback - [Reference #: 250815-000169]
2
o]

o

Reference #: 250815-000169

Subject: Township of Armour: Resolution Regarding Governance of Family Health Teams in Ontario
We would like to hear from you!

Please take a bri_f survey (2-3 minutes) about your experience with the City of Kingston.

Your feedback is very important to us. Any feedback collected will be used for quality assurance purposes and
assist with improving our service delivery.

Thank you in advance for your time!
Customer Experience Team

City of Kingston
216 Ontario St
Kingston, ON K7L 2Z3

613-546-0000
contactus@cityofkingston.ca

Unsubscribe from future surveys.



»
-0 0 [ ] ]
* PARRY SOUND BISTRICT
There were 465 job postingsrecorded or Nipissing here were 112 ‘ob postings recorded f r
Di trict in July. This figure is minimall high r in Parry und District in uly. his is a identical
month-over-month (  .3%, +6) comparisons bu in m nth-over-month (0%, 0) numbe nd
signi ica tly lower in year-over-ye r (-1 .6%, -99 ignificant decrease in year-over- ear(-26.3%,- 0
compari ons. There were 24 unique employer co ari ons. There ere 73 unique employe s
this month; an increase in month-over-month his o th; highe in mon h-over-mon h (+5. %o,
(+4.8%, +11) comparisons. +4 ¢ mparisons.
TOT LNU BE (30}, TOTAL NUMB R
OF JOB OS INGS OFJOBPO Tl GS
4 : <
n_ D—
L L
OFTHE 4 5JO POST NGS - O THE 112 JOB PO
¢ )% 12.5%
J (3Cri il ).‘ J (14) Crimina
Record C ec . Record “hec .
o 4.6% 10 % 5.4%
Collecte f om (68 Requiring a - olle” ed om (6 Requiring a
lin sour es. bilin ualin ivid I nli es6r¢ s ili gual indivi” ual.
Fo post’ gs r.po tings
tha 1 e an $ ‘ /yea that ist dan 6 ,8 . 0 year
annual aa . an Isalary. AV E
9 e vragehou w e $ Q  hea t e orly age
Nt y iJd r > in‘ulyfor os po i.-s
- y oe o gs in" uly p
-~ HOU LYWAG | hichlisted o . RIW GE iy
he 2 posi swhi lis an ury ge9.6° 2) Of the sting - _ichli eda h url wate5.1 :-")
wrei eda thepo ¢i mini umw 7.0 ou. re iste at rovincial minimum age - $17. ¢ o .

* North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) is the system utilized by e governments of Canada, Unites States and Mexico in
order to classify companies based on their primary functions/objectives.



TOP 5 EMPLOYERS POSTING JOBS

North Bay Regional Healt Centre
Voyageur Aviation Corp
Ontario Northland

Nipissing Univer ity

Conseil Scolai e C tholiqu Franco-Nord

40 - —
&
',,% 30
8
a- 20
Q
9
5 10
* 10
0
TOP 5 INDUSTRIES HIRI G (NAICS)
9 alth. r
804/o So i |A sita
ofall ob osti: s (NAIC' 2) '

op 5 Posit ons

Registered Practical Nur
1 Registered | urse
1 Administrative  sistant/ ice

Personal / Home upport Worker

ONWO

So ial Service Work r C se Manager

13.3 /o: Retail Trad (NAI S44-45)

9 10.5%:

e 8.4%: Educational Services (NAICS 61)

rans - ortation & Warehousing (NAICS 48-49)

9 8.4%: Accommodation and Food Services (NAICS 72)

he Health Care and Social As i tance (NAICS-62)
industry saw the mos number of job postings in July
making up 28.4% (133) of he otal. he ransportation
and Warehousing (NAICS- - 8-49) industry saw the largest
month-over-mon h incr ase o + .3%, re-introducing
it as top 3 contributors, after being out since March.
Contrary to June, the Administrativ and Support,
Waste Management and Remediation ervices industry
(NAICS-56) saw the largest month-o er-month decrease
(-3.5%) in job posting represent tion, this decrease is
almost identical to last mon h's i crea e.

TOP S EMPLOYERS POSTING JOBS

. We Parry ound Health Cen r
. asauksing Firs Nation

. Tim Hortons - Parry ound

. Magnetawan Grill and Grocery

Canadian Mental Health A soci tion

30
20

10

#of o Postings

TOP

O/ a re &
3 ® ocia A'si ta ¢
(N IC 62)

NDU TRIES HIRING (NA CS

o all'ob’ o tings
o oS

c " :/W-r er’: as’ anage
erson I/ ome upp- W-rker

A rr i ssis ant

I ner

gist red rse

O 5.

9 6. %: Re ail rade (NAICS 44-45)

ccommodation and Food Services (NAI S

o .9%: Public dminis ration (NAICS 91)
9 7. %: Cons ruction (NAICS 23)

Inline with expecta ions, the He Ith Care and ocial
Assistance (NAIC -62 industry saw the most number of
job po tingsin ulywith3 . % (35 o thetotal, it | o

aw the larges increase ( .6%) hismonh. e ris,
Entertainme and Recrea ion (NAICS-71) indus ry sa
the largest mon h-over-month decr ase -4.5%.

)



* National Occup tion Classification (NOC) is the system utilized by the Government of Canada to organize occupations based on the primary job requirements and skill level.

TOP 3 OCCUP TIONAL CATEGORIES (NOC)

7. 30 (S Ieé 5 ervic

20

10

# of Job Pos ings

0

B Sales ssociate

B Food Service Worker /Barista
B Cleaner / Janitor

B Cook/Che

Customer Service Representative

Trades Trans orta io ,
.7% and Equip ent
Opera ors NOC7

Truck Driver (9

Mechanic - Truck / Bus / Other (7)
Heavy Equipment Operator (7)
Building Maintenance Worker (6
3 iedwit (5)

o/, Business, Fin nce and
1 5.9/° Adm’nistration { O

Administra i e Assistant / Officer (23)
Financial fficers( )

Invento / Logistics Controllers (10)

Human Resources Profes ionals (8)
Marketing / Communications Professional (7)

ales and Service (NOC-6) based occupations made
up 27.3% ( 27) of all the job postings listed in July.
Continuing from June, the Education, Law and Social,
Communi and Government Services (NOC-4) based
occupations once agai saw the biggest decrease this
month too (-3.0%). he rades, Transportation, and
Equipmen  perators (NOC-7) based occupations saw
the largest increase ( 3.2%). Looking at managerial
roles, 15 of 36 fellint e al sand Service occupations,
8in rades, Transportation, and Equipment Operators
and 5 each made up th Business, Finance and
Administration and Natural nd pplied sciences and
related occupation . As for he 5 senior managerial roles,
2 belonged to Education, 1 each in the Community
industry, Transport a d Public dministra ion.

TOP 3 OCCUPATIONALC EGO IE (NOCQ)

o e ¢
0]
30
[72]
o)
£
Hh 20
o
a.
S 10
R
o
H# 4
B FoodSe ice ork r
B Cook/Che B er
Bl Sales Associa e
B anior/Cleaner
Clerk / Cashier
ai-, a n
© i °
o e 1 e o

* Social ervice Worker  ase Manager (10)
eacher - Prima  /Secondary / Early Childh od( )

Communi Program Coordina or (

Home Support Worker (2

Teaching sitans()

r , s i
°© d quip 't
e r )

Roofer / Installer (4

Labourer-Trade /Co sru ion 4
Con ruction anager/ Supervisor (2)
4 occupa ions iedwi h(1 each

Sales nd Service (NOC-6) base occupa ions
represented the largest number of job posting in

Jul ith almost half (45. %, 51) o allp ting when
compared o he o her occupa ional classi ic ions,

i also saw he larges mon h-over-mon h in rease
(+6.3%, + ). The largest decrease (- . %) was een in
the Heal h (NOC 4) occupa ions. Loo in a managerial
roles, of the 9 roles advertised, 6 |l in the ales and
Service occupations, there ere no senior manager ro es
advertised this month.



—]
—
——
OP HO R W GE VACANCIES =g5
® Physio he a is
¢ 2 O i issing Heal hcar
125
o
[}
o]
0
2
0

Nors Pr. “ionr
$78. @ Casse lholme o e for the Aged

$.5.00 Massage : herapist’ Registered
% ipissing Healthcare

$64.17 Head of Informa ion Sy ems and Technology
: @ ands,  eFamilyHelpNetwork.ca

61.28 Psychoeducational Cons ltant - - ll Regions
: Near North District School Board

TOP 3 ANNUAL SALARY VACANCIES

$ 61,000.00

enior Manager - ab ur & Employee Relations
@ O tario Northland

$150,000.00

Real Estate ales Repre entative
@ Royal LePage Real Estate

$15 ,000.00

ales Manager - Automotive
@ remblay Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram

we n | ala $ 6,00 .00
| r - Dairy/F ozen
Ima - 0o B

Nearly haf, 9%, o thej bsin July listed an hourly
wage. The average was $ 9.05/hour, higher (+ .6%,
+ .01) han he current 1 -month average of $28.04/
hour. Of he 2 8 po ings, which listed an hourly wage,
9.6% (22) wer i ted at the provincial minimum wage of
$17.20/hour, this is an increase from June and continues
the trend een in pril and Ma . For postings that listed
an annual alary, he average was $77,617.52/ ear. This
is slightly lo er (- .8%,-$ ,425.42) than the current
-month average of 79,042.94/year.

(©

<>
o GEVAC NCE “e=
TOP5HOU L E VAC NCIE =
g e u
'y e Par tre
10
()
(1]
=
2 50
2
2 2
0

$ 4.0 Assi  nt Director of Care
5 Eastholme Home for the Aged

Dental Hygienist - Maternity Leave
42.00 Powassan Dental Centre

Resort Manager
$38.46 Jolly Roger Inn & Resort

$3 Case Manager - Crisis
: @ Canadian ental Health Association

$99,00 o0

elec mmunica ion i ian
@ elecom unicaion ec niianlnegrae olution

$94,44

Social Service rk r - Chi elfare
@ Children's Ai Socie o he
Dis ric o Nipis ingan Parry Sound

$9 ,000.

Project anager-C nstr ion
@ damsBros.Con ru i n

aa 0 o
Ca ier

No rills- aijeand r- '/ i .o on

Over half (52.7%) of he "ob postings list d an hourl

wage in July. The average a $ 6.29/hour. This is

lower; -2.3% (-$0.63/hour), han he current 2-month
average of $ 6.92/hour. Oft 59 po ings which listed
an hourly age,onl 3(5. A)wa lit da he provincial
minimum wage of $ .20 hour. he a era e annual salary
listed was 61,862.5 igniican lylo er han the current
12-month avera e (-1 . o,-$10,62 . 2)of $7 ,4 0.22.
These fluctu tions ree pe e so vrysmllishr
of job postings li tthe nnuals | ryin he district.



6 % of listi %
°

Jul

61% 35')of he i tin sind |
i'dicaed ha te m |- . ent
ered o d:ecla ifi das
ulti e.Thi fi uei m c . ower,
- .27 ,fro the previous ont whe 8 .37 of the
ostng eeclassfiedasf Il-ti e.

. Fu |-time 35 ‘Hours)
B rt-time (20-34 Hour )
. Casual ( nder 20 Hours)

465 Postings listed hours offered ( 00%)

TERM OF EMPLOYMENT
89% oflisti sin . 2%
uly o

89% (4 4)oft elisti s .
in uly stated hatt. e

pportuni -in question would t

b -er anen. i islower
(4.2% t the pre ious mont 's .
igur of 93. %.

-

. ermanent

. Temporary / Contract /
Seasonal

4 9 Postings listed hours offered (100°o)

FULL-TIME / PART-TIME BREAKDOWN

° i

7 . % (85 o he istingsi ul .

i dicated h tee p y en N

offered would be cla sified as

ull-time.  isis de line; -1 .6%,

rom he revio s o th where 87.5% of the 'ob

ostingsw re as ii d as full-time. That's h ee
consecu ive mon h o
ecli ein ull- ime role .

. Full time (35+ Hours)
. Part-time (20-34 Hour
. Casual (Under 20 Hours)

1 12 Posin s i edho rso ered(100%)

TERM @F EMPLOYMENT

9294 (1 6) o helis ings .
inJuly s at d that he

opp rtunity in questio woul

be p rm nent. Thi issligh ly

lower (-1. %)t n e previous

mon h's figureo  .6%.

. Permanent

. emporary / Contract
easonal

1 Pos ings i ed hours o ered( 00°%)



Eisd
NIPISSING DISTRICT

241 Pizza Sturgeon Falls
A&S Towing
A1 Blasting Mats
Actlabs
AlM Kenny U-Pull
Algonquin Nursing Home of Mattawa
Allison the Bookman
Anishinabek Nation
Apollo Transport
Ardene
Arugula
Ashley HomeStore North Bay
Bay Builders
Bay Roofing and Exteriors Lt .
Bay Vision Care
Bayland Property Management
Bedard Plumbing of North Bay
Bentley & Co Ltd
Bentley Business Management
Services Inc.
Best Western North Bay Hotel &
Conference Centre
Beyond Sushi
Binx Professional Cleaning
BioScript Solutions
Blanchfield Roofing Co. Ltd.
Boathouse / Blackwell Stores
Body Back in Motion
Bradwick Property Management
Brain Injury Association of North Bay
and Area
Brandt Industries
Buchner Manufacturing Inc.
Bulk Barn Foods Limited
Bumper to Bumper - H.E. Brown
Caisse Alliance
Callon Dietz
Campus Living Centres
Canada Cartage
Canadian Adventure Camp
Canadian Mental Health Association -
North Ba and Area
Canadian Red Cross
Canadore College
Canadore College - Aviation Campus
Canadore College - College Drive
Canor Construction
CarePartners
CARQUEST Canada
Carter's|OshKosh

ascades Casino
Case 's Grill Bar
Cash4 uCorp.
Cassellholme Home for the Aged
Castle Glass and Mirror
Cl sing the Gap Healthcare
Columbia Forest Products Ltd
Comfort Inn - Airport
Commissi naires
Community Living North Bay
Conseil Scolaire Catholique Franco-Nord
Conseil scolaire ublic du Nord-Est de
|'Ontario

Contrans Flatbed Group
Coop Regionale e Nipissing-Sudbury
Ltee
Cooper Equipment Rentals
CRC Solutions
Crisis Centre North Bay
CTS Canadian Career College
David Reynolds and  sociates Inc.
Dawson Shoes
Defence Construction Canada
Dentistry on Worthington
Designed Roofing Inc
District of Nipissing Social Se ices
Administration Board
District School Board Ontario
North East
Dollarama - North Bay
Dynacare
Eagles Nest Gas Bar
Eclips Stores Inc

ctrxlt.
Ed Seguin & Sons Trucking and Paving
EMCO Corporation
Empire Living Centre
Essential Ext riors
Executive Aviation
Eye Specialist of Northern Ontario
Fairfield Inn & Suites by Marriott
Nort Bay
Fastenal
Fat Bastard Burrito Co.
FOM4
FedEx Express Canada
Fire & Flower Inc
First Student / First ransit
Fowler Construction
Franklin Motel
G&P Welding and Ironworks
GardaWorld
Gateway Dental
GFL Environmental
Giant Tiger - North Bay
Godspeed Group
goeasy
Goulet Contracting
Grant Home Hardware Building Centres
Grec 's Pizza Presto
Griffin Jewellery Designs
Grounded Electrical
H kim Optical
Hands, TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca
Haskins Industrial Inc.
Innovation Initiatives Ontario North
Intelcom | Dragonfly
IPC
Jacent Strategic Merchandising Canada
Jocko Point Fish and Chips
Kal Tire
Kaltech Mining Services Ltd.
Karis Disabili Se ices (formerly
Christian Horizons)
Kentucky Fried Chicken - Lakeshore Dr.
Kia North Bay
Kinoomaadziwin Education Body
Kohltech Windows & Entrance Systems
Lafarge Canada Inc

Les Soeurs de |'Assomption de la
Sainte vierge

Lewis Motor Sales Inc

Liberty Tax

Lifetouch

Loblaw Companies Limited
Manitoulin Group of Companies
Marina Point Village

McDonald's (North Bay)

McDougall Energy Inc.

Metal Fab Ltd.

MetricAid

M M General Contracting

Miller Paving

Mincon Canada

Montessori Learning Centre of North
Bay Inc.

Moores

Moose's Cookhouse

Mr Seamless Eavestroughing Itd
Near North District School Board
Near North Medical Clinic

Neddy's North Bay Hyundai

New Horizons Communications
Niijaansinaanik Child and Family Services
Nipissing Healthcare

Nipissing University

Nipissing Wellness Ontario Health Team
North Bay Animal Hospital

North Bay Humane Society

North Bay Hydro

North Bay Indigenous Hub

North Bay Jack Garland Airport
North Bay Mazd

North Bay Parry Sound District Health
Unit

North Bay Police Service

North Bay Powder Coating

North Bay Public Library

North Bay Regional Health Centre
North Bay Sport Medicine

North Care Dental

North Ontario Food Sales

Northern Dental Specialty Group
Northem Honda

Northern Ontario Film Studios/
Hideaway Pictures

Northwood Window and Door Centre
Nutrition Club Canada

One Kids Place Children's Medical
Treatment Center of North East Ontario
One Plant

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources
and Forestry

Ontario Ministry of Transportation
Ontario Municipal Administrators
Association (OMMA)

Ontario Northland

Ontario Power Generation

Ontario Provincial Police

Oxford Learning Centres, Inc.
Paramed Home Health Care

Pavao Contracting Inc

Pearle Vision

Peoples Jewellers

Petro Canada - Algonquin Ave.
PHARA

Pioneer Construction
Premier Mining Products
Quantum Lifecycle Partners LP
Rainbow Concrete Industries Ltd.
Redpath Mining Contractors and Engineers
Rexall Pharmacy Group ULC
Roots Canada
Royal LePage Real Estate
Scotiabank - North Bay
See More Graphics
Shoppers Drug Mart
Sienna Senior Living
Sobeys - North Bay
Source For Sports North Bay
Spencer Gifts
Spirit Halloween
SRP Building Products Inc.
Stantec

taples Canada
Starbucks
Stock Transpo ation
Stockfish Automotive Group
STUDYBUDDY CANADA
IMMIGRATION INC.
Subway - Lakeshore Drive
Subway - Pinewood Park Drive
Subway - Shirreff Ave.
Sub ay - Sturgeon Falls
Super 8 Hotel
Syl's Nei hbourhood Kitchen
Talize
Tan Tan Wok
Taylormaid
The Block Public House
The Body Sculptors
The Children's Aid Society of the District
of Nipissing and Parry Sound
The Corporation of the City of North Bay
The Hairport
The Home Depot - North Bay
The Lindsay Weld Centre for Children
The Shoe Company
The Sisters of St. Joseph of Sault Ste Marie
The Skyline Group of Companies
The Submarine Place
ThinkOn
Tim Hortons
Total Cabinet Modules
Tremblay Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram
Twiggs - Sturgeon Falls
Twiggs Coffee Roasters- Canadore Location
Union of Ontario Indians
Valin Partners
Victorian Order of Nurses/ ON
Vista Radio Ltd
Voyageur Aviation Corp
Voyago
Wacky ings
Walmart - North Bay
Wiaters Edge Care Community
West Nipissing General Hospital
Wolseley Canada Inc.
YMCA of Northeastern Ontario
Zedd Customer Solutions

Continu d on next page



P  YSO ND DISTRICT

est Parry Sound Health Centre
Was uksing First Nation
Tim Hortans - Parry  ocund
Magnet w n Grill nd Groce
Canadian Mental ealth Association
ardens of Parry Sound Retirement Home
Adams Bros. Construction
Soundseals Insulation
The Friends
Glenn Burne Lodge
District of Parry Sound Social Services
Administration Boar
E stholme H m forthe Aged
The Home Depot - Parry Sound
Lakeside Co age Care
B stValue Inn and Suites
W Imart - Parry ound
Bernard's Bistro On The Lake
TDBan -Par Sound
Subway - Burk's Falls

Connor Indust ies

Shawanaga First Nation Healin  Centre
Integrated Solutions

Sha anaga First Nation

Di alvo's Bell Cucina and FamilyS le
Meals

Schlager Inc.
Subwa - Parry Sound

Rosseau Road Powerspo  and Marine Ltd.

Trestle Brewin  om any Limited
Powassan Dental Centre
Gran  Tappattoo Resort
Petro Canada

S ift Canoe and Ka ak

Parry Sound Home Hardware
Dairy Queen

Parry Sound Forest School
Caswell Resort Hotel
Ontario Public Service

Blitz Electric

HTIT

'L G ONTHL

- OBS

iJ s e is
ach mon

withinthe di _icts of Ni issjf\g and P fry Sound.

onthyp blication r

OR .

ed-  he r

One Kids Place Children's Medical
Treatment Center of North East
Ontario

LCBO

Northridge Inn and Resort

Joll' Roger Inn & Resort

Northeastern On  rio Multicultural Centre
Hammon  Transportation Ltd.

No Frills - Stacie and Troy's

The Childr n's Aid Society of the
District of Nipissing and Parry Sound
Niijaansinaanik Child and Family Services
Fowl r Construction

Near North District School Board

Sun ridge Dental

Nails by Siri

Dent Bay Baking Company

Best Buy Express

Cro ers Food Ltd

%

€  oup.
ecompi t isreport -ase onour o - po ar adysethired. - .
Readysethire . 1'sanonline ‘ob orta thatpr idesa d co lects real time ob posti gs

esepo_ingsareupdat - dail and

provide job eekerswithaonest s op orlocal du ente ploym n opportun ies.

FOR MORE INFORMATION & FURTHER DETAILS ABOUT L - AL JOBS, PLEASE CONTACT :

The Labour arket Group
readyset ired.ca

info@thelabourmarketgro p.ca

QGulding

Bee-Clean Building Maintenance
Communi  Living Parry Sound

maguin Highlands Family Health Team
CarePartners
Western Financial Group
Bra Motors
Value Buds
Best Western Plus Par
Little Gardens
Town of Parry Sound
Legend Spirits
McDonald's (Parry Sound)
Aramark Canada Ltd.
Mark's/L'quipeur

maguin Highlands Community Living
YMC  of Simcoe/Muskok
180 Smoke
Mac Lang
Lo Cabin Inn & Catering

Sound

he Labour Market Gro p

t workforce solutions.



REP RT
2

TOTAL U B ROF OBPOST NGS

4 2

NIPIS IN P RRY SOU
+6
from ro
J ne ue

TOPIN U RYW H VACAN IES

NIPI SIN

Health Care & Social
sistanc (28.4%

PAR Uub

HeathCae &S ial
Assi an -( .°)

T view hefullrpo 1" Hur  bsite
elabour  -r etgroup ca

ready e ire .c

T Labou Mar tGroup’sfind d by

® ov

LABOURFOCUS

ABOUR MARKET RES LIENCE
IN THE FACE OF AN AGING POPULATION

The Canadian workf cei gi .A morem uewo kerse it,
the economy is at ri k of ab ur ndskill hort ge .

Th Labour arket Group

a ada’s orkforce s agin WOR E OVERS55 S R O HE WORKFORC

rapi , ith or ersaged
55 and older growing by

184 /osi ce 00 n s
] w r ’
isa o -, b
it i .6 isinre e
s ie the ay er

gene ation, | ngercar e s,
people living longer, and
declining birth rates.

...........................................................................................................................................

Overall, the aging workforce has raised concerns about

labour and s ills sho ages as mature workers retire.
Certain sectors are at higher risk,
particularly trades, transport, and
equipment operators (15% of the

workforce) and business, finance, and —
administration occupations (16%). These
se ors rely heavily on o der

workers-and are among the
largest in. he economy.

...................................................................................................

The tio al replacementra io, w ich Man ge ent roles have some f

easur- henuy berof orkersu ce : th-lo estrplc  en rati sacross
5 foreve wod e aged5 am- :ldr, : Canada highig t - pot-ntia
hasde lin- - signiic rtly fr 8. c lleg
fii0? o .. 2. we y antain'n
‘g -sge-trrela ceo older leadershi
wo kersa d igh ri o hort g s. a dtanserrin
no edge.

: o )i 203

» 2001

Source: Labour Market Information Council
www.thelabourmarketgroup.ca



NOW
AVAILABLE!

LO AL LABOUR
MAR E PLAN 2025

Labou-Ma t Groupis fund d by

o . ¥

LABOUR ARKET
MOMENTUM ADES

Employment inCa d j__
fell in uly by 41,000
(0.2%). The labour force

participation rate ed ed
down to 65.2%, hile h
unemploymentrae Id
ste dy at 6.9%.

--------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------

_ nayearo r- e
B i basi , average
ol Py i hourly
, T, | W95
amVWomse . | o eby

qmm;,:%f— ' 3%.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Emp me in goods-producing
d ti dec’'ndb 29,000
with the losses concentrated in ¢ nstruction
(-21,600) and agriculture (-10,800).

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Manufacturing employment,

facing the most direct risk from
trade, however, increased

for the second
consecuti e

month
(+5,300). ‘

--------------------------------------------

Provincially, empl yment
GREW in the tlantc
provinces as well
as in Manitoba and
Saskatche n.
On a io posted a
MALL DECLINE
(-2,800 , while
Iberta (-16,300),
British Co umbia
(-16,800), and
Quebec (-15,000)
accounted for OST
OF THE NATION L
JOBLO ES.

Source: Conference Board of Canada

Te ervie se oralo

st d ne lo (- 0,900),drien
by sharp declines in information, cult re
and recreation (-29,200), business services
(- 9,200), and healthcare (-16,500).

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Beyond trade headwinds, labour

markets are Iso being shaped

by slower population growth.

B tween January and uly 2025,

Canada’s working-age population

expanded by just 0.8%, compared with 1.9% ov r
the same period in 2024. This slowdown follows
the ederal government’s decision las autumn

to harpl reduce both permanent and
temporary immigration after two years

of record population gains. The policy chang i
expected to eventually exacerbate labour short ges
in ¢ rtain industries, as employers compete fora
smaller pool of job seekers.

www.thelabourmarketgroup.ca




)

NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Investing $9.6 | illion in Wetlands Conservation

Funding will support natural infrastructure projects to keep communities safe against
drought and flooding

September 03, 2025
Environmen , Conservation nd Park

TORONTO — The Ontario government is investing $9.6 million to launch
applications for the Wetlan s Conserva ion Partner Program. The program
supports wetland restoration and enhancement pro’ects in the Great Lakes and
surrounding areas to help protect communities against the threat of flooding,
drought and other extreme weather events.

“Wetlands make communities more resilient. They act as natural infrastructure that
protect our homes and businesses against drought and flooding, clean our water
and create habitat for a variety of wildlife,” said Todd McCarthy, Minister of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks. “Since the launch of this program five years
ago, our government has supported safer, healthier communities through the
restoration and enhancement of almost 9,900 acres of wetlands.”

Over the next two years, these projects will bring the government's total
investment in wetlands restoration and enhancement through the Wetlands
Conservation Partner Program to nearly $41 million. This additional funding will
support a wide range of projects that restore and enhance wetlands of all sizes
with a focus on Great Lakes costal wetlands, ecoregions that have experienced
significant ongoing loss and wetlands in more urban areas as part of municipal
stormwater management.

Applications are now open for eligible conservation organizations, municipalities,
conservation authorities and Indigenous communities to apply online. Applications
are due by October 8, 2025.

Quick Facts

* For every two dollars of provincial funding provided through the Wetlands
Conservation Partner Program, grant recipients are required to match it with a



minimum of $1 from other non-provincial sources, such as individual donors,
foundations and other levels of government.

® Ducks Unlimited Canada’s _tory map features the wetland projects supported
by the organization through the Wetlands Conservation Partner Program.

¢ Since the start of the program, an estimated $10 million of damage due to
flooding has been avoided and over 270 green jobs were created in Ontario’s
rural and near-urban communities to undertake wetland projects.

uotes

"ALUS commends the Ford government for its continued investment in
creating and maintaining wetlands. The success of the Wetlands Conservation
Partner Program is a key part of community-based efforts to safeguard
Ontario’s water resources. Farmers participating in ALUS have benefitted from
the program, allowing them to do good work on behalf of all Ontarians as
stewards of wetlands."

Bryan Gilvesy
Chief Strategy Officer, ALUS

"We applaud Minister McCarthy and the Government of Ontario’s continued
investment in this program. We all know the critical value that wetlands play
for nature and people and it's great to see this program support the important
work of the conservation community including Ontario’s many land trusts and
leading national organizations like Ducks Unlimited Canada. Combined with
Ontario’s Greenlands program and investments in expansions in the provincial
parks and protected areas system, Ontario continues to show strong
leadership at this critical time for nature and people."

. ike Hendren
Executive Director, Ontario Conservation Accelerator Foundation



NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Bringing Innovative New Technologies to the
Health-Care System Faster

Health Innovation Pathway will improve outcomes for patients while supporting made-in-
Ontario health-care solutions

September 04, 2025
Health

TORONTO — Today, the Ontario government launched the Health Innova ion
Pathwa , a streamlined system to accelerate the adoption of new health
technologies and improve patient care. The pathway will create a consistent
process for reviewing and adopting technologies like medical devices and
procedures, digital tools, medical imaging and screening, lab and genetic testing
and models of health-care delivery to prioritize made-in-Ontario innovations and
ensure more patients receive world-class care close to home.

“Our government is continuing to take bold action to connect patients to best-in-
class health-care solutions, many of which allow patients to receive care in the
comfort of home, or better connect with their health-care providers,” said Sylvia
Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. “The Health Innovation Pathway is
just one more way we are protecting our health-care system and connecting more
people in Ontario to the care they need when and where they need it.”

Co-developed by Ontario Health and the Ministry of Health, the Health Innovation
Pathway will ensure Ontario patients can benefit from health-care innovations
faster, while creating jobs, economic growth and helping secure the province's
place as a leading life sciences hub for generations to come. As part of the
pathway, through the Health Technology Accelerator Fund, Ontario is also
supporting four new projects dedicated to wound care, Al-powered screening and
surgical care, including:

1. Wound care management ($5 million investment), including:
o Digital wound management solutions to help health-care providers
accurately measure and track wounds, using data-driven insights for
more effective treatment.



o Advanced wound care dressings to improve wound healing and reduce
the risk of lower limb amputations.

2. Al-powered screening to prevent vision loss ($1.5 million investment),
supporting earlier diagnosis of diabetic retinopathy and accelerating
treatment to help prevent diabetes-induced vision loss, which is the leading
cause of blindness in adults.

3. Computer-assisted navigation systems for total hip and knee arthroplasty
($5 million investment) for patients with chronic and debilitating end-stage
arthritic conditions, improving surgical precision and reducing the need for
revision surgery.

4. Abdominal wall surgical supports ($500,000 investment) to provide a non-

invasive option supporting an open abdomen after surgery - preventing
damage, streamlining surgical flow and improving patient outcomes.

Through Your H alth: Planfo onn ct d nd Convenien Care, the government
is strengthening Ontario’s health-care system, supporting the adoption of
innovative solutions to provide people with faster access to high-quality care, when
and where they need it.

Quick Facts

The Health Innovation Pathway is part of the government’s Life Sciences
Strategy. Ontario Health leads the end-to-end delivery of the Health Innovation
Pathway, in partnership with the Ministry of Health, Supply Ontario, the Ministry
of Economic Development, Job Creation and Trade and the Ministry of Public
and Business Service Delivery and Procurement.

Through its Life Sciences Strategy, the government recently inv_sted $201
million to establish Ontario as a global biomanufacturing and life sciences hub.
The Health Technology Accelerator Fund is a key component of the pathway,
which was announced in Ontario's 2024 Budg_t and will help health service
providers buy and use promising new technologies.

Since 2019, the government has invested more than $124 million in digital and
virtual care projects for Ontario Health Teams and health service providers,
benefitting over 6.1 million Ontarians.

In 2022, the government launched the Building Ontario Businesses Initiative
providing support for Ontario businesses to innovate, create jobs and gain sales
in local communities - strengthening Ontario’s supply chain resiliency and
driving economic growth.

Supply On ario is a provincial agency established to strengthen supply chain
management and procurement across the public sector. Supply Ontario will




QERR,
The Corporation of the
2 Qg Township of Perry
WN% Box 70 1695 Emsdale Road Emsdale, Ontario POA 1J0
Date: _August 20, 2025
Resolution No.: 2025- A8 Y4
Moved By: Margaret Ann MacPhail Seconded By: Paul Sowrey

Be it resolved that the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Perry
does hereby make recommendation for the appointment of Sean Cotton as an
Area 4 representative to the Parry S nd isrict Social Se ices
Administration Board.

Carried: Defeated: %‘.

Norm Hofstetter, Mayor

RECORDED VOTE

Council For Against

Councillors Jim Cushman

Joe Lumley

Margaret Ann MacPhail

Paul Sowrey

Mayor Norm Hofstetter




TOWNSHIP OF CMURRICH/ ONTEITH

Resolution
Number: 2025- l"ﬂ
September 2, 2025
Movedby:  Currie, Terry |2/ Seconded by: Currie, Terry C
O’Halloran, Daniel (] O’Halloran, Daniel [1 -
Roeder-Martin, Vicky [ Roeder-Martin, Vlckylg/
hite, Craig 1 hite, Craig ]
Robinson, Giynn [ Robinson, Glynn ]
ure: Signature:

Be It Resolved that Council hereby supports the appointment of Sean Cotton as
an Area 4 representative to the Pamy Sound District Social Services

dministration Board.

‘/ Defeated

Mayor Carried

Declaration f Pecuniary Interest by:

Recorded vote requested by:

Recorded Vote: Ya s Nays
Currie - -
O’Halloran - .
Roeder-Martin - -
White - -

Robinson




D)

3236 River St. P.O.B x 28 .
Alvinston, ON NON 1A0

Phone: 5 9.898.217
Fax: 519.898.5653 8
' 0

August 22, 2025

Municipality of Village o Burk’s Falls
102 Ontario Street

PO Box 160

Burk’s Falls, ON

At the August 13, 2025 regular session of Council, the following motion was duly moved
and seconded:

RESOLUTION-2025-236

Councillor Craig Sanders made a motion that the Municipality of Brooke-Alvinston
supports the request from the Village of Burk's Falls to request that the Province of Ontario
immediately suspend the approval and development of all new BESS installations until a
comprehensive, science-based study is completed. Deputy Mayor Frank Nemcek
seconded the motion. Carried

If you require further information, please contact by phone or email
‘denkers brooke lvinston.com.

Kind Regards,

dao

Darlene Paolucci
Administrative As istant

www.brookealvi ston.com in o@brookeal in ton.com



C CAN ON DE
Township of Champlain TOWNSHIP
Resolution
Regular Council Meeting
Agenda Number: 15.4.
Resolution Number  2025-249
Title: Township of Armour - Governance of Family Health Teams
Date: August 28, 2025
Moved By: Paul Emile Duval
Seconded By: Peter Barton

Be it resolved that resolution #248 from the Township of Armour, regarding the governance of family health
teams, be endorsed.

Carried

Certified True Copy of Resolution

Signed with ConsignO Cloud (2025/08/29)
Verify with verifio.com or Adobe Reader.

Alison Collard C..

Alison Collard, Clerk Date:



28 | unicipal Lane,
P.O. Box 1120, Sundridge, Ontario POA 120
705-384-5819 Fax 705-384-5892

www.strongtownship.com

Township of Strong Council Resolution
August 26, 2025 Regular Meeting
6.0 Comments/Communications/Correspondence

6.9

Township of Armour — Request for Support re: Governance of Family
Health Teams
R2025-221

oved By: Marianne Stickland Seconded by: Jeff cLaren
Be it resolved that the Council for the Township of Strong hereby received and
read resolution #248 dated August 12, 2025 from the Township of Armour
regarding governance of Family Health Teams; and

Support this resolution as circulated; and

Further that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Honourable Doug Ford,
Premier of Ontario; the Honourable Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of
Health; Dr. Jane Philpott, Chair of the Primary Care Action Team; AMO; the
Association of Family Health Teams of Ontario and Township of Armour.

Carried

www.strongtownship.com



TO NSHIP OF MCMURRICH/ ONTEITH

Resolution
wﬂ@sﬂ
September 2, 2025
Movedby:  Currie, Terry Seconded by: Currie, Terry |
O'Halloran, Daniel [ O’Halloran, Daniel [
Roeder-Martin, Vicky [1 Roeder-Martin, Vicky
White, Craig [ White, Craig |
Robinsan, Glynn [ Robinson, Glynn  []
g re: Signature:

Be it Resolved that Council supports the resolution from the Township of Armour
regarding their request to the Province to implement a standard and
mandatory governance model for the boards of Family Health Teams across the

Province.

Mayor - Carried Defeated

Declaration -Pecunia Interest by:

Recorded vote requested by:

Recorded Vote: Yays
Currie
O’Halloran
Roeder-Martin
White
Robinson

NERNR

NERN




G

District of Parry Sound _unicipal Association
c¢/o Township of McKellar, 701 Hwy 124 McKellar, ON POG 1C0O
President: Lynda Carleton Secretary-Treasurer: Karlee Britton

Fall 2025 Agenda — 171t eeting — Friday, September 26, 2025
Hosted by the Township of Seguin
Orrville Community Centre, 1207 Highway 518, Orrville, ON P2A 0B6

8:15-9:00 Registration / Coffee sponsored by MPAC

9:00-10:00 Introduction of the Head Table
Welcome and Opening Remarks - | ayor Ann acDiarmid, Township of Seguin
Land Acknowledgement & Ceremony led by Wasauksing First Nation
Greetings from Parry Sound-Muskoka MPP, Graydon Smith
Greetings from Parry Sound- uskoka P, Scott Aitchison (invited)
FONO: Update presented by Lynda Carleton
The Almaguin Community Hatchery Program Funding Announcement, Jerry Brandt

10:00-10:15 Pa S undA eaMu i ipal Ai port presented by Neil Pirie, Airport anager
10:15-10:35 Property Tax Sale presented by RealTax President, Narbe Alexandrian

10:35-10:50 Coffee break sponsored by TBA

10:50-11:10 Almaguin Housing Task Force Update presented by Acting Vice-Chairs Rod Ward,

Armour Mayor and Dave Gray, Director of Economic Development, Almaguin
Community Economic Development & Amour CAO

11:10-11:40 Al (Artificial Intelligence) in the Workplace presented by Forrest Pengra, Director of
Strategic Initiatives, Township of Seguin

11:40-12:00 The Effect of Excessive Wakes on Our Lakes presented by Dr. Timothy James, Board
Director, Safe Quiet Lakes

12:00-1:00 Lunch = Turkey Dinner and Dessert by Jim Macoubrey

1:00-2:00 Natural Resource Asset = anagement Planning: Risks of Overlooking Assets and

Insights from a = oderated Panel Discussion featuring:

Oscar Poloni, Partner, KPMG
and Representatives from the District’s unicipalities & Partner Agencies

2:00 Resolutions / Business Meeting
- Adoption of the Minutes of the Spring 2025 Meeting
- Treasurer's Report January 1, 2025 to July 31, 2025
- Minutes of the August 12, 2025 Executive Meeting

Draw for Mystery Door Prize from the Rosseau General Store: Must be present to claim
Host and Date of Next eeting: Friday, May 29, 2026, hosted by the Town of Kearney
Adjournment

A sweet treat of jam provided to you compliments of Seguin’s own Crofter’s Organic



(39

Charlene Watt (Deputy Clerk)

From: AMO Policy <policy@amo.on.ca>

Sent: September 3, 2025 10:21 AM

To: Charlene Watt

Subject: AMO Policy Update - Build Canada Homes Market Sounding Submission, New Process

for Inter-Provincial Labour Mobility

AM

Policy

A O olicy Update - Build Canada Homes arket
Sounding Submission, New Process for Inter-
Provincial Labour obility

A O Re ponds to Build Canada Homes ' arket Sounding on Design
and Implementation

O provided a ubmission to the federal go ernment in response to the
market sounding about the proposal to establish Build Canada Homes (BCH),
ane federal en ity with an ambitious plan an mand te to create up to

00,00 new homes annually across Canada. AMO has called on the feder |
government to:




« Collaborate with municipalities, DSSABs and the provincial government

« Focu on deeply affordable housing, including the acquisition,
development and maintenance of community and supportive housing

» rovide significant funding contributionso r -cos financing

« Buid housing supply in communities acros O tario — big and small, rural
nd urban, northern and southern

| es in housing enabling infrastructure in order to support new housing

Province Announces Streamlined Process for Inter-Provincial Labour
Mobility

The On ario government has announ ed a streamlined process or
Canadians in regulated professions to ork in Ontario. Starting January 1,
2026, regulatory authorities will have 10 days to review credentials from
qualified workers and certify them to work in  ntario for up to six months
while completing their full application to register with the authority.

The new process responds to A_O’s request to ensure regulatory authorities
have ull professional oversight to investigate nd respond to complaints
about out-of-province wo kers who are not yet full licenced. This will reduce
liability for employers — including municipalities — who hire workers under the
new streamlined process.

An onl'ne version of this Policy Update is also available on the A_O Website

“"Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned.

Association of Muni ‘palities of Ontario

To unsubscribe, please| Opt Qut

165 U iversity Ave Suite 800 | oronto, ON M5H 3B7 CA



Association of
Municipalities
of Ontario

Response to Market Sounding
on Build Canada omes Design
and Implementation

August 29, 2025



A O Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implementation
2025-08-29

bout 0

The Association of unicipalities of On ario (AMO) i a non-pro it, non-pa isan
association that represent the interests of all 444 municipal governmen s acr s
Ontario. A O addresses common challenges acing our members and provides

me ningful dvice to the provincial nd federal governmen s on pr ctical solu ion to
the housing crisis that reflect the unique Ontario housing context. Hou ing pre sur s
are keenly felt at the local level s municipal governmen s re responsible or en uring
housing infrastructure meets the needs f their local communities. AM is actively
involved in housing and homelessness advocacy because municipal government play
an important role in building strong, complete communities through their roles as
planners and service s stem manager for he housing system.



A O Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design nd Implementation
202 -08-29

Executive ummary

The Association of Municipalities of Ontario A O)i pleased oresp ndtot e arket
sounding for Build Canada Homes (BCH . The housing crisis in ntariois e iou and
widespread, cutting across all four corners of the province and hitting everyo e from the
middle class o our most vulner ble residents. In reased federalen a e n h
housing spac is needed and welcome in a ignificant and transformative w y.

A O supports the goals of Build Canada Homes — increasingth pe d, uppl , and
affordability of housing along the entire housing continuum. In Ontario, there” n
opportunity for Build Canada Homes to expand upon, support, and complement
municipal efforts o create the right conditions to both facilitate housing of alltyp  nd
to de elop new non-market housing. Given the unique role of Ontario municipa te in
housing, trilateral partnership ith collaboration on program design, impleme t tio and
ongoing evaluation will be key to success.

AMO proposes the following recommendations to ensure the successful implemen ation
of Build Canada Homes (BCH):

1.  Successful implementation of BCH in Ontario will depend on collaboration
between municipalities, District Social Service dministration Boards, the
provi cial government, and the federal government.

2. BCH should include a focus on deeply affordable housing. Federal BCH p ograms
should support the acquisition, development, and maintenance of community and
supportive housing.

3. BCH should include a significant focus on providing municipalities funding
contributions rather than low-cost financing. They also need significant process
improvements in order increase development speed, including greater risk
tolerance, and movement to a portfolio approach rather han a project-based
allocation process.

4. BCH should work with municipalities and District Social Service Administration
Boards with responsibility for land use and service system planningas elas
determining ho is best positioned to develop new housing.

5. BCH should support indu try development for new building technologies while
recognizing unique local considerations.

6. BCH sh uld include a focus on increasing supply in communities acros On ario —~
big a d small, rural and urban, northern and southern —in flexible manner
adap ed to local needs and circumstance .

7.  Increasing housing supply will require significant new investments in hou 'ng-
enabling infrastructure.



A O Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Desi and | plementation
2025-08-29

Ontario’s Unique Context and Housing Lan ca e: The
- nicipal Role d ressing the Housing fford iity d
Homelessn ss ri is

Ontario municip litie re unique in the Canadian federation in theirr | inf ding and
developing affordable housing in addition to the more common munic’ al r le in
planning and pproval .

Each order of govern ent has distinct role to play in addressing the housing suppl
and affordability crisis in Ontario. unicipal governments are local planning authorities
and Service System anagers for housing. The Province ets the land use planning
framework that municipalities must follow through a combination of le islation,
regulation and policy guidance, and serves as an approval authority. It is also a steward
of the community housing sys em; and the federal government is tr ditionally a system
enabler.

Ontario’s municipal governments have different responsibilities for managing the growth
of their communities. Land use planning is the primary role in determining the form,
density, and location of housing in their communities. But the municipal role also
includes managing and planning for housing-enabling infrast cture and using different
funding tools to support growth. hile different types of municipalities ha e different
responsibilities (for example regional municipalities no longer have planning uthority
but continue to manage housing-enabling infrastructure) municipalities pride hemselves
in being stewards of complete communities. These are places where homes, jobs,
schools, community services, parks and recreation facilities are easily accessible, nd
residents’ quality of life and population health are prioritized.

Municipal governments with responsibility for local planning and development
approvals, are regulated by provincial legislation, regulation, policy directives, and the
Ontario Buﬂdlng Code. These roles put municipal Councils at the forefront of the
housing crisis in Ontario.

In addition to their role in development, 47 upper and single-tier muni ip | governments
and District Social Service Administration Boards or DSSABSs in the north serve o fund,
plan, develop, and administer local community housing systems. Ontario is the only
Canadian province or territory where muni ipal governments are responsible or th
funding and delivery of community housing in partnership with many non-profit and co-
operative housin providers. Ontario’s 47 Consolidated Municipal Service System
Managers (C SMs) and DSSABs fund, manage, plan, and administer community
housing. They also develop affordable housing stock and deliver homelessness
prevention programs in conjunction with non-profit and private developer .



O Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implemen ation
2025-08-29

Municipal governments contribute significant funding annually for housing-related
sup orts, homelessness prevention programs, and fin ncial incentives o acilitate
ffordable housing development. Municipal spending on home es n ss and housing
programs has sky-rocketed since 2020, growing to more than 2.1 billion in 2024. It
ho Id be noted that this amount primarily includes progra spending. It does not
inclu e the full ra ge of municipal support for affordable housing. any contribute land,
waive or defer de elopment charges and planning fees on project managed by non-
profit nd -o eraive

hOUSing pl‘OViderS. Figure 27 Funding Trends  Homel  ess d Housing Source (Federal, Provincla), |, Other) Ontario,
unicipalities have 2016-2024
steppedinto d re s e Fedurit . ¥ viil Morichel  Ofher

homelessness in their
communities despite
limited resources and even
though it is the

constitu ional ju isdi tio
the provincial and federal
governments.

Homelessness Hou ng

1500M

Source: AMO, NOSDA, OMS A °°

with HelpSeeker Technologies,

20 5, __unicipalities Under oM
Pressure: The Human and

Financial Cost of Onta io’s

Homelessness Crisis

0 2018 22 2022 202 20 6 2018 2020 2022 2024

To provide hous'ng to residents, servi e system managers work in partnership with co-
operative, non-profit, for-profit, and Indigenous community housing providers. They also
con ult with community members to address the housing needs of vulnerable, low-
income Ontarians.

Municipal governments, regardless of whether they are designa ed service system
managers, play a critical role in facilitating more housing affordability options because of
the planning and financial tools at their disposal. Many do so to the exten that fiscal
circumstances allow, and community priorities dictate.



MO Res onse to arket Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implemen ation
2025- 8-29

Recomme dations for De i n and Implement " n

Ontario unicipaliti s are committed to supporting provincial and ederal efforts to build
housing across the housing continuum in Ontario. he Build Canada Homes initiative
has he po ential to be transformational if he follo ing recommendations are taken into
cons’'deration.

Suc f |implementation of BCH in Ontario will depend on collaboration
betwe unicipalities, District Social Service Admini tration oards, the
provincial government, and the federal government.

A Oreco mends the federal government partner and establish a formal tri-lateral
collabor tion between the federal government, the Province of Ontario, and

municipali ies to o-design, plan for, and deliver and evaluate housing in estments
under he CH strategy. This should include formal governance mech nisms, outcome
frameworks, and alignment ith existing provincial mandates and local s se pla s.
This ill support the alignment of various capital investments, operational funding,
infrastru ture funding, and development charges.

Build Canada Homes should be fully integrated with Ontario’s existing sy tem of ervice
managers. In Ontario, 47 unicipal Service System anagers from single-tier, upper
tier and ervice boards do the following:

develop and steward local Ten-Year Housing and Homelessness Plans;
coordinate federal and provincial investments with local impl mentation;

und and manage community housing and homelessness services; and,

are accountable for results, orking closely with local non-profits, co-operatives
Indigenous organizations, and private developers.

Bypassing or duplicating this system will reduce impact and create ine iciencies. BCH
should wo k with ervice managers from the outset. Housing investment in any of
Ontario’s 444 municipalities aimed at increasing affordability needs to be coordinated
with the Municipal Service System Manager responsible for that area. The Housing

ccelerator Fund (HAF) model did not recognize service managers and excluded upper
tier municipalities (counties, regions) and District Social Service Adminis ration Boards
from receiving HAF funding. This program design weakness should be corrected by
BCH.

BCH’ goal of unlocking federal land is welcome. However, timeli es, infrastructure
acces , nd local approvals require partnership with municipalities and service
managers. Without that collaboration, land access alone will not accelerate delivery.



AMO Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implementatio
2025-08-29

BCH h uldin lude a focus on deepl affordabl housing. Fe ral BCH programs
sho | pport he acquisition, developmentan m inten n e of ommuni and
upp iv housing.
Figu L edN of Experiencing Homelessness in Northemn n- hern Communifi |,
o ce: AMO, NOSDA, OMSSA 16202
ith HelpSeeker
Technologies, 202
unicipalitie _Under o
Pressure: The Human and

Financial Cost of Ontario’s 58 6 57 28
Homelessness Crisis

No hern @ Non-Northern

BCH ha he potential to increase

housing supply in Ontario, but we

need to al o make sure it's the

righ mix of supply.

201 207 20 20 20 1 02 03 2
cross Ontario, more than

268,000 households are on social housing waitlists, ith aver ge wait times exceeding

Ive ears and, in some regions much longer. ore than 80,000 Ontarians were known

to be homeless in 2024, a number that has grown b more than 25% since 2022

according o the AMO study __unicipalities Under Pressure: The Human and Financial
Cost of Ontario’s Homelessness Crisis.

Dramatically increasing the supply of deeply affordable social housing will be critical for
ad re sing the gro ing number of Ontarians facing housing precarity and the rising
homelessness crisis.

Investments in suppo ive housing are also desperately needed. A recent report from
Addictions and ental Health Ontario estimated that 36,000 new supportive housing
units are required in Ontario to meet the needs of households with mental health and
addictions. There is a real opportunity to align federal BCH capital investments with
provincial funding for wrap-around supports and make progres toward this goal.

hile development of new deeply affordable housing units is essential, we won't make
progre s unless we also invest in preserving existing affordabl housing. In Ontario,
in estments of $11.3B over 10 years are required to bring the ocial housing portfolio
up to a fair st te of repair. BCH should:

e include repair and renewal funding streams.
e  protect exis ing affordability from market loss through acquisitions; and
e  prioritize capital reinvestment as a core instrument alongside new builds.



AMO Res onse to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implementation
2025-08-29

Municipal governments are investing in repair and redevelopment along with

co ributions from the federal and provincial government through the critically

impo ant cost-shared pr grams under the National Housing Strategy Canada-Ontario
bila eral greement. This funding is critical and its continuation and expansion be nd
the urrent NHS term is important.

BCH should include a significant focus on providing municipalitie undi g
ti tions rather than low-co tfin ncing. hey also need signific tprc s
im rovements in order increase de elop ent speed, including gre terris
tole ance and mo ement to a portfolio approach rather than a project-based
pplica ion process.

Ontario municipalities and District Social Service Administration Boards with good cr dit
ratings can already access relatively low-cost financing for housing. What they need
most is reliable, predictable, and long-term funding to make deeply affordable housing
de elopment feasible. The eed f r significant g ants cannot be un erstated. They r
ne ded o reduce risk for projects and to allow or deeper levels of affordability.

Forgi able loans and operating subsidies such as housing benefits are also useful
though grants should be prioritized.

he federal government also has an opportunity to consider and approve projects
differently. Rather that requiring project-by-project applications, BCH could ake a
portfolio approach encompassing multiple buildings that would reduce administrative
imelines and give municipalities greater flexibility to deliver on larger projects. As well,
streamlining of funding streams is needed along with action to ensure that federal and
pro incial programs are integrated in design and aligned to facilitate the stacking of
funding. This will necessitate work with provincial counterparts in Ontario.

When implementing new programs under BCH, it is critical that there is a seamless
transition and no disruption if C HC programs are transferred. Applications in the
pipeline should continue to be assessed without delay in processing. Streamlining
approvals could also minimize the need for stacking of multiple programs.

BCH should work with municipalities and District Social Service Administration
Boards w'th responsibility for land use and service system planning to determine
ho is be t positioned to develop new housing.

Iti import ntto ensure that housing initiatives align with the requirement of the
Planning Act, Provincial Planning Statement, and are flexible enough to be adapted o
local o cial plans. Strong coordination with local and provincial planning fr meworks
can help ensure timely approvals for projects. It will also help ensure that projects can
be aligned with lo | plans o deliver growth-enabling infrastructure needed to support
housing such as ransportation, ater, wastewater, and energy infrastructure.

unicipal ervice system manager municipalities and District Social Service

dminis ration Boards are experienced planners and developers of new affo dable

ommuni , transitional, and supportive housing. BCH should ork with them o

eterm’ne ho is best positioned in specific situations to build or purchase h u ing

7

AM



AMO Response to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Imp mentation
025-08-29

units. Leveraging the existing system in Ontario would ensure reater effici n  nd
ffectiven ss on he ground in communities and assist with scale and speed.

hrough BCH, the government should also consult with Indigenous People o heir
priorities and the progr m design to ensure that Indigenous de i ned ndle p j ts
are appropriately funded.

BCH hould u portind s ry devel pment for n w buildingte hnol g s hile
re gnizing unique local nsiderations.

To facilitate the scaling up of modular, prefabricated and 3D printing housin

should su port the industry’ development and expansion and promote thei u h re
it the most viable building method. However, given the greater upfront development
costs, higher upfront financial upport will likely be required.

It should be considered that other building methods, such as mass imber for example,
may also be viable alternatives that should be used where the situation dic es. The
various regions of Ontario will require a range of different building technologies
appropriate for their circumstances. For example, northe Ontario is not near the
manufacturers of modular housing. In large urban areas, high-rise multi-res dential

o ers also would not necessarily be built rom modular housing.

As BCH invests in growing the innovative housing construction industry, s rongly
supports plans to incent and require improved environmental performance and lower
construction costs from builders. While development charges have been a major focus
as a solution to high construction costs, investing in innovative housing is a critical lever
for Canad to meet its housing targets and help the building industry do its part.

BCH should include a focus on increasing supply in communities across ntario
- big and small, rural and urban, northern and southern - in a flexible manner
adapted to local needs and circumstances.

The housing affordability and homelessness crisis exists in communities across ntario
without exception. AMO appreciates BCH’ intention to pursue funding portfolo  d
large-scale projects. Success requires flexibility for supportive and deeply affordable
housing. Big, small, rural and urban, northern and southern communities need an
approach hat supports medium and small-scale developments. Po olio-ba ed
investmen s with municipa service manager could bundle smaller commun'ty projects
together. Scale can be achieved with multi-municipal partnerships in place. This should
be recognized by BCH in a portfolio approach.

BCH should act in a flexible manner working with all municipalities i their ecifc
situations wit varying financial growth, geographic, and capacity conditions.

Attention to the program design with ongoing monitoring and evaluation mechanisms
should be in place to ensure that there are not barriers that exclude smaller ‘u ‘sdictions
ith high needs due to project size alone.

8

AM



A pons to Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes De i n and Implementation
202 -08-29

Inr igho s'ng upply illrequre significantinv tmen i sing-
en | ginfa tructure.

We a n tincrea e supply of housing without investing in hou ing-e a ling

infrastr ture. Ontario municipalities have are planning formoreth $ Obilio i
capital penditure  er he nextdecade to supporthousing n a r saing set.
While municipa ities own and manage more infrastructure t an he oth rtwo le els of
governm nt comb'ned, they have the fewest resources and tools  fund capital eeds.
The bulk of inves me t for the local infrastructure needed o maintai s ing housing
and support growth comes directly from municipalities. Provinciala f eral
governments together contribute less than 30% of annual funding.! Ontario
municipalities received average annual grants of $1.7 bil ion grants over the st five
years from the federal government. These contributions havenot e t a wih he
true costs of building, which have grown by an estimated 70% over the la t decade.2

¢

T g pita 13
fat

For BCH to be successful, it will need to provide the required housing-enabl'ng
infrastructure funding.

1 Financial Information Return — over the last 5 years average annual revenue for anc'ng capital as
been $10.8B dollars of which the average annual provincial capital grants was ~$0.9B ( 12°%) and
average annual federal capital gr nts as ~$1.7B (15%)

2 Statistics Canada, 20 4, Building construction price indexes

9
AM



AMO Response to arket ounding on Build Canada Homes Design and implementation
202 -08-29

Protecting development char e revenue

A O asks BCHto voi imposing new development charge (DC) e emptions r
discounts. DCs hav be n ke unding source for municipal capi al investments or
deca es.

he unpreceden ed Ontario legislative and regulatory changes to both the DC and land
use planning ramewor s inrecen ear has continued to alter the ools avalla o
municipalities to ¢ ordina in growth, lo ing efforts to increase housing su ply. All
parties—provincial nd m n'cipal governments, as well as developer —h v learned

alu ble lessons abo tth omplexity of these issues and the importance of close
collaboration. T is is why MO, the Ontario Home Builders Association, a d the
Province have been successfully collaborating on DC modernization chan es in 2025.
A O supports these mod rnization changes, which will bring more transp r ncy and
consistency to the regime, trengthening it ford velopers and municipalitie a ike.
Further DC change by BCH could introduce ne uncertainty i to O tario’ ho sing
market, potentially risking housing starts.

ore specifically, AMO has significant concerns about the federal government pl n to
cut DCs or mul i-unit housing by 50 per cent for five years despite the commit ent to
work with the provincial government to make municipalities whole for a period of five
years. The estimated revenue loss for Ontario municipalities alone ($8 to $12 billion) is
more than the total federal funding pledged for all Canadian municipalities ($6 billion).
Consequently, the federal go ernment's proposed funding is inadequate and should be
reassessed. Federal government commitments around DC reductions will be coun er-
productive unless DCs are ully replaced with another equally predictable and stable
revenue source.

Your Impact

Investments in housing is critical at this time both to address the housing aff rdability
crisis but also the economy. The current tariffs from the United States are having
impacts on Ontario’ economy in both the short and long-term. AMO is promoting he
case for investments in non-market housing to help the economy with strength and
resilience.

Investments in community housing ha e been an important element of past responses
to economic downturns. These investments can provide a secure pipeline of projects for
the residential construction sector, preserving jobs and investment through uncertainty
and contribute to Ontario’s long-term economic productivity by improving overall
housing affordability and enabli g workers to live here there is demand for skills and
labour.

Ontario’s municipalities are ready to play a role. There is significant de and for

investment in community and supportive housing across municipalities, wit many
projects shovel ready or t stages o advanced planning.

10
AM



AMO Responset Market Sounding on Build Canada Homes Design and Implementation
025-08-29

C nclusio

AMO supports Build Canada Homes as a new critical player to further he shar d
national, regiona , and ocal municipal goals for housing. Integrated pla ing,
collaboratio , nd coordinated efforts through a trilateral partner ip it all or ers of
government wille ur the condition for successin ntario. MO looks forw rd to
further eng gemen , ongoing communication, and participation witht e v | ing
program design f Build Canada Homes.

For ques ions r collaboration opportunities, please contact:

Alicia Neufeld
Senior Manager, A

aneufeld@amo.on.ca

11

AM



FNSHIp @
& =%

Q

. Arwou,
Rpmov®
STAFF REPORT
Date: September 9, 2025
To: Council
From: Charlene Watt, Clerk

Subject: Doe Lake Municipal Park Washrooms

Recommendation:

That the Staff Report from the Municipal Clerk dated September 9, 2025, regarding the maintenance
of the Doe Lake Washroom be received and direct staff regarding the preferred approach for the
2026 operating season of the Doe Lake Municipal Park washrooms.

Council may wish to:

e Direct staff to replace the water pump with a permanent water pump and issue a Request for
Quotes (RFQ) for cleaning services.
e Close the facility and rent portable washrooms.

Purpose:
To seek Council’s direction on the operation of the public washrooms at Doe Lake Municipal Park

for the 2026 season, specifically regarding whether to open and maintain the current facility or to
close the facility and provide portable washrooms instead.

History:

The public washroom facility at Doe Lake Municipal Park has been in service for many years.
Cleaning and basic maintenance has been overseen by Klink Enterprises for the past 11 years. Over
that time, the cost of cleaning has increased from approximately $4,632/year to over $8,500/year.
Including regular repairs, the annual cost to operate the facility is approximately $9,500.

A discussion with Klink Enterprises indicated a concern regarding the capacity of the water pump
used at the facility. It appears the current pump may be undersized for the volume of usage and may
require replacement or an upgrade. It was suggested that the Township install a permanent pump
instead of removing and reinstalling each season. Another option would be to consider drilling a well.

It is unclear whether a Request for Quotes (RFQ) for cleaning services will be issued for the
upcoming season. Klink Enterprises has suggested in previous years that it may be their last season,
though this has not been confirmed.

Given the ongoing costs and infrastructure requirements, Council may wish to revisit the long-term
plan for this facility.

—-Re=soLuT oN ~



Financial Considerations:

Options for 2026 Season

(. ay long weekend to June 30 open weekends only, July and August open every day from
9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., September to Thanksgiving open weekends only — approximately 92
operating days)

Option 1: Open and aintain Existing Washroom Facility
o Continue to operate the current washroom building.
e Costs (2025 season estimate):
o Cleaning: $8,500
o Water hook up: $200
o Repairs, maintenance & supplies: ~$3,100
o Total: ~$11,800

o Full-service facility with running water and accessible features.
o Established infrastructure.
o Reduced vandalism reported this year.
e Cons:
o High annual costs, including building repairs and vandalism.
o Ongoing maintenance issues (e.g., pump capacity, seasonal set-up & dismantling).
o Long-term sustainability and cost-efficiency concerns.

Option 2: Close Facility and Rent Portable Washrooms — available 24 hours a day ( ay 2026
— October 2026 — approximately 151 operating days)
o Close the existing building for the season.
e Rent two portable toilets:
o 1 accessible unit: ~$1,700
o 3 regular units: ~$4,392 ($1,464 each)
o Total: ~$6,092

o Significantly reduced operational costs.
o Minimal maintenance or cleaning oversight required.
o Comparable to all other municipal parks.

o No limited time access (9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.)

o Available every day from May to October.

o Reduced level of service compared to permanent washrooms.
o Aesthetics and user experience may be impacted.
o Storage and security consideratio s for the building while closed.

Financial Summary
Estimated Annual Cost Notes

Maintain Facility ~$9,500 Includes cleaning

Annual Avg Repairs ~$2,400 Includes interior and exterior repairs
Annual Avg Supplies ~$ 700 Includes cleaning supplies

Portable Toilets ~$6,092 Includes 1 accessible + 3 regular

Others Consulted:

Alison McGregor, Treasurer



	Agenda
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6 - Audit Strategy
	7 - Consolidated 
	8 - Trust
	9 - TRI-R
	10 - Eco D
	11
	12
	13
	14
	15
	16
	17
	18
	19
	20
	21
	22
	23
	24
	25
	26
	27
	28
	29
	30
	31
	32
	33
	34
	35
	36
	37
	38
	39

